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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Accounts receivable, net of reserves of $58,745 and $56,267

Inventories, net
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangibles, net
Investments and other
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Bank credit lines
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accrued expenses:
Payroll and related
Taxes
Other
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Redeemable noncontrolling interests
Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized,

none outstanding

Common stock, $.01 par value, 240,000,000 shares authorized,

92,261,494 outstanding on March 26, 2011 and

91,939,477 outstanding on December 25, 2010
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total Henry Schein, Inc. stockholders' equity
Noncontrolling interests

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities, redeemable noncontrolling interests and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes.
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March 26, December 25,
2011 2010
(unaudited)

$ 116,712 $ 150,348

934,952 885,784

930,341 870,206

51,363 48,951

228,143 214,013

2,261,511 2,169,302

271,750 252,573

1,499,689 1,424,794

458,480 405,468

303,564 295,334

$ 4,794,994 $ 4,547,471

$ 579,474 $ 590,029

97,194 41,508

8,357 4,487

153,892 172,746

131,387 91,581

263,899 267,736

1,234,203 1,168,087

407,462 395,309

196,358 190,225

82,711 76,753

1,920,734 1,830,374

426,060 304,140

923 919

518,842 601,014

1,837,229 1,779,178

89,836 30,514

2,446,830 2,411,625

1,370 1,332

2,448,200 2,412,957

$ 4,794,994 $ 4,547,471
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010
Net sales $ 1,947,761 $ 1,760,310
Cost of sales 1,381,939 1,247,277
Gross profit 565,822 513,033
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 441,522 396,989
Restructuring costs - 12,285
Operating income 124,300 103,759
Other income (expense):
Interest income 3,933 3,388
Interest expense (8,085) (9,087)
Other, net 323 (115)
Income before taxes, equity in earnings of affiliates and
noncontrolling interests 120,471 97,945
Income taxes (39,153) (32,224)
Equity in earnings of affiliates 1,653 1,531
Net income 82,971 67,252
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (6,476) (6,352)
Net income attributable to Henry Schein, Inc. $ 76,495 $ 60,900
Earnings per share attributable to Henry Schein, Inc.:
Basic $ 084 $ 0.68
Diluted $ 082 $ 0.66
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic 90,615 89,508
Diluted 93,161 92,721

See accompanying notes.
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance, December 25, 2010

Net income (excluding $6,381 attributable to
Redeemable
noncontrolling interests)

Foreign currency translation gain (excluding $1,892

attributable to Redeemable noncontrolling
interests)
Unrealized gain from foreign currency hedging
activities,
net of tax of $406
Unrealized investment gain, net of tax benefit of
$100
Pension adjustment loss, net of tax benefit of $31
Total comprehensive income

Dividends paid
Other adjustments
Change in fair value of redeemable securities
Initial noncontrolling interests and adjustments
related to
business acquisitions
Repurchase and retirement of common stock
Stock issued upon exercise of stock options,
including tax benefit of $5,513
Stock-based compensation expense
Shares withheld for payroll taxes
Liability for cash settlement stock option awards

Balance, March 26, 2011

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

C Stock Accumulated
$0(I)I1HI1)OH Vt(fc Additional Other Total
- ar vaue Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Noncontrolling Stockholders'
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Interests Equity
91,939,477 $ 919 $ 601,014 $ 1,779,178 $ 30,514 $ 1,332 $ 2,412,957
- - - 76,495 - 95 76,590
- - - - 57,817 - 57,817
- - - - 1,887 - 1,887
- - - - 136 - 136
- - - - (518) - (518)
135,912
- - - - - (103) (103)
- - - - - 46 46
- - (101,033) - - - (101,033)
- - (2,138) - - - (2,138)
(409,755) (@) (8,650) (18,444) - - (27,098)
538,813 6 24,321 - - - 24,327
302,184 3 8,342 - - - 8,345
(109,225) (@) (2,872) - - - (2,873)
- - (142) - - - (142)
92,261,494 $ 923 $ 518842 $ 1,837,229 $ 89,836 $ 1,370 $ 2,448,200

See accompanying notes.
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of bond discount
Stock-based compensation expense
Provision for losses on trade and other accounts receivable
Provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes
Undistributed earnings of affiliates
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets
Payments for equity investments and business
acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities
Other

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from (repayments of) bank borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal payments for long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of stock upon exercise of stock options
Payments for repurchases of common stock
Excess tax benefits related to stock-based compensation
Distributions to noncontrolling shareholders
Acquisitions of noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
Other

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

See accompanying notes.
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Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010
82,971 $ 67,252
28,348 24,572
- 1,548
8,345 6,142
1,728 994
(6,772) 272
(1,653) (1,531)
1,835 1,361
10,990 (7,394)
(6,944) 14,482
(1,131) 7,730
(70,138) (93,753)
47,579 21,675
(10,458) (9,062)
(133,614) (108,946)
- (26,984)
2,100 1,300
1,308 (720)
(140,664) (144,412)
55,660 (931)
3,000 -
(1,526) (1,843)
18,814 15,280
(27,098) -
5,797 4,522
(1,062) (1,298)
(366) (10,000)
(90) (90)
53,129 5,640
(39,956) (117,097)
6,320 1,331
150,348 471,154
116,712  $ 355,388
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements include our accounts, as well as those of our wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. Certain prior period
amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Our accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include
all of the information and footnote disclosures required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated results of operations and financial
position for the interim periods presented. All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature. These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 25, 2010.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The results of operations for the three months ended March 26, 2011 are not necessarily indicative
of the results to be expected for any other interim period or for the year ending December 31, 2011.

Note 2. Segment Data

We conduct our business through two reportable segments: healthcare distribution and technology. These segments offer different products and services to the
same customer base. The healthcare distribution reportable segment aggregates our dental, medical, animal health and international operating segments. This
segment consists of consumable products, small equipment, laboratory products, large equipment, equipment repair services, branded and generic pharmaceuticals,
vaccines, surgical products, diagnostic tests, infection-control products and vitamins.

Our dental group serves office-based dental practitioners, schools and other institutions in the combined United States and Canadian dental market. Our medical
group serves office-based medical practitioners, surgical centers, other alternate-care settings and other institutions throughout the United States. Our animal health
group serves animal health practices and clinics throughout the United States. Our international group serves dental, medical and animal health practitioners in 23
countries outside of North America.

Our technology group provides software, technology and other value-added services to healthcare practitioners, primarily in the United States, Canada, the
United Kingdom, Australia and New Zealand. Our value-added practice solutions include practice management software systems for dental and medical
practitioners and animal health clinics. Our technology group offerings also include financial services on a non-recourse basis, e-services and continuing education
services for practitioners.
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 2. Segment Data (Continued)

The following tables present information about our reportable segments:

Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010
Net Sales:

Healthcare distribution (1):
Dental (2) $ 662,783 $ 614,649
Medical (3) 319,795 284,589
Animal health (4) 230,565 206,646
International (5) 678,972 609,453
Total healthcare distribution 1,892,115 1,715,337
Technology (6) 55,646 44,973
Total $ 1,947,761 $ 1,760,310

(1) Consists of consumable products, small equipment, laboratory products, large equipment, equipment repair services, branded and generic pharmaceuticals,
vaccines, surgical products, diagnostic tests, infection-control products and vitamins.

(2) Consists of products sold in the United States and Canadian dental markets.

(3) Consists of products sold in the United States” medical market.

(4) Consists of products sold in the United States’ animal health market.

(5) Consists of products sold in dental, medical and animal health markets, primarily in Europe, Australia and New Zealand.

(6) Consists of practice management software and other value-added products and services, which are distributed primarily to healthcare providers in the United
States, Canada, the United Kingdom, Australia and New Zealand.

Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010
Operating Income:
Healthcare distribution $ 109,532 $ 88,837
Technology 14,768 14,922
Total $ 124,300 $ 103,759
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 3. Debt

On September 5, 2008, we entered into a $400 million revolving credit facility with a $100 million expansion feature. The $400 million credit line expires in
September 2013. The interest rate, which was 0.75% during the three months ended March 26, 2011, is based on USD LIBOR plus a spread based on our leverage
ratio at the end of each financial reporting quarter. The agreement provides, among other things, that we maintain certain interest coverage and maximum leverage
ratios, and contains restrictions relating to subsidiary indebtedness, liens, employee and shareholder loans, disposal of businesses and certain changes in
ownership. In addition to the amounts outstanding under our shelf facilities, discussed below, we have outstanding borrowings of approximately $79.0 million under
our $400 million credit facility. As of March 26, 2011, there were $9.8 million of letters of credit provided to third parties.

As of March 26, 2011, we had various other short-term bank credit lines available, of which approximately $18.2 million was outstanding. As of March 26,
2011, borrowings under all of our credit lines had a weighted average interest rate of 1.65%.

On August 10, 2010, we entered into $400 million private placement shelf facilities with two insurance companies. These shelf facilities are available through
August 2013 on an uncommitted basis. The facilities allow us to issue senior promissory notes to the lenders at a fixed rate based on an agreed upon spread over
applicable treasury notes at the time of issuance. The term of each possible issuance will be selected by us and can range from five to 15 years (with an average life
no longer than 12 years). The proceeds of any issuances under the facilities will be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital and capital
expenditures, to refinance existing indebtedness and/or to fund potential acquisitions. The agreement provides, among other things, that we maintain certain
maximum leverage ratios, and contains restrictions relating to subsidiary indebtedness, liens, employee and shareholder loans, disposal of businesses and certain
changes in ownership. As of March 26, 2011, we have an outstanding balance under the facilities of $100.0 million at a fixed rate of 3.79%, which is due on
September 2, 2020.

Effective December 31, 2009, Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC, or BAHS, a majority-owned subsidiary whose financial information is consolidated with ours,
had incurred approximately $320.0 million of debt (of which $37.5 million was provided by Henry Schein, Inc.) in connection with our acquisition of a majority
interest in BAHS. The remaining outstanding balance of $278.4 million is reflected in our consolidated balance sheet as of March 26, 2011. Borrowings incurred as
part of the acquisition of BAHS, along with certain of our credit lines, are collateralized by assets with an aggregate net carrying value of $325.0 million.

The debt incurred as part of the acquisition of BAHS is repayable in 23 quarterly installments of $0.8 million through September 30, 2015, and a final
installment of $301.6 million on December 31, 2015. Interest on the BAHS debt is charged at LIBOR plus a margin of 3.5% with a LIBOR floor of 2% for a current
effective rate of 5.5% as of March 26, 2011. The agreement provides, among other things, that we maintain certain interest coverage and maximum leverage ratios,
and contains restrictions relating to subsidiary indebtedness, capital expenditures, liens, employee and shareholder loans, disposal of businesses and certain changes
in ownership. In addition, the debt agreement contains provisions which, under certain circumstances, require BAHS to make prepayments based on excess cash
flows of BAHS as defined in the debt agreement. The debt agreement also contains provisions that require BAHS to hedge risks related to potential rising interest
rates. As a result, BAHS entered into a series of interest rate caps, for which we have elected hedge accounting treatment, with a notional amount of $160.0 million,
protecting against LIBOR interest rates rising above 3.0% through March 30, 2012.
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 4. Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Some minority shareholders in certain of our subsidiaries have the right, at certain times, to require us to acquire their ownership interest in those entities at fair
value. Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 480-10 is applicable for noncontrolling interests where we are or may be required to purchase all or a
portion of the outstanding interest in a consolidated subsidiary from the noncontrolling interest holder under the terms of a put option contained in contractual
agreements. The components of the change in the Redeemable noncontrolling interests for the three months ended March 26, 2011 and the year ended December 25,
2010 are presented in the following table:

March 26, December 25,
2011 2010

Balance, beginning of period $ 304,140 $ 178,570
Net increase in redeemable noncontrolling interests

due to business acquisitions, net of redemptions 13,354 62,314
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests 6,381 26,054
Dividends declared (740) (12,360)
Effect of foreign currency translation attributable to

redeemable noncontrolling interests 1,892 (2,281)
Change in fair value of redeemable securities 101,033 51,843
Balance, end of period $ 426,060 $ 304,140

Changes in the estimated redemption amounts of the noncontrolling interests subject to put options are adjusted at each reporting period with a corresponding
adjustment to Additional paid-in capital. Future reductions in the carrying amounts are subject to a “floor” amount that is equal to the fair value of the redeemable
noncontrolling interests at the time they were originally recorded. The recorded value of the redeemable noncontrolling interests cannot go below the floor
level. These adjustments do not impact the calculation of earnings per share.

Some prior owners of such acquired subsidiaries are eligible to receive additional purchase price cash consideration if certain financial targets are met. For
acquisitions completed prior to 2009, we accrue liabilities that may arise from these transactions when we believe that the outcome of the contingency is
determinable beyond a reasonable doubt. Starting in our 2009 fiscal year, as required by ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinations,” we have accrued liabilities for
the estimated fair value of additional purchase price adjustments at the time of the acquisition. Any adjustments to these accrual amounts will be recorded in our
consolidated statement of income. For the three months ended March 26, 2011, there were no material adjustments recorded in our consolidated statement of income
relating to changes in estimated contingent purchase price liabilities.
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 5. Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes certain gains and losses that, under U.S. GAAP, are excluded from net income as such amounts are recorded directly as an
adjustment to stockholders’ equity. Our comprehensive income is primarily comprised of net income, foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains
(losses) on hedging and investment activity and pension adjustments.

The following table summarizes our Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of applicable taxes as of:

March 26, December 25,
2011 2010

Attributable to Redeemable noncontrolling interests:

Foreign currency translation adjustment $ 1,028 $ (864)
Attributable to Henry Schein, Inc.:
Foreign currency translation adjustment $ 98,955 $ 41,138
Unrealized gain (loss) from foreign currency hedging activities 827 (1,060)
Unrealized investment loss (1,040) (1,176)
Pension adjustment loss (8,906) (8,388)

Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 89,836 $ 30,514
Total Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 90,864 $ 29,650

The following table summarizes other comprehensive income attributable to our Redeemable noncontrolling interests, net of applicable taxes as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010
Foreign currency translation adjustment $ 1,892 $ (3,487)
The following table summarizes our total comprehensive income, net of applicable taxes as follows:
Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010
Comprehensive income attributable to
Henry Schein, Inc. $ 135,817 $ 26,013
Comprehensive income attributable to
noncontrolling interests 95 13
Comprehensive income attributable to
Redeemable noncontrolling interests 8,273 2,852
Comprehensive income $ 144,185 $ 28,878
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 6. Fair Value Measurements

ASC Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (“ASC Topic 820”) establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted
accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. ASC Topic 820 applies under other previously issued accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements but does not require any new fair value measurements.

ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between (1) market participant assumptions developed

based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs) and (2) an entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions developed
based on the best information available in the circumstances (unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as
follows:

* Level 1— Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

* Level 2— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data by correlation or other means.

* Level 3— Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.
The following section describes the valuation methodologies that we used to measure different financial instruments at fair value.
Cash equivalents and trade receivables
Due to the short-term maturity of such investments, the carrying amounts are a reasonable estimate of fair value.
Long-term investments and notes receivable

There are no quoted market prices available for investments in unconsolidated affiliates and long-term notes receivable; however, we believe the carrying
amounts are a reasonable estimate of fair value.

12
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 6. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)
Auction-rate securities

As of March 26, 2011, we have approximately $13.0 million ($11.3 million net of temporary impairments) invested in auction-rate securities (“ARS”),
consisting of investments backed by student loans that are backed by the federal government and investments in closed-end municipal bond funds, which are
included as part of Investments and other within our consolidated balance sheets. ARS are publicly issued securities that represent long-term investments, typically
10-30 years, in which interest rates had reset periodically (typically every 7, 28 or 35 days) through a “dutch auction” process. Our ARS portfolio is comprised of
investments that are rated AAA by major independent rating agencies. Since the middle of February 2008, ARS auctions have failed to settle due to an excess
number of sellers compared to buyers. The failure of these auctions has resulted in our inability to liquidate our ARS in the near term. We are currently not aware of
any defaults or financial conditions that would negatively affect the issuers’ ability to continue to pay interest and principal on our ARS. We continue to earn and
receive interest at contractually agreed upon rates.

During the first quarter of 2011, we received approximately $2.1 million of redemptions of our ARS. As of March 26, 2011, we have continued to classify our
ARS, as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy due to the lack of observable inputs and the absence of significant refinancing activity.

Based upon the information currently available and the use of a discounted cash flow model, including assumptions for estimated interest rates, timing and
amount of cash flows and expected holding period for the ARS portfolio, in accordance with applicable authoritative guidance, our previously recorded cumulative
temporary impairment at December 25, 2010 of $1.7 million related to our ARS remained unchanged during the three months ended March 26, 2011. The temporary
impairment has been recorded as part of Accumulated other comprehensive income within the equity section of our consolidated balance sheet.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Financial liabilities with carrying values approximating fair value include accounts payable and other accrued liabilities. The carrying value of these financial
instruments approximates fair value due to their short maturities.

13
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 6. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)
Debt

The fair value of our debt is estimated based on quoted market prices for our traded debt and on market prices of similar issues for our private debt. The fair
value of our debt as of March 26, 2011 and December 25, 2010 was estimated at $513.0 million and $441.3 million.

Derivative contracts

Derivative contracts are valued using quoted market prices and significant other observable and unobservable inputs. We use derivative instruments to minimize
our exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. Our derivative instruments primarily include interest rate caps related to our long-
term floating rate debt and foreign currency forward agreements related to intercompany loans and certain forecasted inventory purchase commitments with
suppliers.

The fair values for the majority of our foreign currency and interest rate derivative contracts are obtained by comparing our contract rate to a published forward
price of the underlying market rates, which is based on market rates for comparable transactions and are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Redeemable noncontrolling interests

Some minority shareholders in certain of our subsidiaries have the right, at certain times, to require us to acquire their ownership interest in those entities at fair
value based on third-party valuations. The noncontrolling interests subject to put options are adjusted to their estimated redemption amounts each reporting period
with a corresponding adjustment to Additional paid-in capital. Future reductions in the carrying amounts are subject to a “floor” amount that is equal to the fair value
of the redeemable noncontrolling interests at the time they were originally recorded. The recorded value of the redeemable noncontrolling interests cannot go below
the floor level. These adjustments will not impact the calculation of earnings per share. The details of the changes in Redeemable noncontrolling interests are shown
in Note 4.

14
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HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Note 6. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following table presents our assets and liabilities that are measured and recognized at fair value on a recurring basis classified under the appropriate level of
the fair value hierarchy as of March 26, 2011 and December 25, 2010:

March 26, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities $ - $ - $ 11,306 $ 11,306
Derivative contracts - 1,435 - 1,435
Total assets $ -3 1,435 $ 11,306 $ 12,741
Liabilities:
Derivative contracts $ - $ 1,068 $ - $ 1,068
Total liabilities $ - $ 1,068 $ - $ 1,068
Redeemable noncontrolling interests $ - $ - 8 426,060 $ 426,060
December 25, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities $ - $ -3 13,367 $ 13,367
Derivative contracts - 1,213 - 1,213
Total assets $ - $ 1,213 $ 13,367 $ 14,580
Liabilities:
Derivative contracts $ - $ 2,771 $ -3 2,771
Total liabilities $ - $ 2,771 $ - % 2,771
Redeemable noncontrolling interests $ - $ - $ 304,140 $ 304,140
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Note 6. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following table presents a reconciliation of our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using unobservable inputs (Level 3):

Level 3 (1)
Balance, December 25, 2010 $ 317,507
Change in redeemable noncontrolling interests 121,920
Redemptions at par (2,100)
Gain reported in accumulated other comprehensive income 39
Balance, March 26, 2011 $ 437,366

Level 3 (1)
Balance, December 26, 2009 $ 199,164
Change in redeemable noncontrolling interests 107,965
Redemptions at par (2,980)
Gain reported in accumulated other comprehensive income 100
Balance, March 27, 2010 $ 304,249

(1) Level 3 amounts consist of closed-end municipal bond funds, student loan backed auction-rate securities and redeemable noncontrolling interests. See Note 4 for
the components of the changes in Redeemable noncontrolling interests.

Note 7. Business Acquisitions
The operating results of all acquisitions are reflected in our financial statements from their respective acquisition dates.

On December 31, 2010, we acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of Provet Holdings Limited (ASX: PVT), Australia’s largest distributor of veterinary
products with sales in its 2010 fiscal year of approximately $278 million, for approximately $91 million, in a cash-for-stock exchange.

We completed other acquisitions during the three months ended March 26, 2011, the operating results of which are reflected in our financial statements from
their respective acquisition dates. All acquisitions individually and in the aggregate had an immaterial impact on our reported operating results. Total acquisition
costs incurred in the three months ended March 26, 2011 were immaterial to our financial results.
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Note 7. Business Acquisitions (Continued)

Effective December 31, 2009, we acquired a majority interest in Butler Animal Health Holding Company, LLC (“Butler Holding”), the holding company of
BAHS, a distributor of companion animal health supplies to veterinarians. BAHS further complements our domestic and international animal health operations and
accordingly has been included in our Animal health operating segment, which is reported as part of Healthcare distribution. We contributed certain assets and
liabilities with a net book value of approximately $86.0 million related to our United States animal health business to BAHS and paid approximately $42.0 million in
cash to acquire 50.1% of the equity interests in Butler Holding indirectly through W.A. Butler Company, a holding company that is partially owned by Oak Hill
Capital Partners (“OHCP”). As part of a recapitalization at closing, BAHS combined with our animal health business to form Butler Schein Animal Health
(“BSAH”), while incurring approximately $127.0 million in incremental debt used primarily to finance Butler Holding stock redemptions. As a result, BSAH had
incurred $320.0 million of debt at closing, $37.5 million of which was provided by Henry Schein, Inc. and is eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Total consideration for the acquisition of BAHS, including $96.1 million of value for noncontrolling interests, was $351.1 million, summarized as follows:

Net cash consideration paid by Henry Schein, Inc. $ 41,990
Net book value of the United States animal health operations' assets and liabilities contributed 86,048
Fair value of noncontrolling interest in BAHS 96,110
Incremental debt incurred 127,000

Total consideration $ 351,148

We estimated the $96.1 million fair value of noncontrolling interest in BAHS as of the acquisition date by applying an income approach as our valuation
technique. Our income approach followed a discounted cash flow method, which applied our best estimates of future cash flows and an estimated terminal value
discounted to present value at a rate of return taking into account the relative risk of the cash flows. To confirm the reasonableness of the value derived from the
income approach, we also analyzed the values of comparable companies which are publicly traded.

The total consideration of $351.1 million was allocated as follows:

Net assets of BAHS at fair value:

Current assets $ 164,789
Intangible assets:
Trade name (useful life 3 years) 10,000
Customer relationships (useful life 12 years) 140,000
Non-compete agreements (useful life 2 years) 2,600
Goodwill 270,714
Other assets 14,138
Current liabilities (62,770)
Bank indebtedness (200,100)
Deferred income tax liabilities (74,271)
Net book value of our assets and liabilities contributed 86,048
Total allocation of consideration $ 351,148
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Note 7. Business Acquisitions (Continued)

The goodwill recognized is primarily attributable to expected synergies and the assembled workforce of BAHS. The goodwill is not expected to be tax
deductible for income tax purposes. As a result of our contributed business being under the control of Henry Schein, Inc. before and after the transaction, the assets
and liabilities of this business remain at their original historical accounting basis in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The debt incurred as part of the acquisition of BAHS is repayable in 23 quarterly installments of $0.8 million through September 30, 2015, and a final
installment of $301.6 million on December 31, 2015. Interest on the BAHS debt is charged at LIBOR plus a margin of 3.5% with a LIBOR floor of 2% for a current
effective rate of 5.5% as of March 26, 2011. The debt agreement contains provisions which, under certain circumstances, require BAHS to make prepayments based
on excess cash flows of BAHS as defined in the debt agreement. The debt agreement also contains provisions that require BAHS to hedge risks related to potential
rising interest rates. As a result, BAHS entered into a series of interest rate caps, for which we have elected hedge accounting treatment, with a notional amount of
$160.0 million, protecting against LIBOR interest rates rising above 3.0% through March 30, 2012.

In connection with the acquisition of a majority interest in BAHS, we entered into (i) a Put Rights Agreement with OHCP and Butler Holding (the “Oak Hill Put
Rights Agreement”), and (ii) a Put Rights Agreement with Burns Veterinary Supply, Inc. (“Burns”) and Butler Holding (the “Burns Put Rights Agreement” and
together with the Oak Hill Put Rights Agreement, the “Put Rights Agreements”), which provide each of OHCP and Burns with certain rights to require us to purchase
their respective direct and indirect ownership interests in Butler Holding at fair value based on third-party valuations (“Put Rights”). Our maximum annual payment
to OHCP under the Oak Hill Put Rights Agreement will not exceed $125.0 million for the first year during which OHCP can exercise its rights, $137.5 million for
the second year and $150.0 million for the third year and for each year thereafter. Pursuant to the Burns Put Rights Agreement, Burns can exercise its Put Rights
from and after December 31, 2014, at which time Burns will be permitted to sell to us up to 20% of its closing date ownership interest in Butler Holding each year. If
OHCEP still holds ownership interests in Butler Holding at the time the Burns Put Rights begin, then the put amounts payable by us to OHCP and Burns in any year
will not exceed $150.0 million in the aggregate. As a result of the Put Right Agreements, the noncontrolling interest in BAHS has been reflected as part of
Redeemable noncontrolling interests in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
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Note 8. Plans of Restructuring

During the first quarter of 2010, we completed a restructuring in order to reduce operating expenses. This restructuring included headcount reductions of 184

positions, as well as the closing of a number of smaller locations.

For the three months ended March 27, 2010, we recorded restructuring costs of approximately $12.3 million (approximately $8.3 million after taxes) consisting
of employee severance pay and benefits, facility closing costs, representing primarily lease termination and asset write-off costs, and outside professional and

consulting fees directly related to the restructuring plan.

The costs associated with these restructurings are included in a separate line item, “Restructuring costs” within our consolidated statements of income.

The following table shows the amounts expensed and paid for restructuring costs that were incurred during the three months ended March 26, 2011 and the
remaining accrued balance of restructuring costs as of March 26, 2011, which is included in Accrued expenses: Other and Other liabilities within our consolidated

balance sheet:

Balance at Payments and Balance at
December 25, Other March 26,
2010 Provision Adjustments 2011
Severance costs (1) $ 1,992 §$ - $ 630 1,362
Facility closing costs (2) 2,351 - 561 1,790
Total $ 4343 % - 1,191 3,152

(1) Represents salaries and related benefits for employees separated from the Company.

(2) Represents costs associated with the closing of certain smaller facilities (primarily lease termination costs) and property and equipment write-offs.

The following table shows, by reportable segment, the restructuring costs incurred during our 2010 fiscal year and the remaining accrued balance of restructuring

costs as of March 26, 2011:

Balance at Payments and Balance at
December 25, Other March 26,
2010 Provision Adjustments 2011
Healthcare distribution $ 4,343 $ - $ 1,191 3,152
Technology - - - -
Total $ 4,343 $ - $ 1,191 3,152
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Note 9. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income attributable to Henry Schein, Inc. by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
for the period. Our diluted earnings per share is computed similarly to basic earnings per share, except that it reflects the effect of common shares issuable upon
vesting of restricted stock and upon exercise of stock options using the treasury stock method in periods in which they have a dilutive effect.

For the three months ended March 27, 2010, diluted earnings per share includes the effect of common shares issuable upon conversion of our convertible
debt. During this period, the debt was convertible at a premium as a result of the conditions of the debt. As a result, the amount in excess of the principal is
presumed to be settled in common shares and is reflected in our calculation of diluted earnings per share.

A reconciliation of shares used in calculating earnings per basic and diluted share follows:

Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010

Basic 90,615 89,508
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options, restricted stock and restricted units 2,546 2,339
Effect of assumed conversion of convertible debt - 874

Diluted 93,161 92,721

Weighted-average options to purchase 2 shares of common stock at an exercise of $69.45 per share and 1,000 shares of common stock at exercise prices ranging
from $56.21 to $62.05 per share that were outstanding during the three months ended March 26, 2011 and March 27, 2010, respectively, were excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings per share. In each of these periods, such options’ exercise prices exceeded the average market price of our common stock, thereby
causing the effect of such options to be anti-dilutive.

On September 3, 2010, we redeemed all of our 3% convertible contingent notes originally due in 2034 (the “Convertible Notes”) for approximately $240 million
in cash and issued 732 shares of our common stock. The effect of assumed conversion of our Convertible Notes, as it relates to the impact on diluted earnings per
share, was included through September 3, 2010.
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Note 10. Income Taxes

For the three months ended March 26, 2011, our effective tax rate from operations was 32.5% compared to 32.9% for the prior year period. The difference
between our effective tax rates and the federal statutory tax rates for both periods primarily relates to state and foreign income taxes.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of March 26, 2011 was approximately $28.5 million, all of which would affect the effective tax rate if
recognized. It is expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change in the next 12 months; however, we do not expect the change to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

The total amounts of interest and penalties were approximately $5.8 million and $0, respectively.

The tax years subject to examination by major tax jurisdictions include the years 2006 and forward by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, the years 1997 and
forward for certain states and the years 2003 and forward for certain foreign jurisdictions.

Note 11. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

We are exposed to market risks, which include changes in interest rates, as well as changes in foreign currency exchange rates as measured against the U.S.
dollar and each other, and changes to the credit markets. We attempt to minimize these risks by primarily using interest rate cap agreements, foreign currency
forward contracts and by maintaining counter-party credit limits. These hedging activities provide only limited protection against interest rate, currency exchange
and credit risks. Factors that could influence the effectiveness of our hedging programs include interest rate volatility, currency markets and availability of hedging
instruments and liquidity of the credit markets. All interest rate cap and foreign currency forward and interest rate cap contracts that we enter into are components of
hedging programs and are entered into for the sole purpose of hedging an existing or anticipated interest rate and currency exposure. We do not enter into such
contracts for speculative purposes and we manage our credit risks by diversifying our investments, maintaining a strong balance sheet and having multiple sources of
capital.

Fluctuations in the value of certain foreign currencies as compared to the U.S. dollar may positively or negatively affect our revenues, gross margins, operating
expenses and retained earnings, all of which are expressed in U.S. dollars. Where we deem it prudent, we engage in hedging programs using primarily foreign
currency forward and interest rate caps contracts aimed at limiting the impact of foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations on earnings. We
purchase short-term (i.e., 12 months or less) foreign currency forward contracts to protect against currency exchange risks associated with intercompany loans due
from our international subsidiaries and the payment of merchandise purchases to our foreign suppliers. We purchase interest rate caps to protect against interest rate
risk on variable rate debt payable to third parties. We do not hedge the translation of foreign currency profits into U.S. dollars, as we regard this as an accounting
exposure, not an economic exposure. The impact of our hedging activities has historically not had a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, additional disclosures related to derivatives and hedging activities required by ASC Topic 815 have been omitted.
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Note 12. Stock-Based Compensation

Our accompanying unaudited consolidated statements of income reflect share-based pretax compensation expense of $8.3 million ($5.6 million after-tax) and
$6.1 million ($4.1 million after-tax) for the three months ended March 26, 2011 and March 27, 2010, respectively.

Stock-based compensation represents the cost related to stock-based awards granted to employees and non-employee directors. We measure stock-based
compensation at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and recognize the cost (net of estimated forfeitures) as compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period. Our stock-based compensation expense is reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses in our
consolidated statements of income.

Stock-based awards are provided to certain employees and non-employee directors under the terms of our 1994 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, and our 1996
Non-Employee Director Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (together, the “Plans”). The Plans are administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. Prior to March 2009, awards under the Plans principally include a combination of at-the-money stock options and restricted stock (including restricted
stock units). In March 2009, March 2010 and March 2011, equity-based awards were granted solely in the form of restricted stock and restricted stock units, with the
exception of stock options for certain pre-existing contractual obligations.

Grants of restricted stock are common stock awards granted to recipients with specified vesting provisions. We issue restricted stock that vests solely based on
the recipient’s continued service over time (four-year cliff vesting) and restricted stock that vests based on our achieving specified performance measurements and
the recipient’s continued service over time (three-year cliff vesting).

With respect to time-based restricted stock, we estimate the fair value on the date of grant based on our closing stock price. With respect to performance-based
restricted stock, the number of shares that ultimately vest and are received by the recipient is based upon our performance as measured against specified targets over
a three-year period as determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Although there is no guarantee that performance targets will be
achieved, we estimate the fair value of performance-based restricted stock, based on our closing stock price at time of grant.

The Plans provide for adjustments to the performance-based restricted stock targets for significant events such as acquisitions, divestitures, new business
ventures and share repurchases. Over the performance period, the number of shares of common stock that will ultimately vest and be issued and the related
compensation expense is adjusted upward or downward based upon our estimation of achieving such performance targets. The ultimate number of shares delivered
to recipients and the related compensation cost recognized as an expense will be based on our actual performance metrics as defined under the Plans.

Restricted stock units are awards that we grant to certain employees that entitle the recipient to shares of common stock upon vesting. We grant restricted stock
units with the same time-based and performance-based vesting that we use for restricted stock. The fair value of restricted stock units is determined on the date of
grant, based on our closing stock price.

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested awards as of March 26, 2011 was $88.9 million, which is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of approximately 2.6 years.
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The following weighted-average assumptions were used in determining the fair values of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation model:

Expected dividend yield
Expected stock price volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life of options (years)

The following table summarizes stock option activity under the Plans during the three months ended March 26, 2011:

Outstanding at beginning of period
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at end of period

Options exercisable at end of period

2011 2010
0% 0%
20% 20%
2.13% 2.37%
4.75 4.5
Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual
Exercise Life in Aggregate
Shares Price Years Intrinsic Value
5012 $ 43.05
10 69.45
(539) 35.04
(7) 35.44
4,476 $ 44.09 4.7 $ 104,541
4,176 ¢ 43.04 4.5 $ 102,005

The following tables summarize the status of our non-vested restricted stock/units for the three months ended March 26, 2011:

Outstanding at beginning of period
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Outstanding at end of period

Outstanding at beginning of period
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Outstanding at end of period

Time-Based Restricted Stock/Units

Weighted
Average Grant Aggregate
Date Fair Intrinsic
Shares/Units Value Value
743 $ 34,804
207 14,371
(85) (4,365)
(3 (127)
862 $ 44,683 $ 58,083

Performance-Based Restricted Stock/Units

Weighted
Average Grant Aggregate
Date Fair Intrinsic
Shares/Units Value Value
1,347  $ 42,083
438 30,939
(45) (2,685)
(2) (92)
1,738  $ 70,245 $ 117,245
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Note 13. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest and income taxes was:
Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010
Interest $ 7,496 $ 10,205
Income taxes 19,276 13,450

During the three months ended March 26, 2011, we had a $2.3 million non-cash net unrealized gain related to hedging activities. During the three months ended
March 27, 2010, we had a $10.9 million non-cash net unrealized loss related to hedging activities.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

In accordance with the “Safe Harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, we provide the following cautionary remarks regarding
important factors that, among others, could cause future results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements, expectations and assumptions expressed or
implied herein. All forward-looking statements made by us are subject to risks and uncertainties and are not guarantees of future performance. These forward-
looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance and achievements or industry
results to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. These statements
plan,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “project,” “anticipate” or other comparable

TS ”

are identified by the use of such terms as “may,” “could,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe,
terms.

” 9 <«

Risk factors and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from current and historical results include, but are not limited to: recently
enacted healthcare legislation; effects of a highly competitive market; changes in the healthcare industry; changes in regulatory requirements; risks from expansion of
customer purchasing power and multi-tiered costing structures; risks associated with our international operations; fluctuations in quarterly earnings; our dependence
on third parties for the manufacture and supply of our products; transitional challenges associated with acquisitions, including the failure to achieve anticipated
synergies; financial risks associated with acquisitions; regulatory and litigation risks; the dependence on our continued product development, technical support and
successful marketing in the technology segment; risks from disruption to our information systems; general economic conditions; decreased customer demand and
changes in vendor credit terms; disruptions in financial markets; our dependence upon sales personnel, manufacturers and customers; our dependence on our senior
management; possible increases in the cost of shipping our products or other service issues with our third-party shippers; risks from rapid technological change;
possible volatility of the market price of our common stock; certain provisions in our governing documents that may discourage third-party acquisitions of us; and
changes in tax legislation. The order in which these factors appear should not be construed to indicate their relative importance or priority.

We caution that these factors may not be exhaustive and that many of these factors are beyond our ability to control or predict. Accordingly, any forward-
looking statements contained herein should not be relied upon as a prediction of actual results. We undertake no duty and have no obligation to update forward-
looking statements.

Executive-Level Overview

We believe we are the largest distributor of healthcare products and services primarily to office-based healthcare practitioners. We serve more than 700,000
customers worldwide, including dental practitioners and laboratories, physician practices and animal health clinics, as well as government and other institutions. We
believe that we have a strong brand identity due to our more than 78 years of experience distributing healthcare products.

We are headquartered in Melville, New York, employ more than 14,000 people (of which over 6,400 are based outside the United States) and have operations in
the United States, Australia, Austria, Belgium, Canada, China, the Czech Republic, France, Germany, Hong Kong SAR, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Luxembourg, the
Netherlands, New Zealand, Portugal, Slovakia, Spain, Switzerland and the United Kingdom. We also have affiliates in Iceland, Saudi Arabia, Turkey and the United
Arab Emirates.

We have established strategically located distribution centers to enable us to better serve our customers and increase our operating efficiency. This infrastructure,

together with broad product and service offerings at competitive prices, and a strong commitment to customer service, enables us to be a single source of supply for
our customers’ needs. Our infrastructure also allows us to provide convenient ordering and rapid, accurate and complete order fulfillment.
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We conduct our business through two reportable segments: healthcare distribution and technology. These segments offer different products and services to the
same customer base. The healthcare distribution reportable segment aggregates our dental, medical, animal health and international operating segments. This
segment consists of consumable products, small equipment, laboratory products, large equipment, equipment repair services, branded and generic pharmaceuticals,
vaccines, surgical products, diagnostic tests, infection-control products and vitamins.

Our dental group serves office-based dental practitioners, schools and other institutions in the combined United States and Canadian dental market. Our medical
group serves office-based medical practitioners, surgical centers, other alternate-care settings and other institutions throughout the United States. Our animal health
group serves animal health practices and clinics throughout the United States. Our international group serves dental, medical and animal health practitioners in 23
countries outside of North America and is what we believe to be a leading European healthcare supplier serving office-based practitioners.

Our technology group provides software, technology and other value-added services to healthcare practitioners, primarily in the United States, Canada, the
United Kingdom, Australia and New Zealand. Our value-added practice solutions include practice management software systems for dental and medical
practitioners and animal health clinics. Our technology group offerings also include financial services on a non-recourse basis, e-services and continuing education
services for practitioners.

Industry Overview

In recent years, the healthcare industry has increasingly focused on cost containment. This trend has benefited distributors capable of providing a broad array of
products and services at low prices. It also has accelerated the growth of HMOs, group practices, other managed care accounts and collective buying groups, which,
in addition to their emphasis on obtaining products at competitive prices, tend to favor distributors capable of providing specialized management information
support. We believe that the trend towards cost containment has the potential to favorably affect demand for technology solutions, including software, which can
enhance the efficiency and facilitation of practice management.

Our operating results in recent years have been significantly affected by strategies and transactions that we undertook to expand our business, domestically and
internationally, in part to address significant changes in the healthcare industry, including consolidation of healthcare distribution companies, potential healthcare
reform, trends toward managed care, cuts in Medicare and collective purchasing arrangements.

Our current and future results have been and could be impacted by the current economic environment and uncertainty, particularly impacting overall demand for
our products and services.

Industry Consolidation

The healthcare products distribution industry, as it relates to office-based healthcare practitioners, is highly fragmented and diverse. This industry, which
encompasses the dental, medical and animal health markets, was estimated to produce revenues of approximately $28 billion in 2010 in the combined North
American, European and Australian/New Zealand markets. The industry ranges from sole practitioners working out of relatively small offices to group practices or
service organizations ranging in size from a few practitioners to a large number of practitioners who have combined or otherwise associated their practices.

Due in part to the inability of office-based healthcare practitioners to store and manage large quantities of supplies in their offices, the distribution of healthcare
supplies and small equipment to office-based healthcare practitioners has been characterized by frequent, small quantity orders, and a need for rapid, reliable and
substantially complete order fulfillment. The purchasing decisions within an office-based healthcare practice are typically made by the practitioner or an
administrative assistant. Supplies and small equipment are generally purchased from more than one distributor, with one generally serving as the primary supplier.
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We believe that consolidation within the industry will continue to result in a number of distributors, particularly those with limited financial and marketing
resources, seeking to combine with larger companies that can provide growth opportunities. This consolidation also may continue to result in distributors seeking to
acquire companies that can enhance their current product and service offerings or provide opportunities to serve a broader customer base.

Our trend with regard to acquisitions and joint ventures has been to expand our role as a provider of products and services to the healthcare industry. This trend
has resulted in expansion into service areas that complement our existing operations and provide opportunities for us to develop synergies with, and thus strengthen,
the acquired businesses.

As industry consolidation continues, we believe that we are positioned to capitalize on this trend, as we believe we have the ability to support increased sales
through our existing infrastructure.

As the healthcare industry continues to change, we continually evaluate possible candidates for merger or acquisition and intend to continue to seek opportunities
to expand our role as a provider of products and services to the healthcare industry. There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully pursue any such
opportunity or consummate any such transaction, if pursued. If additional transactions are entered into or consummated, we would incur merger and/or acquisition-
related costs, and there can be no assurance that the integration efforts associated with any such transaction would be successful.

Aging Population and Other Market Influences

The healthcare products distribution industry continues to experience growth due to the aging population, increased healthcare awareness, the proliferation of
medical technology and testing, new pharmacology treatments and expanded third-party insurance coverage, partially offset by the affects of increased
unemployment on insurance coverage. In addition, the physician market continues to benefit from the shift of procedures and diagnostic testing from acute care
settings to alternate-care sites, particularly physicians’ offices.

The U.S. Census Bureau’s “Statistical Abstract of the United States: 2011,” reports that, in 2010, more than five million Americans were aged 85 or older, the
segment of the population most in need of long-term care and elder-care services. By the year 2050, that number is projected to more than triple to more than 19
million. The population aged 65 to 84 years is projected to more than double in the same time period.

As a result of these market dynamics, annual expenditures for healthcare services continue to increase in the United States. Given current operating, economic
and industry conditions, we believe that demand for our products and services will grow at slower rates. The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or
CMS, published “National Health Expenditure Projections 2009 — 2019” indicating that total national healthcare spending reached approximately $2.5 trillion in
2009, or 17.3% of the nation’s gross domestic product, the benchmark measure for annual production of goods and services in the United States. Healthcare
spending is projected to reach approximately $4.6 trillion in 2019, approximately 19.6% of the nation’s gross domestic product.

Government

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive government regulation, licensure and operating compliance procedures. Additionally, government and private
insurance programs fund a large portion of the total cost of medical care. The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003, or MMA,
was the largest expansion of the Medicare program since its inception, and provided participants with voluntary outpatient prescription drug benefits beginning in
2006. The MMA also included provisions relating to medication management programs, generic substitution and provider reimbursement. The Patient Protection
and Affordable Care Act, enacted in March 2010, generally known as The Health Care Reform Bill or PPACA, increased federal oversight of private health insurance
plans and included a number of provisions designed to reduce Medicare expenditures and the cost of healthcare generally, to reduce fraud and abuse, and to provide
access to health coverage for an additional
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32 million people. PPACA also imposes (i) a 2.3% excise tax on domestic sales of medical devices by manufacturers and importers beginning in 2013, and a “fee”
on branded prescription drugs and biologics beginning in 2011, which may affect sales, (ii) mandates pharmacy benefit manager transparency regarding rebates,
discounts and price concessions, which could affect pricing and competition and (iii) reduces the amount of out-of-pocket liability for patients participating in the
Medicare outpatient drug benefit program created by the MMA. Certain federal district courts have declared PPACA, or portions of it, to be unconstitutional, while
certain other courts have affirmed its constitutionality. Appeals are pending, and the matter is expected to be determined by the Supreme Court of the United States.

In addition to the foregoing, PPACA imposed new reporting and disclosure requirements for pharmaceutical and device manufacturers with regard to payments
or other transfers of value made to certain practitioners, including physicians and dentists, and teaching hospitals beginning in January 2012. Implementing
regulations have not yet been issued, but it is possible that such regulations, when issued, will treat us or one or more of our subsidiaries as a “manufacturer” subject
to these reporting requirements. In addition, several states require pharmaceutical and/or device companies to report expenses relating to the marketing and
promotion of products as well as gifts and payments to individual practitioners in the states, or prohibit certain marketing related activities. Other states, such as
California, Nevada, Massachusetts and Connecticut, require pharmaceutical and/or device companies to implement compliance programs or marketing codes.
Wholesale distributors are covered by the laws in certain of these states. In others, it is possible that our activities, including on behalf of manufacturers, or the
activities of one or more of our subsidiaries will subject us to the state’s reporting requirements and prohibitions.

Regulations adopted under the federal Prescription Drug Marketing Act, effective December 2006, require the identification and documentation of transactions
involving the receipt and distribution of prescription drugs, that is, drug pedigree information. These requirements include tracking sales and distribution of
prescription products from distributors and potentially manufacturers. In early December 2006, the federal District Court for the Eastern District of New York issued
a preliminary injunction enjoining the implementation of some of the federal drug pedigree requirements, including the requirement to identify transactions back to
the manufacturer, in response to a case initiated by secondary distributors. On October 8, 2010, the U.S. District Court granted a motion to extend the time for either
party to re-open the matter (which had been administratively closed in light of potential legislative action by Congress), until June 30, 2011, effectively continuing
the injunction through this time. We continue to work with our suppliers to help minimize the risks associated with counterfeit products in the supply chain and
potential litigation.

Other states and government agencies are currently considering similar drug pedigree laws and regulations. There have been increasing efforts by various levels
of government, including state departments of health, state boards of pharmacy and comparable agencies, to regulate the pharmaceutical distribution system in order
to prevent the introduction of counterfeit, adulterated or mislabeled pharmaceuticals into the distribution system. An increasing number of states, including Florida,
have already adopted laws and regulations, including drug pedigree tracking requirements, that are intended to protect the integrity of the pharmaceutical distribution
system. California has enacted a statute that, beginning in 2015, will require manufacturers to identify each package of a prescription pharmaceutical with a
standard, machine-readable numerical identifier, and will require manufacturers and distributors to participate in an electronic track-and-trace system and provide or
receive an electronic pedigree for each transaction in the drug distribution chain. Other states have passed or are reviewing the same type of requirements. Bills have
been proposed in Congress that would impose similar requirements at the federal level.

The Combat Methamphetamine Enhancement Act of 2010, which became effective in April 2011, requires retail sellers of products containing certain
chemicals, such as pseudoephedrine, to self certify to the Drug Enforcement Administration (“DEA”) that they are in compliance with the laws and regulations
regarding such sales. The law also prohibits distributors from selling these products to retailers who are not registered with the DEA or who have not self-certified
compliance with the laws and regulations. The
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Secure and Responsible Drug Disposal Act of 2010, signed by President Obama in October 2010, is intended to allow individuals to return unused controlled
substances to designated entities to more easily and safely dispose of controlled substances while reducing the chance of diversion. The law authorizes DEA to
designate certain entities to receive returned controlled substances but it does not mandate that entities must participate in a drug disposal program.

There may be additional legislative initiatives in the future impacting healthcare.
E-Commerce

Traditional healthcare supply and distribution relationships are being challenged by electronic online commerce solutions. Our distribution business is
characterized by rapid technological developments and intense competition. The advancement of online commerce will require us to cost-effectively adapt to

changing technologies, to enhance existing services and to develop and introduce a variety of new services to address the changing demands of consumers and our
customers on a timely basis, particularly in response to competitive offerings.

Through our proprietary, technologically-based suite of products, we offer customers a variety of competitive alternatives. We believe that our tradition of
reliable service, our name recognition and large customer base built on solid customer relationships position us well to participate in this growing aspect of the
distribution business. We continue to explore ways and means to improve and expand our Internet presence and capabilities.
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Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the significant components of our operating results and cash flows for the three months ended March 26, 2011 and March 27,
2010 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
March 26, March 27,
2011 2010

Operating results:
Net sales $ 1,947,761 $ 1,760,310
Cost of sales 1,381,939 1,247,277

Gross profit 565,822 513,033
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 441,522 396,989

Restructuring costs - 12,285

Operating income $ 124,300 $ 103,759

Other expense, net $ (3,829) $ (5,814)
Net income 82,971 67,252
Net income attributable to Henry Schein, Inc. 76,495 60,900
Cash flows:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 47,579 $ 21,675
Net cash used in investing activities (140,664) (144,412)
Net cash provided by financing activities 53,129 5,640

Plans of Restructuring

During the first quarter of 2010, we completed a restructuring in order to reduce operating expenses. This restructuring included headcount reductions of 184
positions, as well as the closing of a number of smaller locations.

During the three months ended March 27, 2010, we recorded restructuring costs of approximately $12.3 million (approximately $8.3 million after taxes). These
costs primarily consisted of employee severance pay and benefits, facility closing costs, representing primarily lease termination and asset write-off costs, and
outside professional and consulting fees directly related to the restructuring plans. The costs associated with these restructurings are included in a separate line item,
“Restructuring costs,” within our consolidated statements of income.

30




Table of Contents
Three Months Ended March 26, 2011 Compared to Three Months Ended March 27, 2010
Net Sales

Net sales for the three months ended March 26, 2011 and March 27, 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

March 26, % of March 27, % of Increase
2011 Total 2010 Total $ %
Healthcare distribution (1):
Dental (2) $ 662,783 34.0% $ 614,649 34.9% $ 48,134 7.8%
Medical (3) 319,795 16.4 284,589 16.2 35,206 12.4
Animal health (4) 230,565 11.8 206,646 11.7 23,919 11.6
International (5) 678,972 34.9 609,453 34.6 69,519 114
Total healthcare distribution 1,892,115 97.1 1,715,337 97.4 176,778 10.3
Technology (6) 55,646 2.9 44,973 2.6 10,673 23.7
Total $ 1,947,761 100.0% $ 1,760,310 100.0% $ 187,451 10.6

(1) Consists of consumable products, small equipment, laboratory products, large equipment, equipment repair services, branded and generic pharmaceuticals,
vaccines, surgical products, diagnostic tests, infection-control products and vitamins.

(2) Consists of products sold in the United States and Canadian dental markets.

(3) Consists of products sold in the United States’ medical market.

(4) Consists of products sold in the United States’ animal health market.

(5) Consists of products sold in the dental, medical and animal health markets, primarily in Europe, Australia and New Zealand.

(6) Consists of practice management software and other value-added products and services, which are distributed primarily to healthcare providers in the United
States, Canada, the United Kingdom, Australia and New Zealand.

The $187.5 million, or 10.6%, increase in net sales for the three months ended March 26, 2011 includes an increase of 9.9% local currency growth (3.8%
increase in internally generated revenue and 6.1% growth from acquisitions) as well as a increase of 0.7% related to foreign currency exchange.

The $48.1 million, or 7.8%, increase in dental net sales for the three months ended March 26, 2011 includes an increase of 7.2% in local currencies (2.9%
increase in internally generated revenue and 4.3% growth from acquisitions) as well as an increase of 0.6% related to foreign currency exchange. The 7.2% increase
in local currency sales was due to increases in dental equipment sales and service revenues of 1.3% (all internally generated) and dental consumable merchandise
sales growth of 8.9% (3.3% increase in internally generated revenue and 5.6% growth from acquisitions).

The $35.2 million, or 12.4%, increase in medical net sales for the three months ended March 26, 2011 includes an increase in internally generated revenue of
9.9% and acquisition growth of 2.5%.

The $23.9 million, or 11.6%, increase in animal health net sales for the three months ended March 26, 2011 includes an increase in internally generated revenue
of 7.5% and acquisition growth of 4.1%.

The $69.5 million, or 11.4%, increase in international net sales for the three months ended March 26, 2011 includes sales growth of 9.8% in local currencies
(9.9% growth from acquisitions offset by an internally generated decrease of 0.1%) as well as an increase of 1.6% related to foreign currency exchange.

The $10.7 million, or 23.7%, increase in technology net sales for the three months ended March 26, 2011 includes an increase of 22.9% local currency growth
(13.8% internally generated growth and 9.1% growth from acquisitions) as well as a increase of 0.8% related to foreign currency exchange.
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Gross Profit

Gross profit and gross margin percentages by segment and in total for the three months ended March 26, 2011 and March 27, 2010 were as follows (in
thousands):

March 26, Gross March 27, Gross Increase
2011 Margin % 2010 Margin % $ %
Healthcare distribution $ 529,040 28.0% $ 482,010 28.1% $ 47,030 9.8%
Technology 36,782 66.1 31,023 69.0 5,759 18.6
Total $ 565,822 290 $ 513,033 29.1 52,789 10.3

For the three months ended March 26, 2011, gross profit increased $52.8 million, or 10.3%, from the comparable prior year period. As a result of different
practices of categorizing costs associated with distribution networks throughout our industry, our gross margins may not necessarily be comparable to other
distribution companies. Additionally, we realize substantially higher gross margin percentages in our technology segment than in our healthcare distribution
segment. These higher gross margins result from being both the developer and seller of software products and services, as well as certain financial services. The
software industry typically realizes higher gross margins to recover investments in research and development.

Within our healthcare distribution segment, gross profit margins may vary from one period to the next. Changes in the mix of products sold as well as changes
in our customer mix have been the most significant drivers affecting our gross profit margin. For example, sales of pharmaceutical products are generally at lower
gross profit margins than other products. Conversely, sales of our private label products achieve gross profit margins that are better than average. With respect to
customer mix, sales to our large-group customers are typically completed at lower gross margins due to the higher volumes sold as opposed to the gross margin on
sales to office-based practitioners who normally purchase lower volumes at higher frequencies.

Healthcare distribution gross profit increased $47.0 million, or 9.8%, for the three months ended March 26, 2011 compared to the prior year period. Healthcare
distribution gross profit margin decreased to 28.0% for the three months ended March 26, 2011 from 28.1% for the comparable prior year period. The decrease in
our gross profit margin is primarily due to the relative increase in sales of pharmaceutical products which occurred following our acquisition of Butler Animal Health
Holding Company (BAHS).

Technology gross profit increased $5.8 million, or 18.6%, for the three months ended March 26, 2011 compared to the prior year period. Technology gross profit
margin decreased to 66.1% for the three months ended March 26, 2011 from 69.0% for the comparable prior year period, primarily due to changes in the product
sales mix. Specifically, revenues generated from network installations, which generally are completed at a lower than average gross margin, grew at a greater rate
than electronic services (claims processing, statements generation, etc.), which typically generate higher than average gross margins.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses by segment and in total for the three months ended March 26, 2011 and March 27, 2010 were as follows (in
thousands):

% of % of
March 26, Respective March 27, Respective Increase
2011 Net Sales 2010 Net Sales $ %
Healthcare distribution $ 419,508 22.2% $ 381,110 22.2% $ 38,398 10.1%
Technology 22,014 39.6 15,879 35.3 6,135 38.6
Total $ 441,522 227 $ 396,989 226 $ 44,533 11.2

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $44.5 million, or 11.2%, to $441.5 million for the three months ended March 26, 2011 from the
comparable prior year period. As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses increased to 22.7% from 22.6% for the comparable prior
year period.
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As a component of selling, general and administrative expenses, selling expenses increased $27.5 million, or 10.6%, to $288.1 million for the three months
ended March 26, 2011 from the comparable prior year period. As a percentage of net sales, selling expenses decreased to 14.8% from 14.9% for the comparable
prior year period.

As a component of selling, general and administrative expenses, general and administrative expenses increased $17.0 million, or 12.5%, to $153.4 million for the
three months ended March 26, 2011 from the comparable prior year period. As a percentage of net sales, general and administrative expenses increased to 7.9% from
7.7% for the comparable prior year period.

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net, for the three months ended March 26, 2011 and March 27, 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

March 26, March 27, Increase
2011 2010 $ %
Interest income $ 3933 $ 3,388 $ 545 16.1%
Interest expense (8,085) (9,087) 1,002 11.0
Other, net 323 (115) 438 380.9
Other expense, net $ (3,829) $ (5,814) $ 1,985 34.1

Other expense, net decreased $2.0 million for the three months ended March 26, 2011 from the comparable prior year period. Interest income increased $0.5
million primarily due to higher investment income. Interest expense decreased $1.0 million primarily due to reduced interest expense from the redemption of our
Convertible Notes on September 3, 2010, partially offset by increased interest expense related to borrowings under our private placement shelf facilities and debt
associated with the acquisition on a majority interest in Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC, as well as interest expense related to our credit lines. In addition, Other,
net increased by $0.4 million due primarily to the impact of foreign currency exchange.

Income Taxes

For the three months ended March 26, 2011, our effective tax rate was 32.5% compared to 32.9% for the prior year period. The difference between our effective
tax rates and the federal statutory tax rates for both periods primarily relates to state and foreign income taxes.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal capital requirements include funding of acquisitions, repayments of debt principal, the funding of working capital needs, purchases of securities
and fixed assets and repurchases of common stock. Working capital requirements generally result from increased sales, special inventory forward buy-in
opportunities and payment terms for receivables and payables. Historically, sales have tended to be stronger during the third and fourth quarters and special
inventory forward buy-in opportunities have been most prevalent just before the end of the year, causing our working capital requirements to have been higher from
the end of the third quarter to the end of the first quarter of the following year.

We finance our business primarily through cash generated from our operations, revolving credit facilities and debt placements. Our ability to generate sufficient
cash flows from operations is dependent on the continued demand of our customers for our products and services, and access to products and services from our
suppliers.

Our business requires a substantial investment in working capital, which is susceptible to fluctuations during the year as a result of inventory purchase patterns
and seasonal demands. Inventory purchase activity is a function of sales activity, special inventory forward buy-in opportunities and our desired level of
inventory. We anticipate future increases in our working capital requirements.

We finance our business to provide adequate funding for at least 12 months. Funding requirements are based on forecasted profitability and working capital
needs, which, on occasion, may change. Consequently, we may change our funding structure to reflect any new requirements.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, our ability to access private debt markets and public equity markets, and our available funds under existing credit
facilities provide us with sufficient liquidity to meet our currently foreseeable short-term and long-term capital needs. We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Net cash flow provided by operating activities was $47.6 million for the three months ended March 26, 2011, compared to $21.7 million for the comparable prior
year period. This net change of $25.9 million was primarily attributable to favorable working capital changes as well as net income improvements, after taking into
account depreciation and amortization and deferred taxes.

Net cash used in investing activities was $140.7 million for the three months ended March 26, 2011, compared to $144.4 million for the comparable prior year
period. The net change of $3.7 million was primarily due to a decrease in purchases of available-for-sale securities, partially offset by increased payments for
business acquisitions. We expect to invest approximately $40 million to $50 million during the remainder of the fiscal year in capital projects to modernize and
expand our facilities and computer systems and to integrate certain operations into our existing structure.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $53.1 million for the three months ended March 26, 2011, compared to $5.6 million provided by financing activities
for the comparable prior year period. The net change of $47.5 million was primarily due to increased net borrowings and a reduction in acquisitions of noncontrolling
interests in subsidiaries, partially offset by increased repurchases of common stock.

The following table summarizes selected measures of liquidity and capital resources (in thousands):

March 26, December 25,
2011 2010

Cash and cash equivalents $ 116,712 $ 150,348

Available-for-sale securities - long-term 11,306 13,367

Working capital 1,027,308 1,001,215
Debt:

Bank credit lines $ 97,194 $ 41,508

Current maturities of long-term debt 8,357 4,487

Long-term debt 407,462 395,309

Total debt $ 513,013 $ 441,304
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Our cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and investments in money market funds representing overnight investments with a high degree of
liquidity.

Available-for-sale securities

As of March 26, 2011, we have approximately $13.0 million ($11.3 million net of temporary impairments) invested in auction-rate securities (“ARS”),
consisting of investments backed by student loans that are backed by the federal government and investments in closed-end municipal bond funds. ARS are publicly
issued securities that represent long-term investments, typically 10-30 years, in which interest rates had reset periodically (typically every 7, 28 or 35 days) through a
“dutch auction” process. Our ARS portfolio is comprised of investments that are rated AAA by major independent rating agencies. Since the middle of February
2008, these auctions have failed to settle due to an excess number of sellers compared to buyers. The failure of these auctions has resulted in our inability to liquidate
our ARS in the near term. We are currently not aware of any defaults or financial conditions that would negatively affect the issuers’ ability to continue to pay
interest and principal on our ARS. We continue to earn and receive interest at contractually agreed upon rates. We believe that the current lack of liquidity related to
our ARS investments will have no impact on our ability to fund our ongoing operations and growth opportunities. As of March 26, 2011, we have classified ARS
holdings as long-term, available-for-sale and they are included in the Investments and other line within our consolidated balance sheets.

Accounts receivable days sales outstanding and inventory turns

Our accounts receivable days sales outstanding from operations increased to 42.7 days as of March 26, 2011 from 39.6 days as of March 27, 2010. Our
inventory turns from operations decreased to 6.1 as of March 26, 2011 from 6.3 as of March 27, 2010. Our working capital accounts may be impacted by current and
future economic conditions.

Debt

On September 5, 2008, we entered into a $400.0 million revolving credit facility with a $100.0 million expansion feature. The $400.0 million credit line expires
in September 2013. The interest rate, which was 0.75% during the three months ended March 26, 2011, is based on the USD LIBOR plus a spread based on our
leverage ratio at the end of each financial reporting quarter. In addition to the amounts outstanding under our shelf facilities, as discussed below, we have outstanding
borrowings of approximately $79.0 million under our $400.0 million credit facility. As of March 26, 2011, we had various other short-term bank credit lines
available, of which approximately $18.2 million was outstanding. As of March 26, 2011, there were $9.8 million of letters of credit provided to third parties.

On August 10, 2010, we entered into $400.0 million private placement facilities with two insurance companies. These shelf facilities are available through
August 2013 on an uncommitted basis. The facilities allow us to issue senior promissory notes to the lenders at a fixed rate based on an agreed upon spread over
applicable treasury notes at the time of issuance. The term of each possible issuance will be selected by us and can range from five to 15 years (with an average life
no longer than 12 years). The proceeds of any issuances under the facilities will be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital and capital
expenditures, to refinance existing indebtedness and/or to fund potential acquisitions. As of March 26, 2011, we have an outstanding balance under the facilities of
$100.0 million at a fixed rate of 3.79%, which is due on September 2, 2020.

Effective December 31, 2009, Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC, or BAHS, a majority-owned subsidiary whose financial information is consolidated with ours,
had incurred approximately $320.0 million of debt (of which $37.5 million was provided by Henry Schein, Inc.) in connection with our acquisition of a majority
interest in BAHS. The remaining outstanding balance of $278.4 million is reflected in our consolidated balance sheet as of March 26, 2011.

The debt incurred as part of the acquisition of BAHS is repayable in 23 quarterly installments of $0.8 million through September 30, 2015, and a final
installment of $301.6 million on December 31, 2015. Interest on the BAHS debt is charged at LIBOR plus a margin of 3.5% with a LIBOR floor of 2% for a current
effective rate of 5.5% as of March 26, 2011. The debt agreement contains provisions which, under certain circumstances, require BAHS to make prepayments of the
loan commitment based on
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excess cash flows of BAHS as defined in the debt agreement. The debt agreement also contains provisions that require BAHS to hedge risks related to potential
rising interest rates. As a result, BAHS entered into a series of interest rate caps, for which we elected hedge accounting treatment, with a notional amount of $160.0
million, protecting against LIBOR interest rates rising above 3.0% through March 30, 2012.

Acquisitions

On December 31, 2010, we acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of Provet Holdings Limited (ASX: PVT), Australia's largest distributor of veterinary
products with sales in its 2010 fiscal year of approximately $278 million, for approximately $91 million, in a cash-for-stock exchange.

Stock repurchases

From June 21, 2004 through March 26, 2011, we repurchased $327.1 million, or 7,049,576 shares, under our common stock repurchase programs. On
November 16, 2010, our Board of Directors authorized an additional $100.0 million for additional repurchases of our common stock, $72.9 million of which is
available as of March 26, 2011 for future common stock share repurchases.

Redeemable noncontrolling interests

Some minority shareholders in certain of our subsidiaries have the right, at certain times, to require us to acquire their ownership interest in those entities at fair
value. ASC Topic 480-10 is applicable for noncontrolling interests where we are or may be required to purchase all or a portion of the outstanding interest in a
consolidated subsidiary from the noncontrolling interest holder under the terms of a put option contained in contractual agreements. The components of the change
in the Redeemable noncontrolling interests for the three months ended March 26, 2011 and the year ended December 25, 2010 are presented in the following table:

March 26, December 25,
2011 2010

Balance, beginning of period $ 304,140 $ 178,570
Net increase in redeemable noncontrolling interests

due to business acquisitions, net of redemptions 13,354 62,314
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests 6,381 26,054
Dividends declared (740) (12,360)
Effect of foreign currency translation attributable to

redeemable noncontrolling interests 1,892 (2,281)
Change in fair value of redeemable securities 101,033 51,843
Balance, end of period $ 426,060 $ 304,140

Changes in the estimated redemption amounts of the noncontrolling interests subject to put options are adjusted at each reporting period with a corresponding
adjustment to Additional paid-in capital. Future reductions in the carrying amounts are subject to a “floor” amount that is equal to the fair value of the redeemable
noncontrolling interests at the time they were originally recorded. The recorded value of the redeemable noncontrolling interests cannot go below the floor
level. These adjustments do not impact the calculation of earnings per share.

Additionally, some prior owners of such acquired subsidiaries are eligible to receive additional purchase price cash consideration if certain financial targets are
met. For acquisitions completed prior to 2009, we accrue liabilities that may arise from these transactions when we believe that the outcome of the contingency is
determinable beyond a reasonable doubt. For 2009 and future acquisitions, as required by ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinations,” we have and will accrue
liabilities for the estimated fair value of additional purchase price adjustments at the time of the acquisition. Any adjustments to these accrual amounts will be
recorded in our consolidated statement of income.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no material changes in our critical accounting policies and estimates from those disclosed in Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 25, 2010.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

There have been no material changes in our exposure to market risk from that disclosed in Item 7A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 25, 2010.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this annual report as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Based on this evaluation, our
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
March 26, 2011 to ensure that all material information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to them as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and that all such information is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported as specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The combination of continued acquisition activity, ongoing acquisition integrations and systems implementations undertaken during the quarter and carried over
from prior quarters, when considered in the aggregate, represents a material change in our internal control over financial reporting.

During the quarter ended March 26, 2011, we completed acquisitions of North American and international Animal Health, Dental and Technology businesses
with approximate aggregate annual revenues of $284.0 million. In addition, post-acquisition related activities continued for the North American Animal Health and
Dental businesses acquired during 2010, representing aggregate annual revenues of approximately $979.0 million. These acquisitions, which utilize separate
information and financial accounting systems, have been included in our consolidated financial statements. Integration activities were completed during the quarter
ended March 26, 2011 for international Dental, Medical and Animal Health businesses with approximate aggregate annual revenues of $751.0 million. Finally, for
our Dental business in the United States, post-implementation related activities continued for the new sales compensation system which supports accounting for
annual sales commissions of approximately $131.0 million.

All acquisitions, acquisition integrations and systems implementations involved necessary and appropriate change-management controls that are considered in
our annual assessment of the design and operating effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations of the Effectiveness of Internal Control
A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the internal control

system are met. Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control system, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues, if
any, within a company have been detected.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may become a party to legal proceedings, including, without limitation, product liability claims, employment matters, commercial
disputes and other matters arising out of the ordinary course of our business. In our opinion, pending matters will not have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations.

We have various insurance policies, including product liability insurance, covering risks in amounts that we consider adequate. In many cases in which we have
been sued in connection with products manufactured by others, the manufacturer provides us with indemnification. There can be no assurance that the insurance
coverage we maintain is sufficient or will be available in adequate amounts or at a reasonable cost, or that indemnification agreements will provide us with adequate
protection.

As of March 26, 2011, we had accrued our best estimate of potential losses relating to product liability and other claims that were probable to result in a liability
and for which we were able to reasonably estimate a loss. This accrued amount, as well as related expenses, was not material to our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. Our method for determining estimated losses considers currently available facts, presently enacted laws and regulations and other external
factors, including probable recoveries from third parties.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in Part 1, Item 1A, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 25,
2010.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Purchases of equity securities by the issuer

Our current share repurchase program, announced on June 21, 2004, originally allowed us to repurchase up to $100.0 million of shares of our common stock,
which represented approximately 3.5% of the shares outstanding at the commencement of the program. On October 31, 2005, March 28, 2007 and November 16,
2010, our Board of Directors authorized an additional $100.0 million, for a total of $400.0 million, of shares of our common stock to be repurchased under this
program. As of March 26, 2011, we had repurchased $327.1 million of common stock (7,049,576 shares) under this initiative, with $72.9 million available for future
common stock share repurchases.

The following table summarizes repurchases of our common stock under our stock repurchase program during the fiscal quarter ended March 26, 2011:

Maximum
Total Number Number
Total of Shares of Shares
Purchased as
Number Average Part that May Yet
Be Purchased
of Shares Price Paid of Our Publicly Under
Announced Our Program
Fiscal Month Purchased (1) Per Share Program (2)
12/26/10 through 01/29/11 120,355 $ 62.32 120,355 1,413,941
01/30/11 through 02/26/11 - - - 1,332,470
02/27/11 through 03/26/11 289,400 $ 67.72 289,400 1,080,676
409,755 409,755

(1) All repurchases were executed in the open market under our existing publicly announced authorized program.

(2) The maximum number of shares that may yet be purchased under this program is determined at the end of each month based on the closing price of our common
stock at that time.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibits.

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

31.1

31.2

32.1

Master Note Facility, dated as of August 9, 2010, by and among us, New York Life Investment Management LLC and each New York Life affiliate
which becomes party thereto.+*

Private Shelf Agreement, dated as of August 9, 2010, by and among the Company, Prudential Investment Management, Inc. and each Prudential
affiliate which becomes party thereto.+*

Credit Agreement among us, the several lenders parties thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and HSBC Bank USA, N.A.,
The Bank of New York Mellon, and UniCredit Markets and Investment Banking, acting through Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG, New York
Branch, as co-syndication agents, dated as of September 5, 2008.+*

Amendment dated November 29, 2009 to the Credit Agreement among us, the several lenders parties thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent and HSBC Bank USA, N.A., The Bank of New York Mellon, and UniCredit Markets and Investment Banking, acting through
Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG, New York Branch, as co-syndication agents, dated as of September 5, 2008.+*

Credit Agreement among Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC, the several lenders parties thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative
agent, dated as of December 31, 2009.+*

First Amendment dated December 21, 2010 to the Credit Agreement among Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC, the several lenders parties thereto,
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, dated as of December 31, 2009.+*

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

+ Filed herewith
* Pursuant to a request for confidential treatment, portions of this Exhibit have been redacted from the publicly filed document and have been furnished
separately to the Securities and Exchange Commission as required by Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

Henry Schein, Inc.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Steven Paladino

Steven Paladino

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

(Authorized Signatory and Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

Dated: May 3, 2011
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EXECUTION VERSION

Portions of this agreement have been omitted and separately filed with the SEC with a request for confidential treatment. The location of those omissions
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HEeNRY ScHEIN, INc.
135 Duryea Roap
MEeLviLLe, NEw York 17747

August 9, 2010

New York Life Investment Management LLC
51 Madison Avenue, 2" Floor
New York, New York 10010

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Henry Schein, Inc. a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), agrees with New York Life Investment Management LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company (“New York Life”) and each New York Life Affiliate (as defined herein) which becomes bound by this Agreement as provided herein (each, a
“Purchaser” and, collectively, the “Purchasers”) as follows. Certain capitalized and other terms used in this Agreement are defined in Schedule A; references to a
“Schedule” or an “Exhibit” are to a Schedule or an Exhibit attached to this Agreement unless otherwise specified, and references to any time of day are to New York
City local time unless otherwise specified.

SEcTION 1. AUTHORIZATION OF NOTES.

Section 1.1. Authorization. The Company may, from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, authorize the issue of senior
promissory notes (the “Notes) in an aggregate outstanding principal amount not to exceed $150,000,000 at any time, each to be dated the date of its issue, bearing
interest on the unpaid balance from the date of original issuance at the rate per annum as provided by the terms of this Agreement, to mature no more than 15 years
after the date of original issuance and to have an average life of no more than 12 years after the date of original issuance. Each Note will also be subject to the other
terms of that Note as described in the Confirmation of Acceptance for the Note delivered pursuant to Section 2.6. Each Note will be substantially in the form of
attached Exhibit A and the term “Note” and “Notes” as used in this Agreement includes each Note delivered pursuant to any provision of this Agreement and each
Note delivered in substitution or exchange for any Note pursuant to any such provision. Notes that have (a) the same final maturity, (b) the same principal
prepayment dates, (c) the same principal prepayment amounts (as a percentage of the original principal amount of each Note), (d) the same interest rate, (e) the same
interest payment periods, and (f) the same date of issuance (which, in the case of a Note issued in exchange for another Note, is deemed for these purposes the date
on which such Note’s ultimate predecessor Note was issued), are a “Series” of Notes.




SECTION 2. NortEe FAciLiTy.

Section 2.1. Facility. New York Life is willing to consider from time to time, in its sole discretion and within limits that may be authorized for
purchase by New York Life and New York Life Affiliates, the purchase of Notes pursuant to this Agreement. The willingness of New York Life to consider such
purchase of Notes is the “Facility.” NOTWITHSTANDING THE WILLINGNESS OF NEW YORK LIFE TO CONSIDER PURCHASES OF NOTES BY
NEW YORK LIFE OR NEW YORK LIFE AFFILIATES, THIS AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO ON THE EXPRESS UNDERSTANDING THAT
NEITHER NEW YORK LIFE NOR ANY NEW YORK LIFE AFFILIATE WILL BE OBLIGATED TO MAKE OR ACCEPT OFFERS TO PURCHASE
NOTES, OR, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 2, TO QUOTE RATES, SPREADS OR OTHER TERMS WITH RESPECT TO
SPECIFIC PURCHASES OF NOTES, AND THE FACILITY IS NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A COMMITMENT BY NEW YORK LIFE OR ANY
NEW YORK LIFE AFFILIATE.

Section 2.2. Issuance Period. Notes may be issued and sold pursuant to this Agreement until the earlier of:

(a) the third anniversary of the date of this Agreement (or if such anniversary is not a Business Day, the Business Day next preceding that
anniversary);

(b) the thirtieth day after New York Life gives to the Company, or the Company gives to New York Life, written notice stating that it elects to

terminate the issuance and sale of Notes pursuant to this Agreement (or if such thirtieth day is not a Business Day, the Business Day next preceding such thirtieth
day);

(©) the Closing Date after which there is no Available Facility Amount;
(d) the termination of the Facility under Section 12.1 of this Agreement; and
(e) the acceleration of any Note under Section 12.1 of this Agreement.

The period during which Notes may be issued and sold pursuant to this Agreement is the “Issuance Period.”

Section 2.3. Periodic Spread Information. On any Business Day during the Issuance Period and when an Available Facility Amount exists, the
Company may request by e-mail or telephone to New York Life, and New York Life will, to the extent reasonably practicable, provide to the Company on that
Business Day (if such request is received not later than 9:30 A.M.) or on the following Business Day (if such request is received after 9:30 A.M.) information by e-
mail or telephone with respect to various spreads at which New York Life Affiliates might be interested in purchasing Notes of different average lives. The
Company, however, will not make such a request more frequently than once in every Business Day or such other period as mutually agreed to by the Company and
New York Life. The amount and content of information to be provided is in the sole discretion of New York Life, but it is the intent of New York Life to provide
information that will be of use to the Company in determining whether to submit a Request for Purchase under Section 2.4. The delivery of the information
requested is not an offer to purchase Notes, and neither New York Life nor any New York Life Affiliate is obligated to purchase Notes at the spreads specified. New
York Life may suspend or terminate providing information pursuant to this Section 2.3 for any reason in its sole discretion, including its determination that the credit
quality of the Company has declined since the date of this Agreement.




Section 2.4. Request for Purchase. The Company may, from time to time during the Issuance Period, make requests for purchases of Notes (each
request is called a “Request for Purchase”). Each Request for Purchase will be made to New York Life by e-mail or overnight delivery service, and must:

(a) specify the aggregate principal amount of Notes covered by the Request for Purchase, in an amount not less than $20,000,000 and not greater than
the Available Facility Amount at the time the Request for Purchase is made;

(b) specify the principal amounts, final maturities (which are no more than 15 years from the date of issuance), average life (which is no more than 12
years from the date of issuance) and principal prepayment dates (if any) of the Notes covered by the Request for Purchase;

(©) specify whether interest payments on such Notes are to be made quarterly or semi-annually in arrears;
(d) specify the use or uses of proceeds of such Notes;
(e) specify the proposed Closing Date for such Notes, which will be a Business Day during the Issuance Period not less than 10 days and not more

than 20 days (or as otherwise agreed) after the making of that Request for Purchase;

® attach replacement Schedules 5.11 and 5.14 of this Agreement (the “Updated Schedules”), to the extent the Company proposes a change to the
then existing corresponding Schedules, marked to show changes from such Schedules,

(8) certify that after giving effect to the replacement of Schedules 5.11 and 5.14 with the Updated Schedules, the representation and warranties
contained in Section 5 are true in all material respects (other than those representations and warranties that are expressly qualified by a Material Adverse Effect, in
which case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects) on and as of the date of such Request for Purchase and that there exists on the
date of such Request for Purchase no Default or Event of Default; and

(h) be substantially in the form of the attached Exhibit B.

Each Request for Purchase must be in writing and will be deemed made when received by New York Life.




Section 2.5. Spread Quotes. Not later than five Business Days after New York Life receives a Request for Purchase pursuant to Section 2.4, New
York Life may, but is under no obligation to, provide to the Company by telephone or e-mail, in each case between 9:30 A.M. and 1:30 P.M. (or such later time as
New York Life may elect) quotes for interest rate spreads for the several principal amounts, maturities, principal prepayment schedules, and interest payment periods
(whether quarterly or semi-annually) of Notes specified in that Request for Purchase. Spreads quoted for Notes shall be spreads over U.S. Treasury securities closest
to the maturities specified in the Request for Purchase or an interpolated maturity. Each quote will represent the interest rate spread per annum at which a New York
Life Affiliate would be willing to purchase such Notes at 100% of the principal amount thereof.

Section 2.6. Acceptance. By 11 a.m. on next Business Day after New York Life provides interest rate spread quotes pursuant to Section 2.5 or such
shorter period as New York Life may specify to the Company (such period, the “Acceptance Window”), the Company may, subject to Section 2.7, elect to accept
those quotes as to not less than $20,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Notes specified in the related Request for Purchase. Each election must be made by a
Responsible Officer of the Company, notifying New York Life by telephone or e-mail within the Acceptance Window that the Company elects to accept a spread
quote, specifying the Notes (each such Note being an “Accepted Note”) as to which such acceptance (the “Acceptance”) relates. By the close of business on the day
of such Acceptance or as mutually agreed between such parties, the Company and New York Life shall agree (and shall each be required to agree based on customary
interest rate determination practices) on the interest rate for the Accepted Notes based on such spread quote. The day an interest rate is agreed with respect to
Accepted Notes is the “Acceptance Day” for such Accepted Notes. Any quotes as to which New York Life does not receive an Acceptance within the Acceptance
Window or which do not result in an agreement as to an interest rate will expire, and no purchase or sale of Notes will be made based on those expired
quotes. Subject to Section 2.7 and the other terms and conditions of this Agreement with respect to the applicable Closing Date, the Company will sell to New York
Life or a New York Life Affiliate, and New York Life or a New York Life Affiliate will purchase the Accepted Notes at 100% of the principal amount of those
Accepted Notes. Within three Business Days following the Acceptance Day, New York Life will deliver to the Company a duly completed and executed
confirmation of the Acceptance substantially in the form of Exhibit C (the “Confirmation of Acceptance”). If the Company does not execute and deliver such
Confirmation of Acceptance within four Business Days following the Acceptance Day, New York Life or any New York Life Affiliate may, at its election, cancel the
purchase and sale with respect to those Accepted Notes by notifying the Company in writing.

Section 2.7. Market Disruption. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if New York Life provides quotes pursuant to Section 2.5,
and a Market Disruption occurs prior to agreement of the interest rate for Accepted Notes in accordance with Section 2.6, then such quotes will expire, and no
purchase or sale of Notes will be made (or be required to be made) based on those expired quotes. If after the occurrence of any such Market Disruption the
Company notifies New York Life of the Acceptance of such quotes, such Acceptance will be ineffective for all purposes of this Agreement, and New York Life will
promptly notify the Company that the provisions of this Section 2.7 are applicable with respect to such Acceptance. “Market Disruption” means the occurrence of
any of the following: (a) the domestic market for U.S. Treasury securities has closed, or (b) a general suspension, or significant disruption of trading in securities
generally on the New York Stock Exchange or in the domestic market for U.S. Treasury securities.




Section 2.8 Refund of Facility Fee. If New York Life elects to terminate the Issuance Period pursuant to Section 2.2(b) of this Agreement on or
before February 9, 2011, New York Life shall promptly refund to the Company an amount equal to the Refund Percentage (calculated as of the date such termination
is effective) of the Facility Fee in cash to the following account of the Company: BNY Mellon Bank, Pittsburgh, PA 15262, ABA No.: 043000261, Account
Name: Henry Schein Inc., Account Number: 078-5506, Reference: Private Placement or such other account as the Company shall designate in writing to New York
Life.

SEcTION 3. CLOSINGS.

Section 3.1. Facility Closings. Not later than 11:30 A.M. on the Closing Date for any Accepted Notes, the Company will deliver to each Purchaser
the Accepted Notes to be purchased by such Purchaser in the form of one or more Notes in authorized denominations as such Purchaser may request in writing. The
Accepted Notes will be dated the Closing Date and registered in the Purchaser’s name (or in the name of its designated nominee or nominees, if any), delivered
against payment of the purchase price thereof by transfer of immediately available funds. If the Company fails to tender an Accepted Note prior to 11:30 A.M. on
the scheduled Closing Date for those Accepted Notes or on such other Business Day thereafter during the Issuance Period as may be agreed upon by the Company
and New York Life or any of the conditions specified in Section 4 are not fulfilled by such time, New York Life and each Purchaser may cancel such purchase and
sale, without waiving any rights that New York Life or such Purchaser may have by reason of such failure or non-fulfillment, including any right pursuant to Section
15.1 to require payment of reasonable, documented and invoiced transaction expenses by the Company.

Section 3.2. Facility Fee. On the date of this Agreement, the Company will pay to New York Life in immediately available funds a fee (the “Facility
Fee”) in an amount equal to $75,000.

Section 3.3. Updates to Schedules. Upon the issuance of any Series of Notes, any Updated Schedules attached to the Request for Purchase for such
Series of Notes shall be deemed to replace automatically the then existing corresponding Schedules to this Agreement in their entirety.

SEcTION 4. ConbpiTtions To CLOSING.

Each Purchaser’s obligation to purchase and pay for the Notes to be sold to such Purchaser at any Closing is subject to the fulfillment to such Purchaser’s
reasonable satisfaction, prior to or at such Closing, of the following conditions:

Section 4.1. Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of the Company in this Agreement, after giving effect to the
replacement of Schedules 5.11 and 5.14, if any, with the Updated Schedules attached to the Request for Purchase for such Notes, shall be correct in all material
respects (other than those representations and warranties that are expressly qualified by a Material Adverse Effect, in which case such representations and warranties
shall be true and correct in all respects) when made and at the time of such Closing, except to the extent that such representations and warranties specifically refer to
an earlier date, in which case they shall be true and correct (in all material respects as applicable) as of such earlier date.




Section 4.2. Performance; No Default. The Company shall have performed and complied in all material respects with all agreements and conditions
contained in this Agreement required to be performed or complied with by it prior to or at such Closing and, after giving effect to the issue and sale of the Notes to be
purchased (and the application of the proceeds thereof as contemplated by the related Request for Purchase), no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and
be continuing.

Section 4.3. Compliance Certificates.

(a) Officer’s Certificate. The Company shall have delivered to such Purchaser an Officer’s Certificate, dated the Closing Date, certifying that the
conditions specified in Sections 4.1, 4.2 and 4.8 have been fulfilled.

(b) Secretary’s Certificate. The Company shall have delivered to such Purchaser a certificate of its Secretary or Assistant Secretary, dated the Closing
Date, certifying as to the resolutions attached thereto, incumbency of applicable officers and other corporate proceedings relating to the authorization, execution and
delivery of related Notes.

Section 4.4. Opinions of Counsel. Such Purchaser shall have received opinions in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to such Purchaser,
dated the Closing Date (a) from Proskauer Rose LLP (or successor counsel), special counsel for the Company, covering the matters set forth in Exhibit D and
covering such other matters incident to the transactions contemplated hereby as such Purchaser or its counsel may reasonably request (and the Company hereby
instructs its counsel to deliver such opinion to the Purchasers) and (b) from King & Spalding LLP (or successor counsel), the Purchasers’ special counsel in
connection with such transactions, in a form acceptable to the Purchasers and covering such other matters incident to such transactions as such Purchaser may
reasonably request.

Section 4.5. Purchase Permitted By Applicable Law, Etc. On the Closing Date such Purchaser’s purchase of Notes shall (a) be permitted by the
laws and regulations of each jurisdiction to which such Purchaser is subject, without recourse to provisions (such as section 1405(a)(8) of the New York Insurance
Law) permitting limited investments by insurance companies without restriction as to the character of the particular investment, and (b) not violate any applicable
law or regulation (including, without limitation, Regulation T, U or X of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System).

Section 4.6. Payment of Fees. Without limiting the provisions of Section 15.1, the Company shall have paid on or before the Closing all reasonable,
documented and invoiced fees, charges and disbursements of the Purchasers’ special counsel referred to in Section 4.4 to the extent reflected in a statement of such
counsel rendered to the Company at least one Business Day prior to the Closing Date.




Section 4.7. Private Placement Number. A Private Placement Number issued by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Bureau (in cooperation with the
SVO) shall have been obtained for the Notes to be purchased.

Section 4.8. Changes in Corporate Structure. The Company shall not have changed its jurisdiction of incorporation or organization, as applicable,
or been a party to any merger or consolidation or succeeded to all or any substantial part of the liabilities of any other entity, except to the extent permitted under
Section 10.4, at any time following the date of the most recent financial statements referred to in Section 5.1.

Section 4.9. Funding Instructions. At least two Business Days prior to the Closing Date, each Purchaser shall have received written instructions
signed by a Responsible Officer on letterhead of the Company confirming (i) the name and address of the transferee bank, (ii) such transferee bank’s ABA number
and (iii) the account name and number into which the purchase price for the Notes is to be deposited.

Section 4.10. Other Conditions. Any special conditions to such purchase which may be specified by New York Life and agreed to by the Company at
or prior to the time of the Confirmation of Acceptance, such as repayment of existing Indebtedness, shall have been fulfilled.

Section 4.11. Financial Statements. Such Purchaser shall have received financial statements of the type described in Section 7.1(a) and (b) for all
periods ending after December 26, 2009 and prior to the 90" day preceding the Closing Date.

Section 4.12. Proceedings. All corporate or similar authorizations by the Company and each Guarantor required for the issuance, purchase and sale of
the Notes by the Company and for the execution, delivery and performance of all documents and instruments required to consummate such transactions shall be
reasonably satisfactory to such Purchaser and its special counsel.

Section 4.13. Closing Documents. Such Purchaser shall have received the following, each dated the Closing Date and in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to such Purchaser:

(a) The Note(s) to be purchased by such Purchaser, duly executed by an Responsible Officer of the Company.
(b) A good standing certificate for the Company from the Secretary of State of Delaware, and from each Guarantor from the Secretary of

State of the state of its organization, in each case dated of a recent date and such other evidence of the status of the Company as the Purchaser may
reasonably request.




(0) Duly executed counterparts to a Guaranty Agreement in the form of Exhibit E from each Restricted Subsidiary of the Company that is
either (x) a guarantor of the obligations of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary under a Principal Debt Facility, (y) a borrower or other obligor under a
Principal Debt Facility or (z) a guarantor of other Notes.

(d) Such documents and certifications as the Purchasers may reasonably require at least 3 Business Days prior to the Closing Date to
evidence that the Company and each Guarantor is duly organized or formed.

(e) To the extent requested by the Purchasers at least 3 Business Days prior to the Closing Date, certified copies of Requests for Information
or Copies (Form UCC 11) or equivalent reports listing all effective financing statements which name the Company or any Guarantor (under their present
names and previous names) as debtor and which are filed in the central filing office of the jurisdiction in which the Company or such Guarantor, as
applicable, is organized, together with copies of such financing statements.

®) With respect to the initial Closing Date, duly executed counterparts to an amendment to Section 8.8 of the Existing Credit Facility as in
effect on the date hereof (or any equivalent provision in any replacement Principal Debt Facility), permitting the provisions of Section 10.2 hereof, in form
and substance reasonably acceptable to the Purchasers.

() All such counterpart originals or certified or other copies of such documents as such Purchaser or such Purchaser’s special counsel may
reasonably request at least 3 Business Days in advance of the Closing Date.

SECTION 5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY.
The Company represents and warrants to each Purchaser that:
Section 5.1. Financial Condition.

(a) The consolidated and consolidating balance sheets of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as at December 27, 2008 and
December 26, 2009, respectively, and the related consolidated and consolidating statements of operations and of cash flows for the fiscal years ended on
such dates, reported on by BDO Seidman, LLP, copies of which have heretofore been furnished to each Purchaser, present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated and consolidating financial condition of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as at such dates, and the consolidated and consolidating
results of their operations and of their cash flows for the fiscal years then ended. All such financial statements, including the related schedules and notes
thereto, were, as of the date prepared, prepared in accordance with GAAP applied consistently throughout the periods involved (except as otherwise
expressly noted therein, and show all material Indebtedness and other liabilities, direct or contingent, of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries as of the
dates thereof, including liabilities for taxes, material commitments and Indebtedness. Neither the Company nor any of its consolidated Subsidiaries had, at
the date of the most recent balance sheets referred to above, any material Guarantee Obligation, material contingent liability or material liability for taxes, or
any material long-term lease or material forward or long-term commitment, including, without limitation, any interest rate or foreign currency swap or
exchange transaction, which is not reflected in the foregoing statements or in the notes thereto.




(b) As of the date hereof, there are no liabilities or obligations of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, whether direct or indirect, absolute
or contingent, or matured or unmatured, other than (i) as disclosed or provided for in the financial statements and notes thereto which are referred to above,
(ii) which are disclosed elsewhere in this Agreement or in the Schedules hereto, (iii) arising in the ordinary course of business since December 26, 2009, (iv)
created by this Agreement or (v) liabilities or obligations which, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect. As of the date hereof, the written information, exhibits and reports furnished by the Company to the Purchasers in connection with the
negotiation of this Agreement, taken as a whole, are complete and correct in all material respects.

Section 5.2. No Material Adverse Change. Since December 26, 2009, there has been no development or event which has had or could reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.3. Organization; Powers. Each of the Company, its Restricted Subsidiaries and with respect to clause (d) only, all Subsidiaries (a) is duly
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization, (b) has the requisite corporate or other applicable power and
authority, and the legal right (in all material respects), to own and operate its property, to lease the property it operates as lessee and to conduct the business in which
it is currently engaged, (c) where legally applicable, is duly qualified as a foreign corporation or other applicable entity and in good standing (or equivalent status)
under the laws of each jurisdiction where its ownership, lease or operation of property or the conduct of its business requires such qualification and (d) is in
compliance with all Requirements of Law (provided that no representation or warranty is made in this subsection 5.3(d) with respect to Requirements of Law referred
to in subsections 5.8, 5.10, 5.14 or 5.15), except to the extent that the failure of the foregoing clauses (a) (only with respect to Subsidiaries of the Company which are
not Guarantors), (c) and (d) to be true and correct could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.4. Authorization; Enforceability. Each of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries has the requisite corporate or other applicable
power and authority, and the legal right in all material respects, to make, deliver and perform the Note Documents to which it is a party, if any, and in the case of the
Company, to issue the Notes hereunder and has taken all necessary corporate action to authorize (in the case of the Company) the issuance of the Notes on the terms
and conditions of this Agreement and any Notes and to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of the Note Documents to which it is a party. No consent
or authorization of, filing with, notice to or other act by or in respect of, any Governmental Authority or any other Person is required with respect to the Company or
any of its Restricted Subsidiaries in connection with the issuance of the Notes hereunder or with the execution, delivery, performance, validity or enforceability of the
Note Documents to which the Company or any Guarantor (if any) is a party except for such consents, authorizations, filings, notices or other acts which, individually
or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. This Agreement and each other Note Document to which the Company or
any Guarantor (if any) is, or is to become, a party has been or will be, duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Company or such Guarantor (if any). This
Agreement and each other Note Document to which the Company or any Guarantor (if any) is, or is to become, a party constitutes or, upon execution and delivery
thereof, will constitute, a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company or such Guarantor (if any), as the case may be, enforceable against the Company or such
Guarantor (if any), as the case may be, in accordance with its terms, subject to the effects of bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent conveyance, reorganization,
moratorium and other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally, general equitable principles (whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at
law) and an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.




Section 5.5. No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of the Note Documents, the issuance of the Notes, the guarantees of the Notes
and the use of proceeds thereof (i) will not violate any Requirement of Law or Contractual Obligation of the Company or of any of its Subsidiaries, except for such
violations which, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect and (ii) will not result in, or require, the
creation or imposition of any Lien on any of its or their respective properties or revenues pursuant to any such Requirement of Law or Contractual Obligation which,
individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.6. No Material Litigation. No litigation, investigations or proceedings of or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authority are pending
or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened in writing by or against the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries or against any of its or their respective
properties (a) with respect to any of the Note Documents or any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or (b) that, if adversely determined, individually
or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.7. Compliance with Laws. Each of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries is in compliance with all laws, regulations and orders of
any Governmental Authority applicable to it or its property, except where the failure to do so, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.8. Taxes. Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has timely filed or caused to be filed all Federal, state and other material Tax returns
and reports required to have been filed and has paid or caused to be paid all such Taxes required to have been paid by it, except (a) Taxes that are being contested in
good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which the Company or such Subsidiary, as applicable, has set aside on its books adequate reserves or (b) to the extent
that the failure to do so, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
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Section 5.9. Use of Proceeds; Margin Regulations. The Company will apply the proceeds of the sale of the Notes as set forth in the Request for
Purchase of such Notes. No part of the proceeds from the sale of the Notes hereunder will be used, directly or indirectly, for the purpose of buying or carrying any
margin stock within the meaning of Regulation U of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (12 CFR 221), or for the purpose of buying or carrying
or trading in any securities under such circumstances as to involve the Company in a violation of Regulation X of such Board (12 CFR 224) or to involve any broker
or dealer in a violation of Regulation T of such Board (12 CFR 220). Margin stock does not constitute more than 5.0% of the value of the consolidated assets of the
Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries and the Company does not have any present intention that margin stock will constitute more than 5.0% of the value of such
assets. As used in this Section, the terms “margin stock” and “purpose of buying or carrying” shall have the meanings assigned to them in Regulation U.

Section 5.10. Environmental Matters.

(a) Except for the Disclosed Matters and except with respect to any other matters that, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, neither the Company nor any of its Restricted Subsidiaries (i) has failed to comply with any Environmental
Law or to obtain, maintain or comply with any permit, license or other approval required under any Environmental Law, (ii) has become subject to any
Environmental Liability or has actual knowledge of a potential claim that is reasonably likely to result in Environmental Liability to the Company or any of
its Restricted Subsidiaries or (iii) has received written notice of any claim with respect to any Environmental Liability.

(b) Since the date of this Agreement, with respect to any Environmental Liability, there has been no change in the status of the Disclosed
Matters that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.11. Disclosure. The statements and information contained herein and in any of the information provided to the Purchasers in writing (other
than financial projections) in connection with or pursuant to this Agreement, taken as a whole, do not contain any untrue statement of any material fact, or omit to
state a fact necessary in order to make such statements or information not misleading in any material respect, in each case in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made or information provided as of the date so provided.

Section 5.12. Ownership of Property: Liens. Each of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries has good and sufficient title in fee simple to, or
valid leasehold interests in, all real property necessary or occupied in the ordinary conduct of its business, except for such defects in title which, individually or in the
aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.13. Compliance with ERISA.

(a) The Company and each ERISA Affiliate have operated and administered each Plan in compliance with all applicable laws except for such
instances of noncompliance as have not resulted in and could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor
any ERISA Affiliate has incurred any liability pursuant to Title I or IV of ERISA or the penalty or excise tax provisions of the Code relating to employee
benefit plans (as defined in section 3 of ERISA), and no event, transaction or condition has occurred or exists that could reasonably be expected to result in
the incurrence of any such liability by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate, or in the imposition of any Lien on any of the rights, properties or assets of the
Company or any ERISA Affiliate, in either case pursuant to Title I or IV of ERISA or to such penalty or excise tax provisions or to section 401(a)(29) or
412 of the Code or section 4068 of ERISA, other than such liabilities or Liens as would not be individually, or in the aggregate, Material.
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(b) The present value of the aggregate benefit liabilities under each of the Plans (other than Multiemployer Plans), determined as of the end
of such Plan’s most recently ended plan year on the basis of the actuarial assumptions specified for funding purposes in such Plan’s most recent actuarial
valuation report, did not exceed the aggregate current value of the assets of such Plan allocable to such benefit liabilities by an amount that could reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. The term “benefit liabilities” has the meaning specified in section 4001 of ERISA and the terms “current
value” and “present value” have the meaning specified in section 3 of ERISA.

(o) The Company and its ERISA Affiliates have not incurred withdrawal liabilities (and are not subject to contingent withdrawal liabilities)
under section 4201 or 4204 of ERISA in respect of Multiemployer Plans that individually or in the aggregate are Material.

(d) The expected postretirement benefit obligation (determined as of the last day of the Company’s most recently ended fiscal year in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 106, without regard to liabilities attributable to continuation coverage mandated by
section 4980B of the Code) of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries is not Material.

(e) The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the issuance and sale of the Notes hereunder will not involve any transaction that is
subject to the prohibitions of section 406 of ERISA or in connection with which a tax could be imposed pursuant to section 4975(c)(1)(A)-(D) of the
Code. The representation by the Company to each Purchaser in the first sentence of this Section 5.13(e) is made in reliance upon and subject to the accuracy
of such Purchaser’s representation in Section 6.2 as to the sources of the funds used to pay the purchase price of the Notes to be purchased by such
Purchaser.

Section 5.14. Subsidiaries. The Company has no Subsidiaries other than those specifically disclosed in Part (a) of Schedule 5.14 (other than those
which are “shell” or “inactive” Subsidiaries, as such terms are defined in subsection 10.4(d)) and has no equity investments in any other corporation or entity other
than those specifically disclosed in Part (b) of Schedule 5.14. As of the date of this Agreement, all Subsidiaries of the Company are Restricted Subsidiaries other
than those Unrestricted Subsidiaries listed in Part (c) of Schedule 5.14.
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Section 5.15. Investment and Holding Company Status. Neither the Company nor any of its Restricted Subsidiaries is an “investment company” as
defined in, or subject to regulation under, the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Section 5.16. Guarantors. As of the Agreement Effective Date and after giving effect to the transactions contemplated hereby, no Restricted
Subsidiary has issued or is subject to any Guarantee Obligation in respect of any Principal Debt Facility.

Section 5.17. Private Offering by the Company. Neither the Company nor anyone acting on its behalf has offered the Notes or any similar securities
for sale to, or solicited any offer to buy any of the same from, or otherwise approached or negotiated in respect thereof with, any person other than the Purchasers,
each of which has been offered the Notes at a private sale for investment. Neither the Company nor anyone acting on its behalf has taken, or will take, any action
that would subject the issuance or sale of the Notes to the registration requirements of Section 5 of the Securities Act or to the registration requirements of any
securities or blue sky laws of any applicable jurisdiction.

Section 5.18. Foreign Assets Control Regulations, Etc.

(a) Neither the sale of the Notes by the Company hereunder nor its use of the proceeds thereof will violate the Trading with the Enemy Act,
as amended, or any of the foreign assets control regulations of the United States Treasury Department (31 CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter V, as amended) or any
enabling legislation or executive order relating thereto.

(b) Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary (i) is a Person described or designated in the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked
Persons List of the Office of Foreign Assets Control or in Section 1 of the Anti-Terrorism Order or (ii) knowingly engages in any dealings or transactions
with any such Person. The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance, in all material respects, with the USA Patriot Act.

(o) No part of the proceeds from the sale of the Notes hereunder will be used, directly or indirectly, for any payments to any governmental
official or employee, political party, official of a political party, candidate for political office, or anyone else acting in an official capacity, in order to obtain,
retain or direct business or obtain any improper advantage, in violation of the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, assuming in
all cases that such Act applies to the Company.

Section 5.19. Status under Certain Statutes. Neither the Company nor any Restricted Subsidiary is subject to regulation under the Public Utility
Holding Company Act of 2005, as amended, the ICC Termination Act of 1995, as amended, or the Federal Power Act, as amended.
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SEcTION 6. REPRESENTATIONS OF THE PURCHASERS.

Section 6.1. Purchase for Investment. Each Purchaser severally represents that it is purchasing the Notes for its own account or for one or more
separate accounts maintained by such Purchaser or for the account of one or more pension or trust funds and not with a view to the distribution thereof, provided that
the disposition of such Purchaser’s or their property shall at all times be within such Purchaser’s or such pension or trust funds’ control. Each Purchaser understands
that the Notes have not been registered under the Securities Act and may be resold only if registered pursuant to the provisions of the Securities Act or if an
exemption from registration is available, except under circumstances where neither such registration nor such an exemption is required by law, and that the Company
is not required to register the Notes.

Section 6.2. Source of Funds. Each Purchaser severally represents that at least one of the following statements is an accurate representation as to
each source of funds (a “Source”) to be used by such Purchaser to pay the entire purchase price of the Notes to be purchased by such Purchaser hereunder:

(a) the Source is an “insurance company general account” (as the term is defined in the United States Department of Labor’s Prohibited
Transaction Exemption (“PTE”) 95-60) in respect of which the reserves and liabilities (as defined by the annual statement for life insurance companies
approved by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC Annual Statement”)) for the general account contract(s) held by or on
behalf of any employee benefit plan together with the amount of the reserves and liabilities for the general account contract(s) held by or on behalf of any
other employee benefit plans maintained by the same employer (or affiliate thereof as defined in PTE 95-60) or by the same employee organization in the
general account do not exceed 10% of the total reserves and liabilities of the general account (exclusive of separate account liabilities) plus surplus as set
forth in the NAIC Annual Statement filed with such Purchaser’s state of domicile; or

(b) the Source is a separate account that is maintained solely in connection with such Purchaser’s fixed contractual obligations under which
the amounts payable, or credited, to any employee benefit plan (or its related trust) that has any interest in such separate account (or to any participant or
beneficiary of such plan (including any annuitant)) are not affected in any manner by the investment performance of the separate account; or

(©) the Source is either (i) an insurance company pooled separate account, within the meaning of PTE 90-1 or (ii) a bank collective
investment fund, within the meaning of the PTE 91-38 and, except as disclosed by such Purchaser to the Company in writing pursuant to this clause (c), no
employee benefit plan or group of plans maintained by the same employer or employee organization beneficially owns more than 10% of all assets allocated
to such pooled separate account or collective investment fund; or

(d) the Source constitutes assets of an “investment fund” (within the meaning of Part V of PTE 84-14 (the “QPAM Exemption”)) managed
by a “qualified professional asset manager” or “QPAM?” (within the meaning of Part V of the QPAM Exemption), no employee benefit plan’s assets that are
included in such investment fund, when combined with the assets of all other employee benefit plans established or maintained by the same employer or by
an affiliate (within the meaning of Section V(c)(1) of the QPAM Exemption) of such employer or by the same employee organization and managed by such
QPAM, exceed 20% of the total client assets managed by such QPAM, the conditions of Part I(c) and (g) of the QPAM Exemption are satisfied, neither the
QPAM nor a person controlling or controlled by the QPAM (applying the definition of “control” in Section V(e) of the QPAM Exemption) owns a 5% or
more interest in the Company and (i) the identity of such QPAM and (ii) the names of all employee benefit plans whose assets are included in such
investment fund have been disclosed to the Company in writing pursuant to this clause (d); or
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(e) the Source constitutes assets of a “plan(s)” (within the meaning of Section IV of PTE 96-23 (the “INHAM Exemption”)) managed by an
“in-house asset manager” or “INHAM?” (within the meaning of Part IV of the INHAM Exemption), the conditions of Part I(a), (g) and (h) of the INHAM
Exemption are satisfied, neither the INHAM nor a person controlling or controlled by the INHAM (applying the definition of “control” in Section IV(d) of
the INHAM Exemption) owns a 5% or more interest in the Company and (i) the identity of such INHAM and (ii) the name(s) of the employee benefit
plan(s) whose assets constitute the Source have been disclosed to the Company in writing pursuant to this clause (e); or

® the Source is a governmental plan; or

(g) the Source is one or more employee benefit plans, or a separate account or trust fund comprised of one or more employee benefit plans,
each of which has been identified to the Company in writing pursuant to this clause (g); or

(h) the Source does not include assets of any employee benefit plan, other than a plan exempt from the coverage of ERISA.

As used in this Section 6.2, the terms “employee benefit plan,” “governmental plan,” and “separate account” shall have the respective meanings assigned to such
terms in section 3 of ERISA.

Section 6.3. Accredited Investor. Each Purchaser severally represents that it is a “qualified institutional buyer” (as such term is defined under Rule
144A promulgated under the Securities Act, or any successor law, rule or regulation) or an “accredited investor” (as such term is defined under Regulation D
promulgated under the Securities Act, or any successor law, rule or regulation).

SECTION 7. INFORMATION AS TO COMPANY.*

The Company covenants that so long as any of the Notes are outstanding it shall:
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Section 7.1. Financial Statements. Furnish to each holder of the Notes (the delivery of which shall be deemed made on the date on which such
information has been posted on the Company’s website on the Internet at http://www.henryschein.com or is available on the website of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission at http://www.sec.gov (to the extent such information has been posted or is available)):

(a) as soon as available, but in any event within 90 days (or, to the extent the Company is a reporting company under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, such shorter period as shall be required under the applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for the filing of its annual
report on Form 10-K) after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, a copy of the audited consolidated and consolidating balance sheets of the Company
and its consolidated Subsidiaries as at the end of such year and the related consolidated and consolidating statements of operations and stockholders’ equity
and of cash flows for such year, setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures as of the end of and for the previous year, reported on without a
qualification arising out of the scope of the audit, by BDO Seidman, LLP or any other independent certified public accountants of nationally recognized
standing reasonably acceptable to the Required Holders, including an executive summary of the management letter prepared by such accountants; provided,
however, that if a Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the full text of such management letter shall be provided to each
holder of the Notes;

(b) as soon as available, but in any event not later than 45 days (or, to the extent the Company is a reporting company under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, such shorter period as shall be required under the applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for the filing of its
quarterly report on Form 10-Q) after the end of each of the first three quarterly periods of each fiscal year of the Company, the unaudited consolidated and
consolidating balance sheets of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries, as at the end of each such quarter and the related unaudited consolidated and
consolidating statements of operations and of cash flows for such quarter and the portion of the fiscal year through the end of such quarter, setting forth in
each case in comparative form the figures as of the end of and for the corresponding period or periods in the previous year, all certified by a Responsible
Officer of the Company as being fairly stated in all material respects (subject to normal, recurring, year-end audit adjustments and the absence of GAAP
notes thereto); and

(©) to the extent that any Subsidiary of the Company is an Unrestricted Subsidiary, together with the financial statements delivered pursuant
to clauses (a) and (b) above (or within 15 days of the delivery thereof), the unaudited consolidated and consolidating balance sheets of the Company and its
Restricted Subsidiaries, as at the end of each such quarter or such year and the related unaudited consolidated and consolidating statements of operations and
of cash flows for such quarter or such year and, if applicable, the portion of the fiscal year through the end of such quarter, setting forth in each case in
comparative form the figures as of the end of and for the corresponding period or periods in the previous year, all certified by a Responsible Officer of the
Company as being fairly stated in all material respects (subject to normal recurring, year-end audit adjustments and the absence of GAAP notes thereto).
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All such financial statements shall be prepared in reasonable detail and in accordance with GAAP applied consistently throughout the periods reflected therein and
with prior periods (subject, in the case of the aforesaid quarterly financial statements, to normal, recurring, year-end audit adjustments and the absence of GAAP
notes thereto).

Section 7.2. Certificates; Other Information. Furnish to each holder of Notes:

(€) simultaneously with the delivery of the financial statements referred to in subsections 7.1(a) and (b), a certificate of the chief financial
officer or treasurer of the Company, certifying that to the best of his knowledge (i) no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or, if a
Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, a statement as to the nature thereof and the action which is proposed to be taken with respect
thereto, with computations demonstrating compliance (or non-compliance, as the case may be) with the covenants contained in subsection 10.1, (ii) the
Unrestricted Subsidiary EBITDA and Unrestricted Subsidiary Total Assets, if any, (iii) whether any Restricted Subsidiary that is not a Guarantor has
executed any Guaranty with respect to any Principal Debt Facility during the relevant period and (iv) such financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP (subject in the case of subsection 7.1(b) to normal, recurring, year-end adjustments and except for the absence of GAAP notes
thereto);

(b) promptly, such additional financial and other information available to the Company as any holder of Notes may from time to time
reasonably request; and

(o) promptly after the same are available (which shall be deemed available on the date on which such information has been posted on the
Company’s website on the Internet at http://www.henryschein.com or is available on the website of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission at
http://www.sec.gov (to the extent such information has been posted or is available)), and in any event within five (5) Business Days after the sending or
filing thereof, copies of all proxy statements, financial statements and reports which the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries sends to its
stockholders, and copies of all regular, periodic and special reports and all registration statements which the Company or any such Restricted Subsidiary
files with the Securities and Exchange Commission or any governmental authority which may be substituted therefor, or with any national securities
exchange or state securities administration.

Section 8. Payment and Prepayment of the Notes.

Section 8.1. Required Prepayments; Maturity. Each Series of Notes will be subject to required prepayment, if any, as and to the extent set forth in
the Notes of such Series.

Section 8.2. Optional Prepayments.

(a) Each Series of Notes will be subject to prepayment, in whole at any time or from time to time in part, at the option of the Company, in a minimum
amount of $1,000,000 and integral multiples of $100,000 in excess thereof or, if less, the aggregate principal amount outstanding in respect of the Notes of the Series,
at 100% of the principal amount so prepaid plus interest thereon to the prepayment date and the Make-Whole Amount with respect to each Note. Any partial
prepayment of a Series of the Notes pursuant to this Section 8.2(a) will be applied in satisfaction of required payments of principal in inverse order of their scheduled
due dates.
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(b) The Company will give the holder of each Note of a Series to be prepaid pursuant to this Section 8.2 irrevocable written notice of the prepayment
not less than 10 Business Days prior to the prepayment date, specifying the prepayment date, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes of the Series to be prepaid
on that date, the principal amount of the Notes of the Series held by the holder to be prepaid on that date and that prepayment is to be made pursuant to this Section
8.2. If proper notice has been given, the principal amount of the Notes specified in that notice, together with interest thereon to the prepayment date and the Make-
Whole Amount, if any, will be due and payable on that prepayment date.

Section 8.3. Allocation of Partial Prepayments. In the case of each prepayment of less than the entire unpaid principal amount of all outstanding
Notes of a Series pursuant to Section 8.1 or Section 8.2, the amount to be prepaid will be applied pro rata to all outstanding Notes of that Series according to the
respective unpaid principal amounts thereof.

Section 8.4. Maturity; Surrender, Etc. In the case of each prepayment of Notes pursuant to this Section 8, the principal amount of each Note to be
prepaid shall mature and become due and payable on the date fixed for such prepayment (which shall be a Business Day), together with interest on such principal
amount accrued to such date and the applicable Make-Whole Amount, if any. From and after such date, unless the Company shall fail to pay such principal amount
when so due and payable, together with the interest and Make-Whole Amount, if any, as aforesaid, interest on such principal amount shall cease to accrue. Any Note
paid or prepaid in full shall be surrendered to the Company by the applicable holder thereof promptly upon request and cancelled and shall not be reissued, and no
Note shall be issued in lieu of any prepaid principal amount of any Note.

Section 8.5. Purchase of Notes. The Company will not and will not permit any Affiliate to purchase, redeem, prepay or otherwise acquire, directly or
indirectly, any of the outstanding Notes except upon the payment or prepayment of the Notes in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the Notes. The
Company will promptly cancel all Notes acquired by it or any Affiliate pursuant to any payment or prepayment of Notes pursuant to any provision of this Agreement
and no Notes may be issued in substitution or exchange for any such Notes.

Section 8.6. Offer to Prepay Notes in the Event of a Change in Control.

(a) Notice of Change in Control or Control Event. The Company will promptly upon any Responsible Officer obtaining actual knowledge of
the occurrence of any Change in Control or Control Event, give written notice of such Change in Control or Control Event to each holder of Notes unless
notice shall have been given pursuant to clause (b) of this Section 8.6. If a Change in Control has occurred, such notice shall contain and constitute an offer

to prepay the Notes as described in clause (c) of this Section 8.6 and shall be accompanied by the certificate described in clause (f) hereof.

(b) Condition to Company Action. The Company will not take any action that consummates or finalizes a Change in Control unless at least
10 Business Days prior to such action it shall have given to each holder of Notes written notice of such impending Change in Control.
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(0) Offer to Prepay Notes. The offer to prepay Notes contemplated by the foregoing clause (a) shall be an offer to prepay, in accordance with
and subject to this Section 8.6, all, but not less than all, the Notes held by each holder (in this case only, “holder” in respect of any Note registered in the
name of a nominee for a disclosed beneficial owner shall mean such beneficial owner) on a date specified in such offer (the “Proposed Prepayment
Date”). Such Proposed Prepayment Date shall be not less than 10 days and not more than 30 days after the date of such offer (if the Proposed Prepayment
Date shall not be specified in such offer, the Proposed Prepayment Date shall be the 5th day after the date of such offer); provided however that the
Proposed Prepayment Date shall not be later than the date of consummation of such Change in Control. Such offer to prepay shall be conditioned upon the
consummation of the proposed Change in Control and if such Change of Control shall not occur, such offer to prepay shall be void and no rights or
obligations shall exist with respect thereto (the “Consummation Condition™).

(d) Acceptance; Rejection. The Company shall, on or before the Business Day prior to the Proposed Prepayment Date, give renotification
and confirmation thereof (by telephone or email) to each holder, which shall have designated a recipient of such notices in the applicable Confirmation of
Acceptance or by notice in writing to the Company. A holder of Notes may, subject to the Consummation Condition, accept the offer to prepay made
pursuant to this Section 8.6 by causing a notice of such acceptance to be delivered to the Company on or before the fifth day prior to the Proposed
Prepayment Date. A failure by a holder of Notes to respond to an offer to prepay made pursuant to this Section 8.6 on or before such date shall be deemed
to constitute a rejection of such offer by such holder.

(e) Prepayment. Prepayment of the Notes to be prepaid pursuant to this Section 8.6 shall be at 100% of the principal amount of such Notes,
together with interest accrued to the date of prepayment. The prepayment shall be made on the Proposed Prepayment Date, subject to the Consummation
Condition.

® Officer's Certificate. Each offer to prepay the Notes pursuant to this Section 8.6 shall be accompanied by a certificate, executed by a
Responsible Officer of the Company and dated the date of such offer, specifying: (i) the Proposed Prepayment Date; (ii) that such offer is made pursuant to
this Section 8.6; (iii) the principal amount of each Note offered to be prepaid; (iv) the interest that would be due on each Note offered to be prepaid, accrued
to the Proposed Prepayment Date; (v) that the conditions of this Section 8.6 have been fulfilled; and (vi) in reasonable detail, the nature and date of the
Change in Control.

8.7. Prepayment in Connection with a Disposition.
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(a) If the Company elects to make an offer to prepay the Notes in connection with any Disposition pursuant to Section 10.5, the Company
shall give written notice of such offer to prepayment (a “Disposition Prepayment Notice”) to each holder of a Note, which Disposition Prepayment Notice
shall (i) describe the facts and circumstances of such Disposition in reasonable detail, (ii) refer to this Section 8.7 and the rights of the holders of Notes
hereunder, and (iii) identify a date, which shall be no more than 60 days and not less than 30 days after the date of the Disposition Prepayment Notice, on
which the Company shall prepay the Pro Rata Portion of the unpaid principal amount of the Notes issued by the Company and held by such holder, together
with interest thereon to the prepayment date and Make-Whole Amount, if any (showing in such Disposition Prepayment Notice the amount of the
prepayment, the interest and an estimate of the Make-Whole Amount which would be paid on such prepayment date (calculated as if the date of such
Disposition Prepayment Notice was the date of prepayment)). Unless any holder of a Note has rejected such offer to prepay its Note in connection with
such Disposition in writing by notice to the Company within 10 days after receipt of the Disposition Prepayment Notice, such holder shall be deemed to
have accepted such offer to prepay the principal amount of its Note.

(b) On the prepayment date specified in the Disposition Prepayment Notice, the appropriate portion of unpaid principal amount of the Notes
held by each holder of a Note (other than those holders who have rejected the offer to prepay pursuant to clause (a)), together with the accrued and unpaid
interest thereon to the prepayment date and the Make-Whole Amount, if any, shall become due and payable.

Section 8.8. Make-Whole Amount.

“Make-Whole Amount” means, with respect to any Note, an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the Discounted Value of the Remaining Scheduled
Payments with respect to the Called Principal of such Note over the amount of such Called Principal, provided that the Make-Whole Amount may in no event be less
than zero. For the purposes of determining the Make-Whole Amount, the following terms have the following meanings:

“Called Principal” means, with respect to any Note, the principal of such Note that is to be prepaid pursuant to Section 8.2(a) or has become or is declared
to be immediately due and payable pursuant to Section 12.1, as the context requires.

“Discounted Value” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Note, the amount obtained by discounting all Remaining Scheduled Payments with
respect to such Called Principal from their respective scheduled due dates to the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal, in accordance with accepted
financial practice and at a discount factor (applied on the same periodic basis as that on which interest on the Notes is payable) equal to the Reinvestment Yield with
respect to such Called Principal.

“Reinvestment Yield” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Note, 0.50% over the yield to maturity implied by (i) the yields reported as of
10:00 a.m. (New York City time) on the second Business Day preceding the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal, on the display designated as “Page
PX1” (or such other display as may replace Page PX1) on Bloomberg Financial Markets for the most recently issued actively traded on the run U.S. Treasury
securities having a maturity equal to the Remaining Average Life of such Called Principal as of such Settlement Date, or (ii) if such yields are not reported as of such
time or the yields reported as of such time are not ascertainable (including by way of interpolation), the Treasury Constant Maturity Series Yields reported, for the
latest day for which such yields have been so reported as of the second Business Day preceding the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal, in Federal
Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (or any comparable successor publication) for U.S. Treasury securities having a constant maturity equal to the Remaining Average
Life of such Called Principal as of such Settlement Date.
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In the case of each determination under clause (i) or clause (ii), as the case may be, of the preceding paragraph, such implied yield will be determined, if
necessary, by (a) converting U.S. Treasury bill quotations to bond equivalent yields in accordance with accepted financial practice and (b) interpolating linearly
between (1) the applicable U.S. Treasury security with the maturity closest to and greater than such Remaining Average Life and (2) the applicable U.S. Treasury
security with the maturity closest to and less than such Remaining Average Life. The Reinvestment Yield shall be rounded to the number of decimal places as
appears in the interest rate of the applicable Note.

“Remaining Average Life” means, with respect to any Called Principal, the number of years (calculated to the nearest one-twelfth year) obtained by
dividing (i) such Called Principal into (ii) the sum of the products obtained by multiplying (a) the principal component of each Remaining Scheduled Payment with
respect to such Called Principal by (b) the number of years (calculated to the nearest one-twelfth year) that will elapse between the Settlement Date with respect to
such Called Principal and the scheduled due date of such Remaining Scheduled Payment.

“Remaining Scheduled Payments” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Note, all payments of such Called Principal and interest thereon that
would be due after the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal if no payment of such Called Principal were made prior to its scheduled due date,
provided that if such Settlement Date is not a date on which interest payments are due to be made under the terms of the Notes, then the amount of the next
succeeding scheduled interest payment will be reduced by the amount of interest accrued to such Settlement Date and required to be paid on such Settlement Date
pursuant to Section 8.2 or Section 12.1.

“Settlement Date” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Note, the date on which such Called Principal is to be prepaid pursuant to Section 8.2
or has become or is declared to be immediately due and payable pursuant to Section 12.1, as the context requires.

SEcTION 9. AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS.

The Company covenants that so long as any of the Notes are outstanding:

Section 9.1. Conduct of Business and Maintenance of Existence. The Company will, and will cause each of its Restricted Subsidiaries to (a)
preserve, and keep in full force and effect its corporate existence and good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization, except as otherwise permitted
hereunder or where failure to do so, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, and (b) take all reasonable

action to maintain all rights, privileges and franchises necessary in the operation or its business, except to the extent that failure to maintain such rights, privileges
and franchises, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
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Section 9.2. Payment of Obligations. The Company will, and will cause each of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, pay and discharge (a) all taxes upon it
or its properties or assets, unless the same are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and adequate reserves in accordance with GAAP are being
maintained by the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary, and (b) all lawful claims which, if unpaid, would by law (without satisfaction of any other conditions,
such as notice) become a Lien upon its property (other than Liens permitted by subsection 10.2), in each case where a failure to pay and discharge such taxes and
claims could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 9.3. Maintenance of Properties. The Company will, and will cause each of its Restricted Subsidiaries to maintain and keep all of its material
properties necessary in the operation of its business in good repair, working order and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, except where the failure to do so,
individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 9.4. Maintenance of Insurance. The Company will, and will cause each of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, maintain, with financially sound
and reputable insurance companies, insurance in such amounts and against such risks as is customarily maintained by companies engaged in the same or similar
businesses operating in the same or similar locations.

Section 9.5. Books and Records. The Company will, and will cause each of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, maintain proper books of record and
account in conformity with GAAP and all applicable requirements of any Governmental Authority having regulatory jurisdiction over the Company or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries, except where the failure to so comply, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 9.6. Inspection Rights Subject to Section 20, the Company will, and will cause each of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, permit representatives
of each holder of Notes:

(a) No Default -- if no Default or Event of Default then exists, at the expense of such holder and upon reasonable advance notice to a
Responsible Officer of the Company or such Guarantor (if any), as the case may be, to visit the principal executive office of the Company, to examine its
corporate, financial and operating records, and to discuss its affairs, finances and accounts with its officers and (with the consent of the Company, which
consent will not be unreasonably withheld) its independent public accountants, all at such reasonable times during normal business hours as may be
reasonably desired; provided, however, that (x) the holders of Notes shall use reasonable efforts to coordinate with each other in order to minimize the
number of such inspections and discussions; and (y) with respect to access for environmental inspections, the holders of Notes shall only have the right to
inspect once every twelve months unless a holder of Notes has reason to believe that a condition exists or an event has occurred which reasonably could
give rise to liability under the Environmental Laws; and
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(b) Default -- if a Default or Event of Default then exists, at the expense of the Company and without advance notice, to visit and inspect any
of its properties, to examine its corporate, financial and operating records, and make copies thereof or abstracts thereform, and to discuss its affairs, finances
and accounts with its officers and (with the consent of the Company, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld) independent public accountants, at
any time during normal business hours.

Section 9.7. Compliance with Laws. The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, comply with all laws, rules, regulations and
orders of any Governmental Authority to which each of them is subject, including all Environmental Laws, except where the failure to do so, individually or in the
aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 9.8. Use of Proceeds. The Company will, and will cause each of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, use the proceeds of the Notes for general
corporate purposes of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries, including for acquisitions and refinancing of Indebtedness. No part of the proceeds of any Notes
will be used, whether directly or indirectly, for any purpose that entails violation of any of the Regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System,
including Regulations T, U and X.

Section 9.9. Notices. The Company will promptly give notice to each holder of Notes upon obtaining actual knowledge of:
(a) the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default;
b) the filing or commencement of any action, suit or proceeding by or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authority against or affecting

the Company or any Affiliate thereof that could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;

(o) the following events, as soon as possible and in any event within 30 days after the Company obtains actual knowledge thereof: (i) the
occurrence or reasonably expected occurrence of any ERISA Event with respect to any Plan, (ii) a failure to make any required contribution to a Plan within
the period required by applicable law, (iii) the creation of any Lien in favor of the PBGC or a Plan or any withdrawal from, or the termination,
Reorganization or Insolvency of, any Multiemployer Plan or (iv) the institution of proceedings or the taking of any other similar action by the PBGC or the
Company or any ERISA Affiliate or any Multiemployer Plan with respect to the withdrawal from, or the terminating, Reorganization or Insolvency of, any
Plan, other than the termination of any Single Employer Plan that is not a distress termination pursuant to Section 4041(c) of ERISA where, with respect to
any event listed above, the amount of liability the Company or any ERISA Affiliate could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and
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(d) any other development known to Company that results in, or could reasonably be expected to result in, a Material Adverse Effect.

Each notice delivered pursuant to this subsection shall be accompanied by a statement of a Responsible Officer of the Company setting forth details of the occurrence
or development referred to therein and stating what action the Company proposes to take with respect thereto.

Section 9.10. Guarantors. Simultaneously with any Restricted Subsidiary becoming, but only for so long as such Restricted Subsidiary shall be, (x) a
guarantor of the obligations of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary under a Principal Debt Facility or (y) a borrower or other obligor under a Principal Debt
Facility, the Company will cause such Person to enter into a Guaranty Agreement in the form of Exhibit E (or such other agreement in form and substance reasonably
acceptable to the Required Holders), and thereupon such Person shall become a Guarantor hereunder for all purposes.

Section 9.11. Pari Passu Status. The Company will cause all Indebtedness owing under the Notes and under this Agreement to rank at all times at least
pari passu with all other present and future unsecured Indebtedness of the Company.

Section 9.12 Covenant to Secure Notes Equally. If the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary shall create or assume any Lien upon any of its
property or assets, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, other than Liens permitted by the provisions of Section 10.2 (unless prior written consent to the
creation or assumption thereof shall have been obtained pursuant to Section 17), the Company will, and will cause each of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, make or
cause to be made effective provisions whereby the Notes will be secured by such Lien equally and ratably with any and all other Indebtedness thereby secured so
long as any such other Indebtedness shall be so secured; provided that the creation and maintenance of such equal and ratable Lien shall not in any way limit or
modify the right of the holders of the Notes to enforce the provisions of Section 10.2.

Section 9.13 Designation of Subsidiaries.

(a) Right of Designation. Subject to the satisfaction of the requirements of clauses (b) and (c) of this Section 9.13, the Company shall have
the right to designate each of its Subsidiaries acquired or formed after the date hereof as an Unrestricted Subsidiary or a Restricted Subsidiary by delivering
to each holder of Notes a writing, signed by the Chief Financial Officer, certifying that the Company shall have so designated such Subsidiary prior to or
within 30 days of such acquisition or formation. Any such Subsidiary so designated within such 30 day period shall be deemed to have been an Unrestricted
Subsidiary or Restricted Subsidiary, as applicable, as of the date of such acquisition or formation and any such Subsidiary not so designated within such 30
day period shall be deemed, on and after the date of acquisition or formation thereof and without any further action by the Company or any holder of Notes,
to have been designated by the Company as a Restricted Subsidiary. Each Subsidiary existing as on the date hereof designated as a Restricted Subsidiary in
Schedule 5.14 shall be a Restricted Subsidiary on and after the date hereof and all other existing Subsidiaries, if any, listed as a Unrestricted Subsidiary in
such Schedule 5.14 shall, subject to Section 9.13(b) hereof, be Unrestricted Subsidiaries on and after the date hereof.
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(b) Restricted Subsidiary Coverage. As of the date of such designation or redesignation, (x) Unrestricted Subsidiary EBITDA must not
represent more than 15% of Consolidated EBITDA (calculated as if all Subsidiaries are Restricted Subsidiaries) and (y) Unrestricted Subsidiary Total Assets
must not represent more than 15% of Consolidated Total Assets (calculated as if all Subsidiaries are Restricted Subsidiaries).

(o) Right of Redesignation. The Company may, at any time, redesignate any Unrestricted Subsidiary as a Restricted Subsidiary, or any
Restricted Subsidiary as an Unrestricted Subsidiary, provided, however, that:

@) if such Subsidiary initially is designated a Restricted Subsidiary, then such Restricted Subsidiary may be subsequently
redesignated as an Unrestricted Subsidiary once and such Unrestricted Subsidiary may be subsequently redesignated as a Restricted Subsidiary
once, but no further changes in designation may be made;

(ii) if such Subsidiary initially is designated an Unrestricted Subsidiary, then such Unrestricted Subsidiary may be subsequently
redesignated as a Restricted Subsidiary once and such Restricted Subsidiary may be subsequently redesignated as an Unrestricted Subsidiary once,
but no further changes in designation may be made;

(iii) such Restricted Subsidiary becomes a Guarantor to the extent Restricted Subsidiaries are required to have guaranteed the Notes
pursuant to Section 9.10;

(iv) immediately before giving effect to any redesignation of a Restricted Subsidiary to an Unrestricted Subsidiary, no Default or
Event of Default exists under subsections (a), (f) or (g) of Section 11 or subsection (c)(i) of Section 11 solely with respect to a failure to be in
compliance with Section 10.1; and

W) immediately after giving effect to such redesignation, and assuming that all obligations, liabilities and investments of, and all
Liens on the property of, such Subsidiary being so designated were incurred or made contemporaneously with such designation, (A) no Default or
Event of Default exists or would exist and (B) the Company is and will be in compliance with the covenant set forth in Section 10.1 as of the last
day of the most recently ended fiscal quarter for which financial statements have been delivered, recalculated to give effect to such redesignation.

(d Pro Forma Effect upon Redesignation. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, for purposes of determining compliance with
the financial covenants contained in this Agreement, any designation or redesignation, as the case may be, shall be given pro forma effect upon such
designation or redesignation, such that such Subsidiary shall be included or excluded, as applicable, from the beginning of any applicable period.
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(e) Disposition upon Redesignation. The designation of a Restricted Subsidiary as an Unrestricted Subsidiary shall be deemed to be a
Disposition of all such Subsidiary’s property by the Company for all purposes of this Agreement.

(€3) Effectiveness. Other than as set forth in the last two sentences of Section 9.13(a) hereof, any designation under this Section 9.13 that
satisfies all of the conditions set forth in this Section 9.13 shall become effective, for purposes of this Agreement, on the day that notice thereof shall have
been delivered by the Company to each holder of Notes in accordance with the provisions of Section 18.

Section 10. Negative Covenants. The Company covenants that so long as any of the Notes are outstanding:

Section 10.1 Consolidated Leverage Ratio. The Company will not permit the Consolidated Leverage Ratio at any time during any period of four
consecutive fiscal quarters of the Company to exceed 3.50 to 1.0.

Section 10.2 Limitations on Liens. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, create, incur, assume or suffer to
exist any Lien upon any of its property, assets or revenues, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, except for:

(a) Liens for taxes not yet due or which are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings, provided that adequate reserves with
respect thereto are maintained on the books of the Company or its Restricted Subsidiaries, as the case may be, in conformity with GAAP;

(b) carriers’, warehousemen’s, mechanics’, materialmen’s, repairmen’s or other like Liens arising in the ordinary course of business which are
not overdue for a period of more than 30 days or which are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted, if adequate
reserves with respect thereto are maintained on the books of the applicable Person in accordance with GAAP;

(o) pledges or deposits made in the ordinary course of business in compliance with workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance and
other social security legislation and deposits made in the ordinary course of business securing liability to insurance carriers under insurance or self-insurance
arrangements;

(d) deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade or government contracts (other than for borrowed money), leases, statutory obligations,
surety and appeal bonds, performance bonds and other obligations of a like nature incurred in the ordinary course of business;

-26-




(e) easements, rights-of-way, restrictions, building, zoning and other similar encumbrances or restrictions, utility agreements, covenants,
reservations and encroachments and other similar encumbrances, or leases or subleases, incurred in the ordinary course of business which, in the aggregate,
are not substantial in amount and which do not, in the aggregate, materially detract from the value of the properties of the Company and its Restricted
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or materially interfere with the ordinary conduct of the business of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries, taken as a
whole;

® Liens securing Indebtedness in respect of capital leases and purchase money obligations for fixed or capital assets; provided that (i) such
Liens do not at any time encumber any property other than the property financed by such Indebtedness, (ii) the principal amount of the Indebtedness secured
thereby does not exceed the fair market value of the property being acquired on the date of acquisition and (iii) such Indebtedness was not incurred in
connection with, or in anticipation or contemplation of, an acquisition;

(g) Liens on the assets of Receivable Subsidiaries created pursuant to any Receivables Transaction permitted pursuant to subsection 10.3(a);

(h) Liens created or arising pursuant to any Note Documents, and Liens securing other Indebtedness of the Company; provided, that the
Obligations are also concurrently equally and ratably secured pursuant to documentation in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Required
Holders (including, but not limited to, documentation such as security agreements and other necessary or desirable collateral agreements, an intercreditor
agreement and opinions of independent legal counsel);

@) Liens granted by any Restricted Subsidiary in favor of the Company;
1) judgment Liens securing judgments and other court proceedings not constituting an Event of Default under Section 11(i);
k) any Lien on any property of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary existing on the Agreement Effective Date and set forth on

Schedule 10.2 or any extension, renewal or refinancing thereof; provided that (i) such Lien shall not apply to any other property or asset of the Company or
any Restricted Subsidiary, (ii) such Lien shall secure only those obligations which it secures as of the date hereof and (iii) in the case of any extension,
renewal or refinancing thereof, (x) there is no increase in the obligations so secured and (y) such Lien does not secure additional assets not subject to the
Lien then being extended or renewed;

) any Lien existing on any property or asset prior to the acquisition thereof by the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary or existing on any
property or asset of any Person that becomes a Restricted Subsidiary after the date hereof prior to the time such Person becomes a Restricted Subsidiary;
provided that (i) such Lien is not created in contemplation of or in connection with such acquisition or such Person becoming a Restricted Subsidiary, as the
case may be, (ii) such Lien shall not apply to any other property or assets of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary and (iii) the principal amount of
Indebtedness secured by such Lien is not increased;
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(m) Liens arising from precautionary UCC financing statements regarding operating leases or consignments;

(n) any Lien over the assets or property of the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries or the Equity Interests in the Joint Venture that secures
Indebtedness permitted under subsection 10.3(b)(vi); provided that such Lien does not at any time cover any additional assets or property other than
products or proceeds thereof;

(0) Liens granted by any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company that are contractual rights of set-off or netting arrangements relating to
pooled deposit or sweep accounts of such Restricted Subsidiary to permit satisfaction of overdraft or similar obligations (including with respect to netting
services, automatic clearinghouse arrangements, overdraft protections and similar arrangements) incurred in the ordinary course of business of such
Restricted Subsidiary; and

p) Liens (not otherwise permitted herein) that secure Indebtedness permitted under Sections 10.1 and 10.3 so long as Priority Debt as of the
most recent date on which such Indebtedness was incurred does not exceed 15% of Consolidated Total Assets as of the last day of the fiscal quarter of the
Company most recently ended immediately on or prior to such incurrence date, provided, however that Liens permitted by this Section 10.2(p) may not
secure obligations of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary under any Principal Debt Facility;

provided, however, that the provisions of this Section 10.2 shall be suspended and of no force and effect until the amendment to the Existing Credit Facility (or

replacement Principal Debt Facility) required pursuant to Section 4.13(f) has been delivered; after deliver of such amendment, this provision shall be in full force and
effect and binding at all times thereafter.

Section 10.3. Limitation on Indebtedness. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, create, issue, incur, assume,
become liable in respect of or suffer to exist:

(a) any Indebtedness pursuant to any Receivables Transaction, except for Indebtedness pursuant to all Receivables Transactions that is (i)
non-recourse with respect to the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries (other than any Receivables Subsidiary) and (ii) in an aggregate principal amount
as of the most recent date on which such Indebtedness was incurred not exceeding 15% of Consolidated Total Assets as of the last day of the fiscal quarter
of the Company most recently ended immediately on or prior to such incurrence date; or

(b) any Indebtedness of any Restricted Subsidiary other than:
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@) Indebtedness of any Receivables Subsidiary pursuant to any Receivables Transaction permitted under subsection 10.3(a),

(ii) any Indebtedness of any Restricted Subsidiary which is a Guarantor,

(iii) any Indebtedness of any Restricted Subsidiary existing on the Agreement Effective Date and set forth on Schedule 10.3 and any
refinancing thereof; provided, that the then outstanding principal amount thereof is not increased and the weighted average maturity thereof is not
decreased,

@iv) any Indebtedness of any Restricted Subsidiary owed to the Company or any other Restricted Subsidiary,

W) any Indebtedness arising in respect of capital leases or purchase money obligations incurred in accordance with subsection

10.2(f),

(vi) (A) Indebtedness of the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries under the Winslow Credit Agreement in a principal amount not to exceed
$350,000,000 at any time, and (B) Permitted JV Refinancing Indebtedness in respect thereof,

(vii) Indebtedness of any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company in respect of netting services, automatic clearinghouse arrangements,
overdraft protections and similar arrangements in each case in connection with deposit accounts in the ordinary course of business, and

(viii) other Indebtedness of Restricted Subsidiaries so long as Priority Debt as of the most recent date on which such Indebtedness was
incurred does not exceed 15% of Consolidated Total Assets as of the last day of the fiscal quarter of the Company most recently ended immediately
on or prior to such incurrence.

Section 10.4. Fundamental Changes. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, liquidate, windup or dissolve
(or suffer any liquidation or dissolution), or merge, consolidate with or into, or convey, transfer, lease, sell, assign or otherwise dispose of (whether in one transaction
or in a series of transactions) all or substantially all of its assets (whether now owned or hereafter acquired) to or in favor of any Person, except that, so long as no
Default or Event of Default exists or would result therefrom:

(a) any Restricted Subsidiary may merge with (i) the Company, provided that the Company shall be the continuing or surviving Person, or
(ii) any one or more Restricted Subsidiaries, provided that (A) when any wholly-owned Restricted Subsidiary is merging with another Restricted Subsidiary,
such wholly-owned Restricted Subsidiary shall be the continuing or surviving Person and (B) when any Foreign Subsidiary is merging with a Domestic
Subsidiary, such Domestic Subsidiary shall be the continuing or surviving Person;
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(b) any (i) Restricted Subsidiary may sell, transfer, contribute, convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets (upon
voluntary liquidation or otherwise), to the Company or to a Domestic Subsidiary; provided that if the transferor in such a transaction is a wholly-owned
Restricted Subsidiary, then the transferee must also be a wholly-owned Restricted Subsidiary; (ii) Foreign Subsidiary may sell, transfer, contribute, convey
or otherwise dispose of all of its assets (upon voluntary liquidation or otherwise), to any other Foreign Subsidiary; or (iii) any Unrestricted Subsidiary may
merge or consolidate with any Restricted Subsidiary, provided that such Restricted Subsidiary shall be the continuing or surviving Person of such merger or
consolidation;

(o) any Restricted Subsidiary formed solely for the purpose of effecting an acquisition may be merged or consolidated with any other Person;
provided that the continuing or surviving corporation of such merger or consolidation shall be a Restricted Subsidiary;

(d) “Inactive” or “shell” Restricted Subsidiaries (i.e., a Person that is not engaged in any business and that has total assets of $500,000 or
less) may be dissolved or otherwise liquidated, provided that all of the assets and properties of any such Restricted Subsidiaries are transferred to the
Company or another Restricted Subsidiary upon dissolution/liquidation;

(e) the Company may merge or consolidate with any Person, provided that the Company shall be the continuing or surviving Person; and
(€3] the Company and any of its Restricted Subsidiaries may make Dispositions expressly permitted by Section 10.5.
Section 10.5. Dispositions. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, make any Disposition or enter into any

agreement to make any Disposition, except:

(a) Dispositions of obsolete, out-moded or worn-out property, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, in the ordinary course of business;
b) Dispositions of inventory and cash equivalents in the ordinary course of business;

(o) Dispositions of property by any Restricted Subsidiary to the Company or to any other Restricted Subsidiary;

(d) Dispositions of Receivables pursuant to Receivables Transactions permitted under subsection 10.3(a);

(e) the nonexclusive license of intellectual property of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to third parties in the ordinary

course of business;
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) without limitation to clause (a), the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries may sell or exchange specific items of machinery or
equipment, so long as the proceeds of each such sale or exchange is used (or contractually committed to be used) to acquire (and results within one year of
such sale or exchange in the acquisition of) replacement items of machinery or equipment of reasonably equivalent Fair Market Value;

(8 other Dispositions where (i) in the good faith opinion of the Company, the Disposition is an exchange for consideration having a Fair
Market Value at least equal to that of the property Disposed of and is in the best interest of the Company or the applicable Restricted Subsidiary, as the case
may be; (ii) immediately after giving effect to such Disposition, no Event of Default would exist; and (iii) either (A) an amount equal to the net proceeds
realized upon such Disposition are within 90 days after the consummation of such Disposition applied by the Company to prepay or repay Indebtedness that
ranks at least pari passu with the Notes (other than Indebtedness owing to the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate of the Company) so long as in
connection with any such payment or prepayment of such Indebtedness, the Company shall, on or before the date of such payment or prepayment, prepay a
Pro Rata Portion of each Note then outstanding as provided in Section 8.7 or (B) immediately after giving effect to such Disposition, the Disposition Value
of all property that was the subject thereof in any fiscal four quarter period of the Company plus the Fair Market Value of any other property Disposed of
during such four quarter period (but excluding the Fair Market Value or consideration receivable of all property and assets disposed of in a Disposition for
which the net proceeds are applied in accordance with clause (A)) does not equal or exceed 15% of Consolidated Total Assets as of the last day of the then
most recently ended fiscal quarter of the Company; and

(h) Dispositions arising as a result of the redesignation of a Restricted Subsidiary to an Unrestricted Subsidiary to the extent permitted under
Section 9.13.

Section 10.6. ERISA. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, engage in a transaction which could be subject

to Section 4069 or 4212(c) of ERISA, or permit any Plan to (a) engage in any non-exempt “prohibited transaction” (as defined in Section 406 of ERISA or Section
4975 of the Code); (b) fail to comply with ERISA or any other applicable laws; or (c) incur any material “accumulated funding deficiency” (as defined in Section 412
of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA), which, with respect to any event listed above, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 10.7. Transactions with Affiliates. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, enter into any transaction

of any kind with any Affiliate of the Company, other than for compensation and upon fair and reasonable terms with Affiliates in transactions that are otherwise
permitted hereunder no less favorable to the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary than would be obtained in a comparable arm’s-length transaction with a Person
other than an Affiliate, provided, the foregoing restriction shall not apply to (a) any transaction between the Company and any of its Restricted Subsidiaries or
between any of its Restricted Subsidiaries, (b) reasonable and customary fees paid to members of the Boards of Directors of the Company and its Restricted
Subsidiaries, (c) transactions effected as part of a Receivables Transaction or (d) compensation arrangements of officers and other employees of the Company and its
Restricted Subsidiaries entered into in the ordinary course of business.
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Section 10.8. Restrictive Agreements. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, enter into, incur or permit to
exist any agreement or other arrangement that prohibits, restricts or imposes any condition upon the ability of any Restricted Subsidiary to pay dividends or other
distributions with respect to any shares of its capital stock or to make or repay loans or advances to the Company or any other Restricted Subsidiary or to Guaranty
Indebtedness of the Company or any other Restricted Subsidiary; provided that (i) the foregoing shall not apply to prohibitions, restrictions and conditions (x)
imposed by law or (y) contained in the organizational documents of the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries (including their respective operating, management or
partnership agreements, as applicable) to the extent that such prohibition, restriction or condition applies only to the property, assets or Equity Interests of, or
dividends, distributions, loans, advances, repayments or guarantees by, the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries, (ii) the foregoing shall not apply to restrictions and
conditions existing on the date hereof identified on Schedule 10.8 (but shall apply to any extension or renewal of, or any amendment or modification expanding the
scope of, any such restriction or condition), or (iii) the foregoing shall not apply to customary restrictions and conditions contained in agreements relating to the sale
of a Restricted Subsidiary pending such sale, provided such restrictions and conditions apply only to the Restricted Subsidiary that is to be sold and such sale is
permitted hereunder.

Section 10.9. Line of Business. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, engage in any business if, as a result,
the general nature of the business in which the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, would then be engaged would be substantially changed
from the general nature of the business in which the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, are engaged on the Agreement Effective Date.

Section 10.10.  Terrorism Sanctions Regulations. The Company will not and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to (a) become a Person described or
designated in the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List of the Office of Foreign Assets Control or in Section 1 of the Anti-Terrorism Order or (b)
knowingly engage in any dealings or transactions with any such Person.

SecTioN 11. EVENTs oF DEFAULT.

Any of the following shall constitute an Event of Default:

(a) The Company shall fail to pay any principal or Make-Whole Amount, if any, on any Note when due in accordance with the terms thereof
or hereof; or the Company shall fail to pay any interest on any Note, or any fee or other amount payable hereunder, within five Business Days after any such
interest or other amount becomes due in accordance with the terms thereof or hereof;

-32-




(b) Any representation or warranty made by the Company or any Guarantor (if any) herein or in any other Note Document or which is
contained in writing delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall prove to have been incorrect or misleading in any material respect when made;

(©) (i) The Company shall default in the observance or performance of any covenant contained in subsection 9.8, subsection 9.9, subsection
9.10 or Section 10; or (ii) the Company shall default in the observance or performance of any covenant contained in subsection 7.1, and such default shall
continue unremedied for a period of 10 days; or (iii) the Company or any Guarantor shall default in the observance or performance of any other agreement
contained in this Agreement or in any Guaranty Agreement (other than as provided above in this Section), and such default described in this clause (c)(iii)
shall continue unremedied for a period of 30 days; provided that if any such default covered by this clause (c)(iii), (x) is not capable of being remedied
within such 30-day period, (y) is capable of being remedied within an additional 30-day period and (z) the Company or such Guarantor is diligently
pursuing such remedy during the period contemplated by (x) and (y) and has advised each holder of Notes as to the remedy thereof, the first 30-day period
referred to in this clause (c)(iii) shall be extended for an additional 30-day period but only so long as (A) the Company or such Guarantor continues to
diligently pursue such remedy, (B) such default remains capable of being remedied within such period and (C) any such extension could not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;

(d) The Company or any Restricted Subsidiary shall fail to make any payment (whether of principal or interest and regardless of amount) in
respect of any Material Indebtedness (other than Indebtedness permitted under subsection 10.3(b)(vi)), when and as the same shall become due and payable
(after giving effect to all applicable grace periods, if any);

(e) The Company or any Restricted Subsidiary defaults (whether as primary obligor or as guarantor or other surety) in any payment of
principal of or interest or fees on any Material Indebtedness beyond any period of grace provided with respect thereto; or an event or condition occurs that
results in any Material Indebtedness (other than Indebtedness permitted under subsection 10.3(b)(vi)) becoming due prior to its scheduled maturity, or
immediately and without satisfaction of any condition required to be prepaid, repurchased, redeemed or defeased prior to its scheduled maturity; provided
that this clause (e) shall not apply to secured Indebtedness that becomes due as a result of the voluntary sale or transfer of the property or assets securing
such Indebtedness;

(€3) An involuntary proceeding shall be commenced or an involuntary petition shall be filed seeking (i) liquidation, reorganization or other
relief in respect of the Company, any Guarantor (if any) or any Significant Subsidiary (other than the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries) or its debts, or of a
substantial part of its assets, under any Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar law now or hereafter in effect or (ii) the
appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or similar official for the Company, any Guarantor (if any) or any Significant
Subsidiary (other than the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries) or for a substantial part of its assets, and, in any such case, such proceeding or petition shall
continue undismissed for 60 days or an order or decree approving or ordering any of the foregoing shall be entered;
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(g) The Company, any Guarantor or any Significant Subsidiary (other than the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries) shall (i) voluntarily
commence any proceeding or file any petition seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief under any Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency,
receivership or similar law now or hereafter in effect, (ii) consent to the institution of, or fail to contest in a timely and appropriate manner, any proceeding
or petition described in clause (f) of this Section, (iii) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or
similar official for the Company, any Guarantor or any Significant Subsidiary (other than the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries) or for a substantial part of
its assets, (iv) file an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any such proceeding, (v) make a general assignment for the
benefit of creditors, (vi) take any action for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing or (vii) shall become unable, admit in writing its inability or fail
generally to pay its debts as they become due;

(h) An ERISA Event shall have occurred that, in the reasonable judgment of the Required Holders, when taken together with all other ERISA
Events that have occurred, could reasonably be expected to result in liability to the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries in an aggregate amount in
excess of $100,000,000;

@) Any Note Document, at any time after its execution and delivery and for any reason other than the agreement of all of holders of the
Notes or satisfaction in full of all the Obligations, ceases to be in full force and effect in any material respect, or is declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be null and void, invalid or unenforceable in any material respect; or the Company or any Guarantor (if any) denies that it has any or further
liability or obligation under any Note Document, or purports to revoke, terminate (except as expressly permitted hereunder) or rescind any Note Document;
or

)] One or more judgments (to the extent not covered by insurance where insurance coverage has been acknowledged) for the payment of
money in an aggregate amount in excess of $100,000,000 shall be rendered against the Company, any Restricted Subsidiary or any combination thereof and
the same shall remain undischarged for a period of 60 consecutive days during which execution shall not be effectively stayed, or any action shall be legally
taken by a judgment creditor to attach or levy upon any assets of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary to enforce any such judgment.

SEecTION 12. ReMEDIES oN DErFauLT, ETC.
Section 12.1. Acceleration. (a) If an Event of Default with respect to the Company described in Section 11(f) or (g) (other than an Event of Default

described in clause (vii) of Section 11(g) or described in clause (vi) of Section 11(g) by virtue of the fact that such clause encompasses clause (vii) of Section 11(g))
has occurred, the Facility will automatically terminate and all the Notes then outstanding shall automatically become immediately due and payable.
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(b) If any other Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, any holder or holders of more than 50% in principal amount of the Notes at the time
outstanding may at any time at its or their option, by notice or notices to the Company, terminate the Facility and/or declare all the Notes then outstanding to be
immediately due and payable.

(o) If any Event of Default described in Section 11(a) related to failure to pay interest, principal or Make-Whole Amount has occurred and is
continuing, any holder or holders of Notes at the time outstanding affected by such Event of Default may at any time, at its or their option, by notice or notices to the
Company, declare all the Notes held by it or them to be immediately due and payable.

Upon any Notes becoming due and payable under this Section 12.1, whether automatically or by declaration, such Notes will forthwith mature and the entire
unpaid principal amount of such Notes, plus (x) all accrued and unpaid interest thereon (including, but not limited to, interest accrued thereon at the Default Rate)
and (y) the Make-Whole Amount determined in respect of such principal amount (to the full extent permitted by applicable law), shall all be immediately due and
payable, in each and every case without presentment, demand, protest or further notice, all of which are hereby waived. The Company acknowledges, and the parties
hereto agree, that each holder of a Note has the right to maintain its investment in the Notes free from repayment by the Company (except as herein specifically
provided for) and that the provision for payment of a Make-Whole Amount by the Company in the event that the Notes are prepaid or are accelerated as a result of an
Event of Default, is intended to provide compensation for the deprivation of such right under such circumstances.

Section 12.2. Other Remedies. If any Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, and irrespective of whether any Notes have become
or have been declared immediately due and payable under Section 12.1, the holder of any Note at the time outstanding may proceed to protect and enforce the rights
of such holder by an action at law, suit in equity or other appropriate proceeding, whether for the specific performance of any agreement contained herein or in any
Note, or for an injunction against a violation of any of the terms hereof or thereof, or in aid of the exercise of any power granted hereby or thereby or by law or
otherwise.

Section 12.3. Rescission. At any time after any Notes have been declared due and payable pursuant to Section 12.1(b) or (c), the holders of not less
than 50% in principal amount of the Notes then outstanding, by written notice to the Company, may rescind and annul any such declaration and its consequences if
(a) the Company has paid all overdue interest on the Notes, all principal of and Make-Whole Amount, if any, on any Notes that are due and payable and are unpaid
other than by reason of such declaration, and all interest on such overdue principal and Make-Whole Amount, if any, and (to the extent permitted by applicable law)
any overdue interest in respect of the Notes, at the Default Rate, (b) neither the Company nor any other Person shall have paid any amounts which have become due
solely by reason of such declaration, (c) all Events of Default and Defaults, other than non-payment of amounts that have become due solely by reason of such
declaration, have been cured or have been waived pursuant to Section 17, and (d) no judgment or decree has been entered for the payment of any monies due
pursuant hereto or to the Notes. No rescission and annulment under this Section 12.3 will extend to or affect any subsequent Event of Default or Default or impair
any right consequent thereon.
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Section 12.4. No Waivers or Election of Remedies, Expenses, Etc. No course of dealing and no delay on the part of any holder of any Note in
exercising any right, power or remedy shall operate as a waiver thereof or otherwise prejudice such holder’s rights, powers or remedies. No right, power or remedy
conferred by this Agreement or by any Note upon any holder thereof shall be exclusive of any other right, power or remedy referred to herein or therein or now or
hereafter available at law, in equity, by statute or otherwise. Without limiting the obligations of the Company under Section 15, the Company will pay to the holder
of each Note on demand such further amount as shall be sufficient to cover all costs and expenses of such holder incurred in any enforcement or collection under this
Section 12, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, expenses and disbursements.

SecTION 13. REeGIsTRATION; EXCHANGE; SUBSTITUTION OF NOTES.

Section 13.1. Registration of Notes. The Company shall keep at its principal executive office a register for the registration and registration of transfers
of Notes. The name and address of each holder of one or more Notes, each transfer thereof and the name and address of each transferee of one or more Notes shall
be registered in such register. Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer, the Person in whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and treated
as the owner and holder thereof for all purposes hereof, and the Company shall not be affected by any notice or knowledge to the contrary. The Company shall give
to any holder of a Note that is an Institutional Investor promptly upon request therefor, a complete and correct copy of the names and addresses of all registered
holders of Notes.

Section 13.2. Transfer and Exchange of Notes. Upon surrender of any Note to the Company at the address and to the attention of the designated
officer (all as specified in Section 18(iii)), for registration of transfer or exchange (and in the case of a surrender for registration of transfer accompanied by a written
instrument of transfer duly executed by the registered holder of such Note or such holder’s attorney duly authorized in writing and accompanied by the relevant
name, address and other information for notices of each transferee of such Note or part thereof), within ten Business Days thereafter, the Company shall execute and
deliver, at the Company’s expense (except as provided below), one or more new Notes (as requested by the holder thereof) in exchange therefor, of the same Series
and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the surrendered Note. Each such new Note shall be payable to such Person as such
holder may request and shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit A. Each such new Note shall be dated and bear interest from the date to which interest shall have
been paid on the surrendered Note or dated the date of the surrendered Note if no interest shall have been paid thereon. The Company may require payment of a sum
sufficient to cover any stamp tax or governmental charge imposed in respect of any such transfer of Notes. Notes shall not be transferred in denominations of less
than $100,000, provided that if necessary to enable the registration of transfer by a holder of its entire holding of Notes, one Note may be in a denomination of less
than $100,000. Any transferee, by its acceptance of a Note registered in its name (or the name of its nominee), shall be deemed to have made the representation set
forth in Section 6.2. Each transferee of Notes shall give written notice to the Company of the transfer of such notes to such transferee within 30 days after
consummation of such transfer, which notice shall include the name of each transferee of such Notes and a Purchaser Schedule for each such transferee.
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Section 13.3. Replacement of Notes. Upon receipt by the Company at the address and to the attention of the designated officer (all as specified in
Section 18(iii)) of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the ownership of and the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of any Note (which evidence shall be, in the
case of an Institutional Investor, notice from such Institutional Investor of such ownership and such loss, theft, destruction or mutilation), and

(a) in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it (provided that if the holder of such Note is, or is a
nominee for, an original Purchaser or another holder of a Note with a minimum net worth of at least $100,000,000 or a Qualified Institutional Buyer, such
Person’s own unsecured agreement of indemnity shall be deemed to be satisfactory), or

(b) in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation thereof,

within ten Business Days thereafter, the Company at its own expense shall execute and deliver, in lieu thereof, a new Note, dated and bearing interest from the date to
which interest shall have been paid on such lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Note or dated the date of such lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Note if no interest
shall have been paid thereon.

SEcTION 14. PAYMENTS ON NOTES.

Section 14.1. Place of Payment. Subject to Section 14.2, payments of principal, Make-Whole Amount, if any, and interest becoming due and payable
on the Notes shall be made in New York, New York at the principal office of JPMorgan Chase Bank in such jurisdiction. The Company may at any time, by notice to
each holder of a Note, change the place of payment of the Notes so long as such place of payment shall be either the principal office of the Company in such
jurisdiction or the principal office of a bank or trust company in such jurisdiction.

Section 14.2. Home Office Payment. So long as any Purchaser or its nominee shall be the holder of any Note, and notwithstanding anything contained
in Section 14.1 or in such Note to the contrary, the Company will pay all sums becoming due on such Note for principal, Make-Whole Amount, if any, and interest
by the method and at the address specified for such purpose below such Purchaser’s name in the Confirmation of Acceptance, or by such other method or at such
other address as such Purchaser shall have from time to time specified to the Company in writing for such purpose, without the presentation or surrender of such
Note or the making of any notation thereon, except that upon written request of the Company made concurrently with or reasonably promptly after payment or
prepayment in full of any Note, such Purchaser shall surrender such Note for cancellation, reasonably promptly after any such request, to the Company at its
principal executive office or at the place of payment most recently designated by the Company pursuant to Section 14.1. Prior to any sale or other disposition of any
Note held by a Purchaser or its nominee, such Purchaser will, at its election, either endorse thereon the amount of principal paid thereon and the last date to which
interest has been paid thereon or surrender such Note to the Company in exchange for a new Note or Notes pursuant to Section 13.2. The Company will afford the
benefits of this Section 14.2 to any Institutional Investor that is the direct or indirect transferee of any Note purchased by a Purchaser under this Agreement and that
has made the same agreement relating to such Note as the Purchasers have made in this Section 14.2.
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SEcTION 15. ExpPENsEs, ETC.

Section 15.1. Transaction Expenses. Whether or not the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated or any Notes are issued hereunder, the
Company will pay all reasonable, documented and invoiced costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees of a special counsel and, if reasonably required
by the Required Holders, local or other counsel) incurred by the Purchasers and each other holder of a Note in connection with such transactions and in connection
with any amendments, waivers or consents under or in respect of this Agreement or the Notes (whether or not such amendment, waiver or consent becomes
effective), including, without limitation: (a) the costs and expenses incurred in enforcing or defending (or determining whether or how to enforce or defend) any
rights under this Agreement or the Notes or in responding to any subpoena or other legal process or informal investigative demand issued in connection with this
Agreement or the Notes, or by reason of being a holder of any Note, (b) the costs and expenses, including financial advisors’ fees, incurred in connection with the
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or any Subsidiary or in connection with any work-out or restructuring of the transactions contemplated hereby and by the
Notes and (c) the reasonable, documented and invoiced costs and expenses incurred in connection with the initial filing of this Agreement and all related documents
and financial information with the SVO provided, that such costs and expenses under this clause (c) shall not exceed $3,500. The Company will pay, and will save
each Purchaser and each other holder of a Note harmless from, all claims in respect of any reasonable, documented and invoiced fees, costs or expenses, if any, of
brokers and finders (other than those, if any, retained by a Purchaser or other holder in connection with its purchase of the Notes).

The Company shall indemnify each holder of the Notes and each of its Related Parties (each such Person being called an “Indemnitee”) against, and hold
each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all losses, claims, damages, penalties, liabilities and related expenses, including the fees, charges and disbursements of any
counsel for any Indemnitee, incurred by or asserted against any Indemnitee arising out of, in connection with, or as a result of (i) the execution or delivery of this
Agreement, the Notes, the other Note Documents, or any agreement or instrument contemplated hereby or thereby, the performance by the parties hereto of their
respective obligations hereunder or under the Notes, the other Note Documents, or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, (ii) any
Notes or the use of the proceeds thereof, (iii) any actual or alleged presence or release of Hazardous Materials on or from any property owned or operated by the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or any Environmental Liability related in any way to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or (iv) any actual or prospective
claim, litigation, investigation or proceeding relating to any of the foregoing, whether based on contract, tort or any other theory, whether brought by a third party or
by the Company or any of the Company’s directors, shareholders or creditors, and regardless of whether any Indemnitee is a party thereto; provided that such
indemnity shall not, as to any Indemnitee, be available to the extent that such losses, claims, damages, penalties, liabilities or related expenses are determined by a
court of competent jurisdiction by final and nonappealable judgment to have resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee. The
obligations of the Company under this Section 15.1 shall survive the transfer of any Note or portion thereof or interest therein by any Purchaser or Transferee and the
payment of any Note.
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Section 15.2. Survival. The obligations of the Company under this Section 15 will survive the payment or transfer of any Note, the enforcement,
amendment or waiver of any provision of this Agreement or the Notes, and the termination of this Agreement.

SEcTION 16. SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

All representations and warranties contained herein shall survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Notes, the purchase or transfer by
any Purchaser of any Note or portion thereof or interest therein and the payment of any Note, and may be relied upon by any subsequent holder of a Note, regardless
of any investigation made at any time by or on behalf of such Purchaser or any other holder of a Note. All statements contained in any certificate or other instrument
delivered by or on behalf of the Company pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed representations and warranties of the Company under this Agreement. Subject
to the preceding sentence, this Agreement and the Notes embody the entire agreement and understanding between each Purchaser and the Company and supersede all
prior agreements and understandings relating to the subject matter hereof.

SecTION 17. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER.

Section 17.1. Requirements. This Agreement and the Notes may be amended, and the observance of any term hereof or of the Notes may be waived
(either retroactively or prospectively), with (and only with) the written consent of the Company and the Required Holders, except that (a) no amendment or waiver of
any of the provisions of Section 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 or 21 hereof, or any defined term (as it is used therein), will be effective as to any Purchaser unless consented to by
such Purchaser in writing, and (b) no such amendment or waiver may, without the written consent of the holder of each Note at the time outstanding affected thereby,
(i) subject to the provisions of Section 12 relating to acceleration or rescission, change the amount or time of any prepayment or payment of principal of, or reduce
the rate or change the time of payment or method of computation of interest or of the Make-Whole Amount on, the Notes, (ii) change the percentage of the principal
amount of the Notes the holders of which are required to consent to any such amendment or waiver, or (iii) amend any of Sections 8, 11(a), 11(b), 12, 17 or 20.

Section 17.2. Solicitation of Holders of Notes.

(a) Solicitation. The Company will provide each holder of the Notes (irrespective of the amount of Notes then owned by it) with sufficient
information, sufficiently far in advance of the date a decision is required, to enable such holder to make an informed and considered decision with respect to any
proposed amendment, waiver or consent in respect of any of the provisions hereof or of the Notes. The Company will deliver executed or true and correct copies of
each amendment, waiver or consent effected pursuant to the provisions of this Section 17 to each holder of outstanding Notes promptly following the date on which it
is executed and delivered by, or receives the consent or approval of, the requisite holders of Notes.
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(b) Payment. The Company will not directly or indirectly pay or cause to be paid any remuneration, whether by way of supplemental or additional
interest, fee or otherwise, or grant any security or provide other credit support, to any holder of Notes as consideration for or as an inducement to the entering into by
any holder of Notes of any waiver or amendment of any of the terms and provisions hereof unless such remuneration is concurrently paid, or security is concurrently
granted or other credit support concurrently provided, on the same terms, ratably to each holder of Notes then outstanding even if such holder did not consent to such
waiver or amendment.

Section 17.3. Binding Effect, etc. Any amendment or waiver consented to as provided in this Section 17 applies equally to all holders of Notes and is
binding upon them and upon each future holder of any Note and upon the Company without regard to whether such Note has been marked to indicate such
amendment or waiver. No such amendment or waiver will extend to or affect any obligation, covenant, agreement, Default or Event of Default not expressly
amended or waived or impair any right consequent thereon. No course of dealing between the Company and the holder of any Note nor any delay in exercising any
rights hereunder or under any Note shall operate as a waiver of any rights of any holder of such Note. As used herein, the term "this Agreement" and references
thereto shall mean this Agreement as it may from time to time be amended or supplemented.

Section 17.4. Notes Held by Company, etc. Solely for the purpose of determining whether the holders of the requisite percentage of the aggregate
principal amount of Notes then outstanding approved or consented to any amendment, waiver or consent to be given under this Agreement or the Notes, or have
directed the taking of any action provided herein or in the Notes to be taken upon the direction of the holders of a specified percentage of the aggregate principal
amount of Notes then outstanding, Notes directly or indirectly owned by the Company or any of its Affiliates shall be deemed not to be outstanding.

Section 18. NorTicEs.
All notices and communications provided for hereunder shall be in writing and sent (a) by telecopy or e-mail if the sender on the same day sends a
confirming copy of such notice by a recognized overnight delivery service (charges prepaid), or (b) by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested

(postage prepaid), or (c) by a recognized overnight delivery service (with charges prepaid). Any such notice must be sent:

@) if to any Purchaser or its nominee, to such Purchaser or nominee at the address specified for such communications in the related
Confirmation of Acceptance, or at such other address as such Purchaser or nominee shall have specified to the Company in writing;
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(ii) if to any other holder of any Note, to such holder at such address as such other holder shall have specified to the Company in writing;

(iii) if to the Company, to 135 Duryea Road, Melville, New York 11747, Attention: Treasurer, E-mail: ferdinand.jahnel@henryschein.com,
Phone No: (631) 454-3109, Fax No: (631) 843-9314; with a copy to 135 Duryea Road — Mail Stop E-365, Melville, New York 11747, Attention: General
Counsel, E-mail: michael.ettinger@henryschein.com, Phone No: (631) 843-5989, Fax No: (631) 843-5660 or at such other address as the Company shall
have specified to the holder of each Note in writing; or

@iv) if to New York Life, to New York Life at the address listed on Schedule B hereto.
Notices under this Section 18 will be deemed given only when actually received.
Section 19. ReproDpUCTION OF DOCUMENTS.

This Agreement and all documents relating thereto, including, without limitation, (a) consents, waivers and modifications that may hereafter be executed,
(b) documents received by any Purchaser at the Closing (except the Notes themselves), and (c) financial statements, certificates and other information previously or
hereafter furnished to any Purchaser, may be reproduced by such Purchaser by any photographic, photostatic, electronic, digital, or other similar process and such
Purchaser may destroy any original document so reproduced. The Company agrees and stipulates that, to the extent permitted by applicable law, any such
reproduction shall be admissible in evidence as the original itself in any judicial or administrative proceeding (whether or not the original is in existence and whether
or not such reproduction was made by such Purchaser in the regular course of business) and any enlargement, facsimile or further reproduction of such reproduction
shall likewise be admissible in evidence. This Section 19 shall not prohibit the Company or any other holder of Notes from contesting any such reproduction to the
same extent that it could contest the original, or from introducing evidence to demonstrate the inaccuracy of any such reproduction.

SecTIoN 20. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

For the purposes of this Section 20, “Confidential Information” means information delivered to any Purchaser by or on behalf of the Company or any
Subsidiary in connection with the transactions contemplated by or otherwise pursuant to this Agreement that is proprietary or confidential in nature and that was
clearly marked or labeled or otherwise adequately identified when received by such Purchaser as being confidential information of the Company or such Subsidiary,
provided that such term does not include information that (a) was publicly known or otherwise known to such Purchaser prior to the time of such disclosure, (b)
subsequently becomes publicly known through no act or omission by such Purchaser or any person acting on such Purchaser’s behalf, (c) otherwise becomes known
to such Purchaser other than through disclosure by the Company or any Subsidiary or (d) constitutes financial statements delivered to such Purchaser under Section
7.1 that are otherwise publicly available. Each Purchaser will maintain the confidentiality of such Confidential Information in accordance with procedures adopted
by such Purchaser in good faith to protect confidential information of third parties delivered to such Purchaser, provided that such Purchaser may deliver or disclose
Confidential Information to (i) its directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, trustees and affiliates (to the extent such disclosure reasonably relates to the
administration of the investment represented by its Notes), (ii) its financial advisors and other professional advisors who agree to hold confidential the Confidential
Information substantially in accordance with the terms of this Section 20, (iii) any other holder of any Note, (iv) any Institutional Investor to which it sells or offers to
sell such Note or any part thereof or any participation therein (if such Person has agreed in writing prior to its receipt of such Confidential Information to be bound by
the provisions of this Section 20), (v) any Person from which it offers to purchase any security of the Company (if such Person has agreed in writing prior to its
receipt of such Confidential Information to be bound by the provisions of this Section 20), (vi) any federal or state regulatory authority having jurisdiction over such
Purchaser, (vii) the NAIC or the SVO or, in each case, any similar organization, or any nationally recognized rating agency that requires access to information about
such Purchaser’s investment portfolio, or (viii) any other Person to which such delivery or disclosure may be necessary or appropriate (w) to effect compliance with
any law, rule, regulation or order applicable to such Purchaser, (x) in response to any subpoena or other legal process, (y) in connection with any litigation to which
such Purchaser is a party or (z) if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, to the extent such Purchaser may reasonably determine such delivery and
disclosure to be necessary or appropriate in the enforcement or for the protection of the rights and remedies under such Purchaser’s Notes and this Agreement. Each
holder of a Note, by its acceptance of a Note, will be deemed to have agreed to be bound by and to be entitled to the benefits of this Section 20 as though it were a
party to this Agreement. On reasonable request by the Company in connection with the delivery to any holder of a Note of information required to be delivered to
such holder under this Agreement or requested by such holder (other than a holder that is a party to this Agreement or its nominee), such holder will enter into an
agreement with the Company embodying the provisions of this Section 20.
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SecTION 21. SUBSTITUTION OF PURCHASER.

Each Purchaser shall have the right to substitute any one of its Affiliates as the purchaser of the Notes that it has agreed to purchase under any Confirmation
of Acceptance, by written notice to the Company, which notice shall be signed by both such Purchaser and such Affiliate, shall contain such Affiliate’s agreement to
be bound by this Agreement and shall contain a confirmation by such Affiliate of the accuracy with respect to it of the representations set forth in Section 6. Upon
receipt of such notice, any reference to such Purchaser in this Agreement (other than in this Section 21), shall be deemed to refer to such Affiliate in lieu of such
original Purchaser. In the event that such Affiliate is so substituted as a Purchaser hereunder and such Affiliate thereafter transfers to such original Purchaser all of
the Notes then held by such Affiliate, upon receipt by the Company of notice of such transfer, any reference to such Affiliate as a “Purchaser” in this Agreement
(other than in this Section 21), shall no longer be deemed to refer to such Affiliate, but shall refer to such original Purchaser, and such original Purchaser shall again
have all the rights of an original holder of the Notes under this Agreement.
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SEcTION 22. MISCELLANEOUS.

Section 22.1. Successors and Assigns. All covenants and other agreements contained in this Agreement by or on behalf of any of the parties hereto
bind and inure to the benefit of their respective successors and assigns (including, without limitation, any subsequent holder of a Note) whether so expressed or not.

Section 22.2. Payments Due on Non-Business Days. Anything in this Agreement or the Notes to the contrary notwithstanding (but without limiting
the requirement in Section 8.4 that the notice of any optional prepayment specify a Business Day as the date fixed for such prepayment), any payment of principal of
or Make-Whole Amount or interest on any Note that is due on a date other than a Business Day shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day without including
the additional days elapsed in the computation of the interest payable on such next succeeding Business Day; provided that if the maturity date of any Note is a date
other than a Business Day, the payment otherwise due on such maturity date shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day and shall include the additional days
elapsed in the computation of interest payable on such next succeeding Business Day.

Section 22.3. Accounting Terms. All accounting terms used herein which are not expressly defined in this Agreement have the meanings respectively
given to them in accordance with GAAP. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, (i) all computations made pursuant to this Agreement shall be made in
accordance with GAAP, and (ii) all financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Section 22.4. Severability. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in
any jurisdiction shall (to the full extent permitted by law) not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

Section 22.5. Construction, etc. Each covenant contained herein shall be construed (absent express provision to the contrary) as being independent of
each other covenant contained herein, so that compliance with any one covenant shall not (absent such an express contrary provision) be deemed to excuse
compliance with any other covenant. Where any provision herein refers to action to be taken by any Person, or which such Person is prohibited from taking, such
provision shall be applicable whether such action is taken directly or indirectly by such Person.

For the avoidance of doubt, all Schedules and Exhibits attached to this Agreement shall be deemed to be a part hereof.
Section 22.6. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which

together shall constitute one instrument. Each counterpart may consist of a number of copies hereof, each signed by less than all, but together signed by all, of the
parties hereto.
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Section 22.7. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and the rights of the parties shall be governed by,
the law of the State of New York excluding choice-of-law principles of the law of such State that would permit the application of the laws of a jurisdiction other than
such State.

Section 22.8. Jurisdiction and Process; Waiver of Jury Trial. (a) The Company irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of any New
York State or federal court sitting in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, over any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or the Notes. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Company irrevocably waives and agrees not to assert, by way of motion, as a defense
or otherwise, any claim that it is not subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, any objection that it may now or hereafter have to the laying of the venue of any
such suit, action or proceeding brought in any such court and any claim that any such suit, action or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an
inconvenient forum.

(b) The Company consents to process being served by or on behalf of any holder of Notes in any suit, action or proceeding of the nature referred to in
Section 22.8(a) by mailing a copy thereof by registered or certified mail (or any substantially similar form of mail), postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to it at
its address specified in Section 18 or at such other address of which such holder shall then have been notified pursuant to such Section. The Company agrees that
such service upon receipt (i) shall be deemed in every respect effective service of process upon it in any such suit, action or proceeding and (ii) shall, to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law, be taken and held to be valid personal service upon and personal delivery to it. Notices hereunder shall be conclusively presumed
received as evidenced by a delivery receipt furnished by the United States Postal Service or any reputable commercial delivery service.

(o) Nothing in this Section 22.8 shall affect the right of any holder of a Note to serve process in any manner permitted by law, or limit any right that
the holders of any of the Notes may have to bring proceedings against the Company in the courts of any appropriate jurisdiction or to enforce in any lawful manner a

judgment obtained in one jurisdiction in any other jurisdiction.

(d) THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION BROUGHT ON OR WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE NOTES OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT
EXECUTED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THEREWITH.
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If you are in agreement with the foregoing, please sign the form of agreement on a counterpart of this Agreement and return it to the Company, whereupon
this Agreement shall become a binding agreement between you and the Company.

Very truly yours,
Henry Schein, Inc.
By /s/Ferdinand Jahnel

Name: Ferdinand Jahnel
Title: VP Treasurer

This Agreement is hereby
accepted and agreed to as
of the date thereof.

NEw York Lire INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LL.C
By /s/A. Post Howland

Name: A. Post Howland
Title:  Director
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SCHEDULE A

DErFINED TERMS

Part 1.1. Defined Terms.

As used herein, the following terms have the respective meanings set forth below or set forth in the Section hereof following such term:

“Acceptance” is defined in Section 2.6.

“Acceptance Day” is defined in Section 2.6.

“Acceptance Window” is defined in Section 2.6.

“Accepted Note” is defined in Section 2.6.

“Affiliate” means as to any Person, any other Person (other than a Subsidiary) which, directly or indirectly, is in control of, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, such Person. For purposes of this definition, “control” of a Person means the power, directly or indirectly, either to (a) vote 25% or more of the
securities having ordinary voting power for the election of directors of (or persons performing similar functions for) such Person or (b) direct or cause the direction of
the management and policies of such Person, whether by contract or otherwise. Unless the context otherwise clearly requires, any reference to an “Affiliate” is a
reference to an Affiliate of the Company.

“Agreement” means this Note Purchase Agreement, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

“Agreement Effective Date” means August 9, 2010.

“Anti-Terrorism Order” means Executive Order No. 13,224 of September 24, 2001, Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions with Persons Who
Commit, Threaten to Commit or Support Terrorism, 66 U.S. Fed. Reg. 49, 079 (2001), as amended.

“Attorney Costs” means all reasonable fees and disbursements of any law firm or other external counsel.

“Available Facility Amount” means, at any point in time, (a) the aggregate principal amount of Notes stated in Section 1.1, minus (b) the aggregate
principal amount of Notes purchased and sold pursuant to this Agreement prior to that time, minus (c) the aggregate principal amount of Accepted Notes that have
not been purchased and sold hereunder prior to that time and for which the closing has not been cancelled, plus (d) the aggregate principal amount of Notes
purchased, sold, and repaid or prepaid pursuant to this Agreement prior to that time.




“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which commercial banks in New York, New York are required or authorized to
be closed.

“Capital Lease Obligations” means as to any Person, the obligations of such Person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or other arrangement
conveying the right to use) real or personal property, or a combination thereof, which obligations are required to be classified and accounted for as capital leases on a
balance sheet of such Person under GAAP and, for the purposes of this Agreement, the amount of such obligations at any time shall be the capitalized amount thereof
at such time determined in accordance with GAAP.

“Change in Control” means (A) any Person or “group” (within the meaning of Section 13(d) or 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)
(i) shall have acquired beneficial interest of 50% or more of any outstanding class of equity interests having ordinary voting power in the election of the directors of
the Company (other than the aggregate beneficial ownership of the Persons who are officers or directors of the Company on the Agreement Effective Date) or (ii)
shall obtain the power (whether or not exercised) to elect a majority of the Company’s directors or (B) the board of directors of the Company shall not consist of a
majority of Continuing Directors.

“Closing” means any closing of the purchase and sale of Notes hereunder.

“Closing Date” means, with respect to any Accepted Note, the Business Day specified for the closing of the purchase and sale of the Accepted Note in the
Request for Purchase of the Accepted Note, provided that if the Company and the Purchaser which is obligated to purchase the Accepted Note agree on an earlier
Business Day for the closing, the “Closing Date” for the Accepted Note is the earlier Business Day.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder from time to time.

“Company” is defined in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

“Confirmation of Acceptance” is defined in Section 2.6

“Confidential Information” is defined in Section 20.

“Consolidated EBITDA” means for any period, Consolidated Operating Income plus, without duplication, (a) Consolidated Interest Income, (b)
depreciation, (c) amortization, (d) all non-cash charges, and (e) all non-recurring, unusual and extraordinary charges, costs and expenses (including merger,
restructuring and integration charges, costs and expenses).

“Consolidated Gross Profit” means for any period, net sales less cost of sales of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries for such period, determined
on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP and as calculated consistent with the manner disclosed by the Company in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 26, 2009.




“Consolidated Interest Income” means for any period, the interest income of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries for such period, determined on a
consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP and as calculated consistent with the manner disclosed by the Company in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 26, 2009.

“Consolidated Leverage Ratio” means at any date of determination, the ratio of (a) Consolidated Total Net Debt on such date to (b) Consolidated EBITDA
for the period of the four fiscal quarters ending on (or most recently ended prior to) such date.

“Consolidated Operating Expenses” means for any period, total expenses related to salaries, employee benefits and general and administrative expenses of
the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP and as calculated consistent with the manner disclosed by
the Company in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 26, 2009.

“Consolidated Operating Income” means for any period, Consolidated Gross Profit less Consolidated Operating Expenses of the Company and its
Restricted Subsidiaries determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP and as calculated consistent with the manner disclosed by the Company in its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 26, 2009.

“Consolidated Total Assets” means at any date of determination, the net book value of all assets of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries determined
on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP and as calculated consistent with the manner disclosed by the Company in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 26, 2009.

“Consolidated Total Net Debt” means at any date of determination, without duplication (a) the aggregate amount of all Indebtedness of the Company and
its Restricted Subsidiaries, minus (b) the Unrestricted Cash Amount of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries, in each case determined on a consolidated basis
in accordance with GAAP as of such date.

“Continuing Directors” means as to the Company, the directors of the Company on the Agreement Effective Date and each other director of the Company
whose nomination for election to the Board of Directors of Company is recommended by a majority of the then Continuing Directors.

“Contractual Obligation” means any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan, purchase or credit agreement, lease, or any other agreement or instrument to
which the Company or any Subsidiary is bound or by which the Company or any Subsidiary or any of their respective properties may be bound or affected or any

security issued by the Company or any Subsidiary.

“Control Event” means the execution of any written agreement which, when fully performed by the parties thereto, would result in a Change in Control.




“Default” means any event or circumstance that, with the giving of any notice, the passage of time, or both, would be an Event of Default.

“Default Rate” means that rate of interest that is the greater of (i) 1% per annum above the rate of interest stated in clause (a) of the first paragraph of the
Notes or (ii) 1% over the rate of interest publicly announced by JPMorgan Chase Bank in New York, New York as its “base” or “prime” rate.

“Disclosed Matters” means the actions, suits and proceedings and the environmental matters disclosed in Schedule 5.11.

“Disposition” or “Dispose” means the sale, transfer, license or other disposition (including any sale and leaseback transaction) of any property by any
Person, including any sale, assignment, transfer or other disposal, with or without recourse, of any notes or accounts receivable or any rights and claims associated
therewith.

“Disposition Value” means (a) in the case of property that does not constitute Subsidiary Stock, the book value thereof, valued at the time of such
Disposition in good faith by the Company, and (b) in the case of property that constitutes Subsidiary Stock, an amount equal to that percentage of book value of the
assets of the Restricted Subsidiary that issued such stock as is equal to the percentage that the book value of such Subsidiary Stock represents of the book value of all
of the outstanding Equity Interests of such Restricted Subsidiary (assuming, in making such calculations, that all securities convertible into such Equity Interests are
so converted and giving full effect to all transactions that would occur or be required in connection with such conversion) determined at the time of the Disposition
thereof, in good faith by the Company.

“Domestic Subsidiary” means any Restricted Subsidiary other than a Foreign Subsidiary.
“Dollars” and “$” means lawful currency of the United States of America.

“Environmental Laws” means all laws, rules, regulations, codes, ordinances, orders, decrees, judgments, injunctions, written notices or written and binding
agreements issued, promulgated or entered into by any Governmental Authority, relating to the pollution or the protection of the environment, preservation or
reclamation of natural resources, the management, release or threatened release of any Hazardous Material or imposing workers health and safety requirements.

“Environmental Liability” means any liability, contingent or otherwise (including any liability for damages, costs of environmental remediation, fines,
penalties or indemnities), of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary directly or indirectly resulting from or based upon (a) violation of any Environmental Law,
(b) the generation, use, handling, transportation, storage, treatment or disposal of any Hazardous Materials, (c) exposure to any Hazardous Materials, (d) the release
or threatened release of any Hazardous Materials into the environment or (e) a claim made pursuant to any written contract, agreement or other written and binding
consensual arrangement pursuant to which liability is assumed or imposed by or on Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries with respect to any of the
foregoing.




“Equity Interests” means any and all shares of capital stock, partnership interests, membership interests in a limited liability company, beneficial interests
in a trust or other equity ownership interests in a Person, and any warrants, options or other rights entitling the holder thereof to purchase or acquire any such equity
interests.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder from time to time in effect.

“ERISA Affiliate” means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that, together with the Company, is treated as a single employer under Section
414(b) or (c) of the Code or, solely for purposes of Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the Code, is treated as a single employer under Section 414(b), (c), (m)
or (o) of the Code.

“ERISA Event” means (a) any “reportable event”, as defined in Section 4043 of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder with respect to a Plan (other
than an event for which the 30 -day notice period is waived); (b) the existence with respect to any Plan of an "accumulated funding deficiency" (as defined in Section
412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA), whether or not waived; (c) prior to January 1, 2008, any failure by any Plan to satisfy the minimum funding standards
(within the meaning of Section 412 of the code or Section 302 of ERISA) applicable to such Plan; (d) the filing pursuant to Section 412(d) of the Code or Section
303(d) of ERISA of an application for a waiver of the minimum funding standard with respect to any Plan; (e) the incurrence by the Company or any of its ERISA
Affiliates of any liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect to the termination of any Plan; (f) a determination that any Plan is in “at risk” status (within the
meaning of Section 430 of the Code or Title IV of ERISA; (g) the receipt by the Company or any of its ERISA Affiliates from the PBGC or a plan administrator of
any notice relating to an intention to terminate any Plan or Plans or to appoint a trustee to administer any Plan under Section 4042 of ERISA; (h) the incurrence by
the Company or any of its ERISA Affiliates of any liability with respect to the withdrawal or partial withdrawal from any Multiemployer Plan; or (i) the receipt by
the Company or any ERISA Affiliate of any notice (x) imposing withdrawal liability under Title IV of ERISA or (y) stating that a Multiemployer Plan is, or is
reasonably expected to be, Insolvent or in Reorganization (within the meaning of Title IV of ERISA).

“Event of Default” means any of the events specified in Section 11.

“Existing Credit Facility” means the $400,000,000 Credit Agreement dated as of September 5, 2008, among the Borrower, the several lenders party
thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and HSBC Bank USA, N.A., The Bank of New York Mellon, and UniCredit Markets and Investment
Banking, acting through Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG, New York Branch, as co-syndication agents, as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time.




“Existing Note Agreement” means that certain Note Purchase Agreement dated as of September 25, 1998, as amended, between the Company and the
various note holders party thereto.

“Facility” is defined in Section 2.1.
“Facility Fee” is defined in Section 3.2.

“Fair Market Value” means at any time and with respect to any property, the sale value of such property that would be realized in an arm’s-length sale at
such time between an informed and willing buyer and an informed and willing seller (neither being under a compulsion to buy or sell).

“Financing Lease” means any lease of property, real or personal, the obligations of the lessee in respect of which are Capital Lease Obligations on a
balance sheet of the lessee.

“Foreign Subsidiary” means any Restricted Subsidiary incorporated or otherwise organized in any jurisdiction outside the United States of America, its
territories and possessions.

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America consistently applied with respect to those utilized in preparing the
audited financial statements referred to in subsection 5.1.

“Governmental Authority” means

(a the government of
@) the United States of America or any State or other political subdivision of either thereof, or
(ii) any other jurisdiction in which the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary conducts all or a substantial part of its business, or

which asserts jurisdiction over any properties of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary, or
(b) any entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of, or pertaining to, any such government.

“Guarantee Obligation” means as to any Person (the “guaranteeing person”), any obligation of (a) the guaranteeing person or (b) another Person
(including, without limitation, any bank under any letter of credit) to induce the creation of which the guaranteeing person has issued a reimbursement,
counterindemnity or similar obligation, in either case guaranteeing or in effect guaranteeing any Indebtedness, leases, dividends or other obligations (the “primary
obligations”) of any other unrelated third Person (the “primary obligor”) in any manner, whether directly or indirectly, including, without limitation, any obligation of
the guaranteeing person, whether or not contingent, (i) to purchase any such primary obligation or any property constituting direct or indirect security therefor, (ii) to
advance or supply funds (1) for the purchase or payment of any such primary obligation or (2) to maintain working capital or equity capital of the primary obligor or
otherwise to maintain the net worth or solvency of the primary obligor, (iii) to purchase property, securities or services primarily for the purpose of assuring the
owner of any such primary obligation of the ability of the primary obligor to make payment of such primary obligation or (iv) otherwise to assure or hold harmless
the owner of any such primary obligation against loss in respect thereof; provided, however, that the term Guarantee Obligation shall not include endorsements of
instruments for deposit or collection in the ordinary course of business. The amount of any Guarantee Obligation shall be deemed to be an amount equal to the stated
or determinable amount of the related primary obligation, or portion thereof, in respect of which such Guarantee Obligation is made or, if not stated or determinable,
the maximum reasonably anticipated liability in respect thereof as determined by the guaranteeing Person in good faith.




“Guarantors” means any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company that has executed and delivered, and remains bound by, a Guaranty Agreement pursuant to
the terms hereof.

“Guaranty” means, with respect to any Person, any obligation (except the endorsement in the ordinary course of business of negotiable instruments for
deposit or collection) of such Person guaranteeing or in effect guaranteeing any indebtedness, dividend or other obligation of any other Person in any manner,
whether directly or indirectly, including (without limitation) obligations incurred through an agreement, contingent or otherwise, by such Person:

(a) to purchase such indebtedness or obligation or any property constituting security therefor;
b) to advance or supply funds (i) for the purchase or payment of such indebtedness or obligation, or (ii) to maintain any working capital or
other balance sheet condition or any income statement condition of any other Person or otherwise to advance or make available funds for the purchase or

payment of such indebtedness or obligation;

(o) to lease properties or to purchase properties or services primarily for the purpose of assuring the owner of such indebtedness or obligation
of the ability of any other Person to make payment of the indebtedness or obligation; or

(d) otherwise to assure the owner of such indebtedness or obligation against loss in respect thereof.

In any computation of the indebtedness or other liabilities of the obligor under any Guaranty, the indebtedness or other obligations that are the subject of such
Guaranty shall be assumed to be direct obligations of such obligor.

“Guaranty Agreement” means each guaranty agreement in the form of Exhibit E (or such other agreement in form and substance acceptable to the
Required Holders) executed by any Subsidiary of the Company.

“Hazardous Material” means all explosive or radioactive substances or wastes and all hazardous or toxic substances, wastes or other pollutants, including
petroleum or petroleum distillates, asbestos or asbestos containing materials, polychlorinated biphenyls, radon gas, infectious or medical wastes and all other
substances or wastes of any nature, to the extent regulated pursuant to any Environmental Law.




“holder” means, with respect to any Note the Person in whose name such Note is registered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
13.1.

“Indebtedness” means of any Person at any date, without duplication, (a) all indebtedness of such Person for borrowed money, (b) all obligations of such
Person for the deferred purchase price of property or services, (c) all obligations of such Person evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or other similar instruments,
(d) all obligations of such Person created or arising under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement with respect to property acquired by such Person, (e)
all Capital Lease Obligations of such Person, (f) all obligations of such Person, contingent or otherwise, as an account party or applicant under or in respect of
bankers’ acceptances, letters of credit, surety bonds or similar arrangements, (g) all indebtedness of such Person, determined in accordance with GAAP, arising out of
a Receivables Transaction, (h) all Guarantee Obligations of such Person, (i) all obligations of such Person secured by (or for which the holder of such obligation has
an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien on property (including accounts and contract rights) owned by such Person, whether or not such
Person has assumed or become liable for the payment of such obligation; provided, however, that in the event that liability of such Person is non-recourse to such
Person and is recourse only to specified property owned by such Person, the amount of Indebtedness attributed thereto shall not exceed the greater of the Fair Market
Value of such property or the net book value of such property, and (j) for the purposes of the definition of “Material Indebtedness” only (except to the extent
otherwise included above), all obligations of such Person in respect of Swap Contracts; provided that for the purposes of the definition of “Material Indebtedness,”
the “principal amount” of the obligations of such Person in respect of any Swap Contract at any time shall be the maximum aggregate amount (giving effect to any
netting agreements) that such Person would be required to pay if such Swap Contract were terminated at such time. The Indebtedness of any Person shall include the
Indebtedness of any other entity (including any partnership in which such Person is a general partner) to the extent such Person is actually liable therefor as a result
of such Person’s ownership interest in or other relationship with such entity, except to the extent the terms of such Indebtedness expressly provide that such Person is
not actually liable therefor.

“Insolvency” means with respect to any Multiemployer Plan, the condition that such Plan is insolvent within the meaning of Section 4245 of ERISA.

“Insolvent” means pertaining to a condition of Insolvency.

“Institutional Investor” means (a) any Purchaser of a Note, (b) any holder of a Note holding (together with one or more of its affiliates) more than 5.0% of
the aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding, (c) any bank, trust company, savings and loan association or other financial institution, any pension

plan, any investment company, any insurance company, any broker or dealer, or any other similar financial institution or entity, regardless of legal form, and (d) any
Related Fund of any holder of any Note.




“Issuance Period” is defined in Section 2.2.

“Joint Venture” means W.A. Butler Company, a Delaware corporation (currently known as Winslow Acquisition Company, together with its permitted
successors and assigns).

“Lien” means any mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, assignment, deposit arrangement, encumbrance, lien (statutory or other), charge or other security
interest or any preference, priority or other security agreement or preferential arrangement of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, any
conditional sale or other title retention agreement and any Financing Lease having substantially the same economic effect as any of the foregoing).

“Make-Whole Amount” is defined in Section 8.6.
“Market Disruption” is defined in Section 2.7.

“Material” means material in relation to the business, operations, affairs, financial condition, assets or properties, of the Company and its Restricted
Subsidiaries taken as a whole.

“Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on (a) the business, operations, affairs, financial condition, assets or properties of the Company
and its Restricted Subsidiaries taken as a whole, or (b) the ability of the Company to perform its obligations under this Agreement and the Notes, or the ability of the
Guarantors to perform their obligations under the Guaranties or (c) the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, the Notes or Guaranties or the material rights and
remedies of the holders of the Notes thereunder.

“Material Indebtedness” means Indebtedness (other than the Indebtedness evidenced by the Notes) of any one or more of the Company and its Restricted
Subsidiaries in an aggregate principal amount exceeding $100,000,000.

“Multiemployer Plan” means any Plan that is a “multiemployer plan” (as such term is defined in section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA).

“NAIC” means the National Association of Insurance Commissioners or any successor thereto.

“New York Life” is defined in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

“New York Life Affiliate” means (a) any corporation or other entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with, New York Life or (b) any
managed account or investment fund which is managed by New York Life or a New York Life Affiliate described in clause (a) of this definition. For purposes of this
definition, the terms “control,” “controlling” and “controlled” shall mean the ownership, directly or through subsidiaries, of a majority of a corporation’s or other
entity’s voting stock or equivalent voting securities or interests.

“Note Documents” means this Agreement, any Notes and any Guaranty Agreements executed and delivered pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, and

any collateral documents executed or delivered to or in favor of any holders of the Notes or their agent or representative in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.




“Notes” is defined in Section 1.1.

“Obligations” means collectively, the unpaid principal of and interest on the Notes and all other obligations and liabilities of the Company under this
Agreement and the other Note Documents to which it is a party (including, without limitation, interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in this Agreement
or any other applicable Note Document after the maturity of the Notes and interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in this Agreement or any other
applicable Note Document after the filing of any petition in bankruptcy, or the commencement of any insolvency, reorganization or like proceeding, relating to the
Company, whether or not a claim for post-filing or post-petition interest is allowed in such proceeding), whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to
become due, or now existing or hereafter incurred, which may arise under, out of, or in connection with, this Agreement, the Notes, the other Note Documents, or
any other document made, delivered or given in connection therewith, in each case whether on account of principal, interest, reimbursement obligations, fees,
indemnities, costs, expenses or otherwise (including, without limitation, all Attorney Costs of counsel to the Purchasers that are required to be paid by the Company
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other Note Document).

“Officer’s Certificate” means a certificate of a Senior Financial Officer or of any other officer of the Company whose responsibilities extend to the subject
matter of such certificate.

“PBGC” means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation referred to and defined in ERISA and any successor entity performing similar functions.

“Permitted JV Refinancing Indebtedness” means Indebtedness of the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries which satisfies each of the following
conditions: (a) to the extent that such Indebtedness is to be secured by a Lien on any assets or property, or the Equity Interests, of the Joint Venture and its
Subsidiaries, the terms of such Indebtedness (including the Liens that secure such Indebtedness) shall be substantially similar to those provided in the Winslow Credit
Documents (other than changes which extend the maturity thereof, decrease the interest rate applicable thereto, release a portion of the assets subject to such Liens or
otherwise amend the terms in a manner that could not reasonably be expected to be materially adverse to the interests of the Purchasers taken as a whole) and any
Liens that secure such Indebtedness do not cover any additional assets, property or Equity Interests; (b) such Indebtedness shall consist of (i) a secured facility which
satisfies the requirements of clause (a) above or (ii) an unsecured or subordinated facility (and guarantees in respect thereof provided by any Subsidiary of the Joint
Venture) with terms customary for facilities of such type at such time; (c) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would result from
the incurrence of such Indebtedness; (d) such Indebtedness shall not be subject to any amortization or required repayment obligations (other than, in the case of a
secured facility, as contemplated by clause (a) above or, in the case of an unsecured or subordinated facility, as then reflects the customary terms for facilities of such
type at such time) on or prior to the Termination Date (as defined in the Existing Credit Facility as in effect on the date hereof); (e) the net proceeds of such
Indebtedness (other than any revolving Indebtedness) are concurrently applied to the prepayment of the Indebtedness to be refinanced; and (f) each Purchaser shall
have received (x) a certificate of a Responsible Officer of the Joint Venture certifying compliance with the conditions set forth in this definition (and attaching any
other information reasonably required by the Required Holders) and (y) copies of all the loan documents relating to such Indebtedness at least three Business Days
prior to the funding of any such Indebtedness.
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“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, business trust, limited liability company, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association,
joint venture, Governmental Authority or other entity of whatever nature. “Plan” means an “employee benefit plan” (as defined in section 3(3) of ERISA) subject to
Title I of ERISA that is or, within the preceding five years, has been established or maintained, or to which contributions are or, within the preceding five years, have
been made or required to be made, by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate or with respect to which the Company or any ERISA Affiliate may have any liability.

“Plan” means at a particular time, any “employee pension benefit plan,” as such term is defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA and which is subject to Title IV of
ERISA and/or Section 412 of the Code, other than a Multiemployer Plan, and in respect of which the Company or an ERISA Affiliate is (or, if such plan were
terminated at such time, would under Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be) an “employer” as defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA or to which the Company or an
ERISA Affiliate contributes or has an obligation to contribute.

“Principal Debt Facility” means any agreement, instrument or facility, and any renewal, refinancing, refunding or replacement thereof, or any two or more
of any of the foregoing forming part of a common interrelated financing or other transaction (collectively, a “Debt Agreement”) in respect of which the Company or
any Restricted Subsidiary (other than the Joint Venture and its Subsidiaries) is a borrower, guarantor or other obligor, providing for the incurrence of Indebtedness by
the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary in an aggregate principal amount equal to or in excess of $300,000,000 (or the equivalent thereof in any other currency),
regardless of the principal amount outstanding thereunder from time to time. For the avoidance of doubt, each of the Existing Credit Facility, the Indebtedness under
the Existing Note Agreement and the Indebtedness under the Prudential Note Agreement is a Principal Debt Facility.

“Priority Debt” shall mean, without duplication and as at any time of determination thereof, the sum of the following items: (i) Indebtedness of the
Company secured by Liens (other than Liens permitted under clauses (a) through (o) of Section 10.2); (ii) Indebtedness of any Restricted Subsidiary owing to any
Person (other than Indebtedness permitted under clauses (i) through (viii) of Section 10.3(b)); and (iii) preferred stock of any Restricted Subsidiary held by any
Person other than the Company or a wholly owned Restricted Subsidiary.

“property” or “properties” means, unless otherwise specifically limited, real or personal property of any kind, tangible or intangible, choate or inchoate.

“Proposed Prepayment Date” shall have the meaning specified in Section 8.6(c).
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“Pro Rata Portion” means, with respect to a Note and the prepayment of Indebtedness for purposes of Sections 8.7 and 10.5(g), the portion of such Note
equal to (a) the aggregate amount of the proceeds to be used in the prepayment or repayment of all Indebtedness pursuant to Section 10.5(g) (including the Notes)
multiplied by (b) a fraction, the numerator of which is the aggregate principal amount of such Note and the denominator of which is the aggregate principal amount
of all such Indebtedness to be prepaid or repaid in accordance with Section 10.5(g).

“Prudential Note Agreement” means that certain Private Shelf Agreement, dated on or about the date hereof, by and between the Company, Prudential
Investment Management, Inc. and each Prudential Investment Management, Inc. affiliate which becomes party thereto, as amended, restated, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time.

“PTE” is defined in Section 6.2(a).
“Purchaser” is defined in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

“Qualified Institutional Buyer” means any Person who is a “qualified institutional buyer” within the meaning of such term as set forth in Rule 144A(a)(1)
under the Securities Act.

“Receivables” means any accounts receivable of any Person, including, without limitation, any thereof constituting or evidenced by chattel paper,
instruments or general intangibles, and all proceeds thereof and rights (contractual and other) and collateral related thereto.

“Receivables Subsidiary” means any special purpose, bankruptcy-remote Restricted Subsidiary that purchases Receivables generated by the Company or
any of its Restricted Subsidiaries.

“Receivables Transaction” means any transaction or series of transactions providing for the financing of Receivables of the Company or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries, involving one or more sales, contributions or other conveyances by the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries of its/their Receivables
to Receivables Subsidiaries which finance the purchase thereof by means of the incurrence of Indebtedness or otherwise. Notwithstanding anything contained in the
foregoing to the contrary: (a) no portion of the Indebtedness (contingent or otherwise) with respect to any Receivables Transactions shall (i) be guaranteed by the
Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries, (ii) involve recourse to the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries (other than the relevant Receivables
Subsidiary), or (iii) require or involve any credit support or credit enhancement from the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries (other than the relevant
Receivables Subsidiary), provided that the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries will be permitted to agree to representations, warranties, covenants and
indemnities that are reasonably customary in accounts receivable securitization transactions of the type contemplated (none of which representations, warranties,
covenants or indemnities will result in recourse to the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries (other than the relevant Receivables Subsidiary) beyond the
limited recourse that is reasonably customary in accounts receivable securitization transactions of the type contemplated); and (b) the securitization facility and
structure relating to such Receivables Transactions shall be on market terms and conditions customary for Receivables transactions of the type contemplated.
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“Refund Percentage” means (i) 50% if the Issuance Period is terminated by New York Life pursuant to Section 2.2(b) of this Agreement on or prior to
November 9, 2010 and (ii) 25% otherwise.

“Related Fund” means, with respect to any holder of any Note, any fund or entity that (i) invests in Securities or bank loans, and (ii) is advised or managed
by such holder, the same investment advisor as such holder or by an affiliate of such holder or such investment advisor.

“Related Parties” means with respect to any specified Person, such Person’s Affiliates and the respective directors, officers, employees, and agents of such
Person or such Person’s Affiliates.

“Reorganization” means with respect to any Multiemployer Plan, the condition that such plan is in reorganization within the meaning of Section 4241 of
ERISA.

“Request for Purchase” is defined in Section 2.4.

“Required Holders” means, at any time, the holders of more than 50% in principal amount of the Notes at the time outstanding (exclusive of Notes then
owned by the Company or any of its Affiliates).

“Requirement of Law” means (i) the corporate charter, by-laws or other organizational or governing documents of the Company or any Subsidiary, (ii) the
terms, conditions or provisions of any order, judgment, decree, or ruling of any court, arbitrator or Governmental Authority, or (iii) any law, treaty, rule or regulation
or determination of an arbitrator or a court or other Governmental Authority, in each case with respect to clause (ii) and (iii), applicable to or binding upon the
Company, any Subsidiary or any property thereof or to which the Company, any Subsidiary or any property thereof is subject.

“Responsible Officer” means with respect to any Person, the chief executive officer and the president of such Person as well as, in the case of the
Company, the Vice President, the Senior Vice President and General Counsel, the Chief Financial Officer and the Treasurer, and in the case of any Guarantor (if any),
a duly elected Vice President of such Guarantor (if any), or, with respect to financial matters, the chief financial officer and the treasurer of such Person, provided,
however, that, solely for purposes of Section 2, “Responsible Officer” shall mean any Senior Financial Officer and any other officer of the Company with
responsibility for the administration of the relevant portion of this Agreement.

“Restricted Subsidiary” means with respect to any Person, any Subsidiary of such Person that is not an Unrestricted Subsidiary of such Person.

“Securities” or “Security” shall have the meaning specified in Section 2(1) of the Securities Act.
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“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time to time, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder from time to time
in effect.

“Senior Financial Officer” means the chief financial officer, principal accounting officer, treasurer or comptroller of the Company.
“Series” is defined in Section 1.1.
“Significant Subsidiary” means

(a) each domestic (i.e., incorporated or organized in the United States or any state or territory thereof; hereinafter, “domestic”) wholly-owned
Restricted Subsidiary or other entity formed or acquired by the Company or any direct or indirect Restricted Subsidiary (whether existing at the date hereof, or
formed or acquired after the date hereof), if such Restricted Subsidiary or entity, after giving effect to the formation/acquisition of the same, has total assets that
exceed ten percent of the domestic “Consolidated Total Assets,” valued as of the occurrence/closing of such formation/acquisition or as of the last day of any fiscal
year thereafter; and

b) each domestic Restricted Subsidiary or entity (whether existing at the date hereof, or formed or acquired after the date hereof) in which the
Company or any Guarantor (if any) has, directly or indirectly, a 66.67% or greater but less than 100% ownership interest which becomes or is a Restricted Subsidiary
if such Restricted Subsidiary or entity, after giving effect to the formation/acquisition of the same, has total assets that exceed five percent of the domestic
“Consolidated Total Assets,” valued as of the occurrence/closing of such formation/acquisition or as of the last day of any fiscal year thereafter.

“Single Employer Plan” means any Plan which is covered by Title IV of ERISA, but which is not a Multiemployer Plan.

“Subsidiary” means as to any Person (“parent”), a corporation, partnership or other entity of which shares of stock or other ownership interests having
ordinary voting power (other than stock or such other ownership interests having such power only by reason of the happening of a contingency) to elect a majority of
the board of directors or other managers of such corporation, partnership or other entity are at the time owned, or the management of which is otherwise controlled,
directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, or both, by such Person. Unless otherwise qualified, all references to a “Subsidiary” or to “Subsidiaries” in
this Agreement shall refer to a direct or indirect Subsidiary or Subsidiaries of the Company.

“Subsidiary Stock” means with respect to any Person, the Equity Interests of any Restricted Subsidiary of such Person.

“SVO” means the Securities Valuation Office of the NAIC or any successor to such Office.
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“Swap Contract” means (a) any and all interest rate swap transactions, basis swap transactions, basis swaps, credit derivative transactions, forward rate
transactions, commodity swaps, commodity options, forward commodity contracts, equity or equity index swaps or options, bond or bond price or bond index swaps
or options or forward foreign exchange transactions, cap transactions, floor transactions, currency options, spot contracts or any other similar transactions or any of
the foregoing (including, but without limitation, any options to enter into any of the foregoing), and (b) any and all transactions of any kind, and the related
confirmations, which are subject to the terms and conditions of, or governed by, any form of master agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc., or any International Foreign Exchange Master Agreement.

“Tax” or “Taxes” means any and all taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, assessments or other charges of whatever nature imposed by any jurisdiction or by
any political subdivision or taxing authority thereon or therein and all interest penalties or similar liabilities with respect thereto.

“Transferee” means any direct or indirect transferee of all or any part of any Note purchased by any Purchaser under this Agreement.

“Unrestricted Cash Amount” means as of any date of determination, that portion of the Company and the Restricted Subsidiaries’ aggregate cash and cash
equivalents in excess of $50,000,000 that are not encumbered by or subject to any Lien (excluding, in all events, any Lien arising from any set-off, netting or other
banking arrangements or other customary cash management arrangements).

“Unrestricted Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary designated by the Company as an “Unrestricted Subsidiary” by written notice to New York Life on the
date of this Agreement and any Subsidiary thereof, but excluding any Unrestricted Subsidiary redesignated by the Company at any time as a Restricted Subsidiary.

“Unrestricted Subsidiary EBITDA” means, as of any date, the Consolidated EBITDA, but substituting the “Unrestricted Subsidiaries” for “the Company
and its Restricted Subsidiaries” in the definition of Consolidated EBITDA and each definition referred to therein.

“Unrestricted Subsidiary Total Assets” means, as of any date, the Consolidated Total Assets, but substituting the “Unrestricted Subsidiaries” for “the
Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries” in the definition of Consolidated Total Assets.

“Updated Schedules” is defined in Section 2.4(f).

“USA Patriot Act” means United States Public Law 107-56, Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept
and Obstruct Terrorism (USA PATRIOT ACT) Act of 2001, as amended from time to time, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder from time to time in
effect.
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“Winslow Credit Agreement” means the credit agreement to be entered into in connection with the Winslow Acquisition between Butler Animal Health
Supply, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as borrower, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative
agent (as amended, waived, modified or supplemented from time to time; provided that any renewal, replacement or refinancing thereof shall satisfy the requirements
set forth in paragraphs (a) through (f) of the definition of “Permitted JV Refinancing Indebtedness”).

“Winslow Credit Documents” means the Winslow Credit Agreement and any agreement, document or instrument creating any security interest or other
encumbrance, or guaranty, entered into in connection therewith and any other agreement, document or instrument ancillary or otherwise related thereto (as amended,
waived, modified or supplemented from time to time; provided that any renewal, replacement or refinancing thereof shall satisfy the requirements set forth in
paragraphs (a) through (f) of the definition of “Permitted JV Refinancing Indebtedness”).

Part 1.2. Other Definitional Provisions.

(a) Unless otherwise specified therein, all terms defined in this Agreement shall have the defined meanings when used in any Notes or any
other Note Documents delivered pursuant hereto.

b) As used herein or in any of the other Note Documents, accounting terms relating to the Company and its Subsidiaries not defined in Part
1.1 of this Schedule A, and accounting terms partly defined in Schedule A, but only to the extent not so defined, shall have the respective meanings given to
them under GAAP. If at any time any change in GAAP or in the manner in which the Company shall be required or permitted to disclose its financial results
in its filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (i.e., a change which is inconsistent with the manner disclosed by the Company in its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 26, 2009) would affect the computation of any financial ratio or requirement set forth in any Note
Document, and either the Company or the Required Holders shall so request, the holders of the Notes and the Company shall negotiate in good faith to
amend such ratio or requirement to preserve the original intent thereof in light of such change (subject to the approval of the Required Holders); provided
that, until so amended, (i) such ratio or requirement shall continue to be computed in accordance with GAAP and as calculated consistent with the manner
disclosed by the Company in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 26, 2009 prior to such change therein and (ii) the
Company shall provide to each holder of the Notes financial statements and other documents required under this Agreement or as reasonably requested
hereunder setting forth a reconciliation between calculations of such ratio or requirement made before and after giving effect to such
change. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of determining compliance with the financial covenants contained in this Agreement, including
without limitation subsection 10.1, any election by the Company to measure an item of Indebtedness using fair value (as permitted by the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 or any similar accounting standard) shall be disregarded and such determination shall be made as if such election
had not been made.
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(o) The words “hereof”, “herein” and “hereunder” and words of similar import when used in this Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a
whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement, and Section, subsection, Schedule and Exhibit references are to this Agreement unless
otherwise specified. In the computation of periods of time from a specified date to a later specified date, the word “from” means “from and including;” the
words “to” and “until” each mean “to but excluding;” and the word “through” means “to and including.”

(d) The meanings given to terms defined herein shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such terms.

Part 1.3. Rounding. Any financial ratios required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to this Agreement shall be calculated by dividing
the appropriate component by the other component, carrying the result to one place more than the number of places by which such ratio is expressed herein and
rounding the result up or down to the nearest number (with a rounding-up if there is no nearest number).

Part 1.4. References to Agreements and Laws. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, (a) references to agreements (including the Note
Documents) and other contractual instruments shall be deemed to include all subsequent amendments, restatements, extensions, supplements and other modifications
thereto, but only to the extent that such amendments, restatements, extensions, supplements and other modifications are not prohibited by any Note Document; and
(b) references to any Law shall include all statutory and regulatory provisions consolidating, amending, replacing, supplementing or interpreting such Law.
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SCHEDULE B
ApbREss FOR NoTICES TO NEW YORK LIFE

New York Life Investment Management LLC
51 Madison Avenue

New York, New York 10010

Attention: Fixed Income Investors Group
Private Finance, 2" Floor

Fax #: (212) 447-4122

With a copy sent via Email to: FIIGLibrary@nylim.com
with a copy of any notices regarding defaults or Events of Default under the operative documents to:

Attention: Office of General Counsel
Investment Section, Room 1016
Fax #: (212) 576-8340




Portions of this agreement have been omitted and separately filed with the SEC with a request for confidential treatment. The location of those omissions
have been noted by [**].

Schedule 5.14

Subsidiaries and Equity Investments

Domestic/ Henry Schein and
Entity International Jurisdiction of Formation Subsidia.ries
Ownership %
1 |Henry Schein Regional Unit Trust I Australia 79.0420%
2 |Kraft NO 3 Pty Ltd I Australia 79.0420%
3 |Medi-Consumables PTY Limited I Australia 58.0000%
4  |Henry Schein Australia Pty Limited I Australia 100.0000%
5 |Henry Schein Regional Pty Ltd I Australia 79.0420%
6 |Halas Dental Pty Ltd. I Australia 79.0420%
7  |Henry Schein Australia Holdings Pty Limited I Australia 100.0000%
8 |HSLA Unit Trust I Australia 79.0420%
9 |Protec Australia Pty Limited I Australia 79.0420%
10 |HSR Holdings Pty Limited I Australia 79.0420%
11 |CFB Handels GmbH, Wien I Austria 100.0000%
12 |Golth Dentalwarenhandelsgesellschaft mbH I Austria 100.0000%
13 |Henry Schein Dental Austria GmbH I Austria 100.0000%
14 |Henry Schein Austria GmbH I Austria 100.0000%
15 |Henry Schein Medical Austria GmbH I Austria 100.0000%
16 |Belgium Confidential BVBA (1) I Belgium 50.4900%
17 |Belgium Confidential BVBA (2) I Belgium 50.8000%
18 |Dental Express S.A. I Belgium 100.0000%
19 |Henry Schein NV I Belgium 100.0000%
20 |HS Trust I British Virgin Islands 100.0000%
21 |Ortho Organizers, Inc. D California 98.2900%
22 |Henry Schein Canada, Inc. I Canada 100.0000%
23 |Henry Schein Funding Group (partnership) I Canada 100.0000%
24 |Henry Schein Software of Excellence Finance Ltd. I Cayman Islands 100.0000%
25 |Henry Schein Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. I China, People's Republic of 51.0000%
China
26 ]Custom Milling Center, Inc. D Colorado 50.0000%
27 |Henry Schein Dental s.r.o. I Czech Republic 86.0010%
28 |Noviko s.r.o. I Czech Republic 86.0000%
29 |S-Dent spol. s r.o. I Czech Republic 86.0010%
30 |AD Interests, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
31 |Butler Animal Health Holding Company, LLC D Delaware 50.1000%
32 |Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC D Delaware 50.100000%
33 |Delaware Confidential LLC D Delaware 45.0000%

Entities in italics and bold denotes confidential relationship
Additional information to be provided upon request

Current as of August 6, 2010

[**] - Confidential or proprietary information redacted.




Schedule 5.14
Subsidiaries and Equity Investments

Henry Schein and

Entity In?:rl:;:it(i)cr:al Jurisdiction of Formation Subsidi;{ries
Ownership %
34 |Delaware Confidential Corp. (1) D Delaware 100.0000%
35 |Delaware Confidential Corp. (2) D Delaware 100.0000%
36 |Delaware Confidential Corp. (3) D Delaware 56.0723%
37 |Henry Schein Europe, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
38 |HF Acquisition Co. LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
39 |NDC Holdco, LLC D Delaware 7.8000%
40 |SG Healthcare Corp. D Delaware 100.0000%
41 |SKBIC Acquisition Corp. D Delaware 90.0000%
42 | Vedco, Inc. D Delaware 16.6666%
43 |W.A. Butler Company D Delaware 70.4522%
44 |D4D Technologies, LLC D Delaware 15.3333%
45 |Delaware Confidential Corp. (4) D Delaware 100.0000%
46 |Gem Medical Acquisition Corp. D Delaware 100.0000%
47 |Handpiece Parts & Repairs, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
48 |Henry Schein Financial Services, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
49 |Henry Schein France Holdings, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
50 |Henry Schein Global Sourcing, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
51 |Henry Schein International LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
52 |Henry Schein Italy, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
53 |Henry Schein Latin America Pacific Rim Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
54 |Henry Schein New Zealand Holding Co. D Delaware 100.0000%
55 |HPR Holdings I, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
56 |HS Beneficiary Services, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
57 |HS Finance Company, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
58 |HS Financial, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
59 |HS France Finance, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
60 |HS TM Holdings, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
61 |HSI Gloves, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
62 |S&S Discount Supply, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
63 |Camlog USA, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
64 |GIV Holdings, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
65 |HPRTM, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%

Entities in italics and bold denotes confidential relationship
Additional information to be provided upon request

Current as of August 6, 2010

[**] - Confidential or proprietary information redacted.




Schedule 5.14
Subsidiaries and Equity Investments

Domestic/ Henry Schein and
Entity International Jurisdiction of Formation Subsidia.ries
Ownership %
66 |HS Brand Management, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
67 |HS Financial Holdings, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
68 |HS Manager Services, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
69 |HSTM,LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
70 |HSIREI, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
71 |MedCorp Acquisition Company, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
72 |National Logistics Services, LLC D Delaware 100.0000%
73 |Toy Products Corp. D Delaware 100.0000%
74 JUniversal Footcare Products, Inc. D Delaware 100.0000%
75  |[**] D Delaware 45.0000%
76 |Ortho Organizers Holdings, Inc. D Delaware 98.2900%
77 |BA FRANCE Eurl I France 100.0000%
78 |Henry Schein France Holding EURL I France 100.0000%
79 |Henry Schein France SCA I France 100.0000%
80 |Henry Schein France Services SARL I France 100.0000%
81 |Henry Schein Implantologie I France 100.0000%
82 |Hippocampe Bressuire I France 33.8300%
83 |Hippocampe Caen I France 34.8800%
84 |Hippocampe EVI I France 46.2500%
85 |Hippocampe Nevers I France 33.1400%
86 |Megadental SAS I France 65.0000%
87 |Camlog Consulting GmbH I Germany 64.8416%
88 |Henry Schein Grundstucks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH & Co. OHG I Germany 100.0000%
89 |Altatec Gmbh I Germany 64.8416%
90 |BA International GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
91 |Camlog Holding GmbH I Germany 64.8416%
92 |Camlog Vertriebs GmbH I Germany 64.8416%
93 |Dentina GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
94 |DES Dental Events Gmbh I Germany 33.3300%
95 |Germany Confidential GmbH (1) I Germany 47.4300%
96 |Germany Confidential GmbH (2) I Germany 51.0000%
97 |Heitech Medizintechnik und Service GmbH & Co. KG I Germany 100.0000%

Entities in italics and bold denotes confidential relationship
Additional information to be provided upon request

Current as of August 6, 2010

[**] - Confidential or proprietary information redacted.




Schedule 5.14

Subsidiaries and Equity Investments

Henry Schein and

Entity In?:rnr:::it(i);/al Jurisdiction of Formation Subsidia.ries
Ownership %
98 |Henry Schein Dental Depot GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
99 |Henry Schein GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
100 |Henry Schein Holding GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
101 |Henry Schein Medical GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
102 |Henry Schein Services GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
103 |Henry Schein Vet GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
104 |Euro Dental Holding GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
105 |FIRST MED Erste Verwaltungs GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
106 |MediQuick Arzt- und, Krankenhausbedarfshandel GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
107 |Nordenta Handelsgesellschaft mbH I Germany 100.0000%
108 |Promed Vertriebsgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG I Germany 100.0000%
109 |PxD Praxis-Discount GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
110 |Tierarztebedarf Jochen Lehnecke GmbH I Germany 100.0000%
111 |Henry Schein China Services Limited I Hong Kong 99.8862%
112 |Henry Schein Hong Kong Limited I Hong Kong 51.0000%
113 ] All-Star Orthodontics, Inc. D Indiana 98.2900%
114 |Henry Schein Ireland Limited I Ireland 100.0000%
115 |Henry Schein Medical Technologies Ltd. I Israel 100.0000%
116 |Henry Schein Shvadent (2009) Ltd. I Israel 70.0000%
117 |Henry Schein Israel I Israel 50.1000%
118 |Henry Schein Italia S.r.1. I Italy 100.0000%
119 |Krugg S.p.A. I Italy 100.0000%
120 |Henry Schein Luxembourg Services S.ar.L I Luxembourg 100.0000%
121 |Henry Schein (Malaysia) SDN. BHD I Malaysia 100.0000%
122 | ACE Surgical Supply Co., Inc. D Massachusetts 51.0000%
123 |Netherlands Confidential B.V. (1) 1 Netherlands 51.0000%
124 |Henry Schein B.V. I Netherlands 100.0000%
125 |Henry Schein C.V. I Netherlands 100.0000%
126 |Henry Schein Europe, B.V. I Netherlands 100.0000%
127 |Henry Schein European Finance B.V. I Netherlands 100.0000%
128 |Henry Schein European Holding B.V. I Netherlands 100.0000%
129 |Netherlands Confidential B.V.(2) I Netherlands 51.0000%
130 |Netherlands Confidential N.V. (1) I Netherlands 51.0000%

Entities in italics and bold denotes confidential relationship

Additional information to be provided upon request

Current as of August 6, 2010

[**] - Confidential or proprietary information redacted.




Schedule 5.14
Subsidiaries and Equity Investments

Entity Domes.tic/ Jurisdictifm of Hegfl){)ssifil;::?e:nd
International Formation Ownership %
131 |Henry Schein Midlist B.V. I Netherlands 51.0000%
132 |Henry Schein Systems B.V. I Netherlands 100.0000%
133 |Henry Schein Wigro van der Kuip B.V. I Netherlands 100.0000%
134 |Netherlands Confidential N.V. (2) I Netherlands 100.0000%
135 |Henry Schein European Services B.V. I Netherlands 100.0000%
136 |AD-LB Supply Corp. D New York 100.0000%
137 |Caligor Physicians & Hospital Supply Corp. D New York 100.0000%
138 |Henry Schein Cares Foundation, Inc. D New York 100.0000%
139 |Henry Schein Supply, Inc. D New York 100.0000%
140 |MBM Hospital Supply Corp. D New York 100.0000%
141 |Micro Bio-Medics, Inc. D New York 100.0000%
142 |Sherman Specialty LLC D New York 51.0000%
143 |Henry Schein New Zealand I New Zealand 100.0000%
144 |Henry Schein Regional Limited I New Zealand 63.9100%
145 |Shalfoon Bros Limited I New Zealand 63.9100%
146 |Software of Excellence Asia Pacific Limited. I New Zealand 100.0000%
147 |Software of Excellence Australia Limited I New Zealand 100.0000%
148 |Software of Excellence International Limited I New Zealand 100.0000%
149 |Henry Schein (KM) Limited I Northern Ireland 100.0000%
150 |Henry Schein Medical Systems, Inc. D Ohio 100.0000%
151 |Henry Schein (Lancaster, PA.) Inc. D Pennsylvania 100.0000%
152 |Henry Schein Portugal, Unipessoal LDA I Portugal 75.0000%
153 |Henry Schein Puerto Rico, Inc. D Puerto Rico 100.0000%
154 |Scotland Confidential Ltd. I Scotland 51.0000%
155 |Veterinary Solutions Limited I Scotland 100.0000%
156 |W. & J. Dunlop Limited I Scotland 100.0000%
157 |S-DENT SLOVAKIA, s.r.0. I Slovakia 86.0010%
158 |BA Dental Europa, SA I Spain 78.0000%
159 |Camlog Espana SA. I Spain 64.8416%
160 |Henry Schein Espaiia Holdings, S.L. I Spain 100.0000%
161 |Henry Schein Espafia SA I Spain 75.0000%
162 |Soluciones y Equipos Dentales, S.A. I Spain 75.0000%
163 |Spain Dental Express S.A. I Spain 75.0000%

Entities in italics and bold denotes confidential relationship
Additional information to be provided upon request

Current as of August 6, 2010

[**] - Confidential or proprietary information redacted.




Schedule 5.14
Subsidiaries and Equity Investments

Domestic/ Henry Schein and
Entity International Jurisdiction of Formation Subsidiaries
Ownership
164 |Heiland Schweiz AG I Switzeland 100.0000%
165 |Camlog Biotechnologies AG I Switzerland 64.8416%
166 |Provet AG I Switzerland 100.0000%
167 |Camlog Holding AG I Switzerland 64.8416%
168 |Camlog Schweiz AG I Switzerland 64.8416%
169 |Petco AG I Switzerland 100.0000%
170 |Provet Holding AG I Switzerland 100.0000%
171 | Vetco AG I Switzerland 100.0000%
172 |Distrivet AG I Switzerland 100.0000%
173 |Banyan International Corporation D Texas 90.0000%
174 |Stat Kit Inc. D Texas 90.0000%
175 |AD Holdings General Partnership D Texas 100.0000%
176 |Henry Schein Saglik Yatirimlari Anonim Sirketi I Turkey 100.0000%
177 |Consulsoft Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
178 |Advanced Group Limited, The I United Kingdom 100.0000%
179 |Advanced Healthcare, The Computing Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
180 |BA (Belgie), Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
181 |BA (Deutschland) Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
182 |BA International, Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
183 |BDG UK Holdings Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
184 |Blackwell Supplies Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
185 |Budget Dental Supplies Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
186 [Civilscene Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
187 |Compudent Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
188 |Henry Schein Europe Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
189 |Henry Schein Technologies (Ireland) Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
190 |Henry Schein UK Finance Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
191 |Trio Diagnostics Limited I United Kingdom 25.0000%
192 |DE Healthcare Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
193 |Ethicare Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
194 |Henry Schein Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
195 |Henry Schein Technologies Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
196 |Henry Schein UK Holdings Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%

Entities in italics and bold denotes confidential relationship

Additional information to be provided upon request

Current as of August 6, 2010

[**] - Confidential or proprietary information redacted.




Schedule 5.14
Subsidiaries and Equity Investments

Domestic/ Henry Schein and
Entity International Jurisdiction of Formation Subsidiaries
Ownership
197 |Inter-Dental Equipment Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
198 |Kent Dental Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
199 |Kent Express Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
200 [|Minerva Dental Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
201 [|Quayle Dental Manufacturing Ltd. I United Kingdom 100.0000%
202 |Software of Excellence United Kingdom Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
203 |Specorder Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
204 |Zahn Dental Supplies Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
205 |Dental Systems Design Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
206 |Software of Excellence UK Holdings Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
207 |Porter Nash Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
208 |Encable Limited I United Kingdom 100.0000%
209 |Quality Clinical Reagents Limited I United Kingdom 25.0000%
210 |Henry Schein Practice Solutions Inc. D Utah 100.0000%
211 |General Injectables & Vaccines, Inc. D Virginia 100.0000%
212 |Insource, Inc. D Virginia 100.0000%
213 |Henry Schein PPT, Inc. D Wisconsin 100.0000%

Entities in italics and bold denotes confidential relationship
Additional information to be provided upon request

Current as of August 6, 2010

[**] - Confidential or proprietary information redacted.




CONFIDENTIAL
Schedule 5.14(b)
See Schedule 5.14(a)




CONFIDENTIAL
Schedule 5.14(c)
None




Schedule 10.2
Existing Liens

Loans/FX Arrangements

Entity Lien holder
Sandgnat Bank of America
Henry Schein Regional Pty Ltd ANZ

Henry Schein Regional Pty Ltd ANZ

Total

Capital Leases

Henry Schein Canada Inc.
Henry Schein Dunlops (UK)
Australia/New Zealand

Ortho Organizers

Henry Schein Hong Kong
Germany — several entities
Henry Schein Espana, S.A.
Henry Schein UK Holdings
Camlog International

Software of Excellence Int’l Ltd
Butler Schein Animal Health Group
Total

Type of Lien
Security Interest/ deposit arrangement

Floating Charge - Guarantee

Floating Charge — Lease

$

Amount of
Lien

350,000
2,379,000

307,000
3,036,000

4,237
409,573
297,534

25,424
7,251
65,787
6,925
78,641
3,084,748
27,232
1,050,012
5,057,364




Existing Liens/Security Deposits

LOCATION

LEASES IN EFFECT ON A MONTH TO MONTH BASIS

LEASE EXPIRES 2010
TULSA, OK

TUCSON, AZ
URBANDALE, 1A

LEASE EXPIRES 2011
CHICAGO, IL

FAIRHOPE, AL

IRMO, SC

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
FIRST INDUSTRIAL
SPARKS, NV

DEL MAR, CA
CINCINATTI, OH
ELLICOT CITY/BALTIMORE, MD
RALEIGH, NC
HUNTSVILLE, AL
SOUTH JORDAN, UT
HOUSTON, TX

SAN ANTONIO, TX
WILSONVILLE, OR
ORANGE, CA

ORANGE, CA

ORANGE, CA

SAN-JOSE, CA

S. SAN FRANCISCO, CA

LEASE EXPIRES 2012
OMAHA, NE
COLOMBUS, OH
WILLIAMSVILLE, NY
MANDEVILLE, LA
JUPITER, FL
LIVERMORE, CA
WESTCHESTER, PA

11604 SW 15TH ST., AUBURN, WA 98011

PAYEE

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
GRANT ROAD INDUSTRIAL
BP JOHNSON

GREENPOINT BUSINESS PARK INVESTORS
PROJECT 64 LLC
ROGER E CROUCH / MATRIX MEDICAL

PADDOK PARTNERSHIP/BRADFORD MNGMT

SECURITY DEPOSIT

PROLOGIS TRUST

CHARNHOLM & ASSOCIATED

DUKE REALTY CORPORATION

MERRITT PROPERTIES LLC

PYLON, INC.

FSG PARTNERS

PHEASANT HOLLOW BUSINESS PARK LLC
NORTHWEST TECHNICAL CENTER
WATCH OMEGA HOLDINGS

BERRY TRUST

ORANGE TAFT, LLC/DOMINO REALTY
ORANGE TAFT, LLC/DOMINO REALTY
ORANGE TAFT, LLC/DOMINO REALTY
BLANCHARD FAMILY L.P.

HYDING OFFICE PARK / PACIFIC GAS AND
ELECTRIC

PROGRESS WEST CORP.

TRIANGLE REAL ESTATE

REALMARK PROPETY

RR VENTURES

PARK PLAZA

PROPERTY RESERVE/SPIEKER PROPERTIES
WOOD DUCK REAL ESTATE

OPUS NORTHWEST MANAGEMENT

AMOUNT OF

@ & P

B e AR R A s e AR R = A ]

@~

AR A e e R SRR

SEC.
DEPOSIT

1,496.00
1,606.50
1,371.69

10,350.00
5,127.50
6,600.00
1,545.83

10,620.00

29,090.40
2,650.00
7,100.00
1,666.17
4,300.00
3,057.75

10,000.00
2,718.90
2,232.00
4,087.00
7,873.00
1,725.00
4,011.71
3,185.00

4,800.50

1,144.00
5,850.00
850.00
13,703.67
2,019.14
11,656.00
11,056.10
5,686.00




FORT WAYNE, IN
E. SYRACUSE, NY

LEASE EXPIRES 2013
HOLLAND, OH
GAITHERSBURGH, MD
ELKRIDGE, MD

LAKE MARY, FL
BOISE, ID
GRAPEVINE, TX
JACKSON, MS

LITTLE ROCK, AR
DORAL, FL

LEASE EXPIRES 2014
PELHAM, NY
LEXINGTON, KY
SOLON, OH
ALBUQUERQUE, NM
HONOLULU, HI

LEASE EXPIRES 2015
BALTIMORE, MD
ATLANTA, GA
LOUISVILLE, KY

OTHER

AMERISOURCE BERGEN (B)

HSE CHARD PER INTL

JOHN LINK & STEPHEN GUSCHING
OLIVA PROPERTIES

ESTATE OF J. THOMAS
HALCYON ASSOCIATES

MIE PROPERTIES, INC.

TRIDENT

MOUNTAIN WEST INVESTMENTS

PRUCROW/JACSONVILLE ELEC. COMPANY

PROGRESSIVE MANAGEMENT CORP
BOEN BUILDING II
AMB - HTD BEACON CENTER

RECKSON OPERATING PARTNERSHIP
AMTEK/RON TURNER

CHELM PROPERTIES, INC

GOPHER BAROUQE LLC

GGP ALA MOANA L.L.C.

MERRIT HF, LLC
FIRST CAL INDUSTRIES
OAKLAND LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

SECURITY DEPOSIT

SECURITY DEPOSIT

Deutsche Bank, Frankfurt

Twin Palms Building

State University of New York at Stony Brook
Darby Dnetal Laboratory Supply Co., Inc.
Best Properties

Autoridad De Energia Eletrica

Rudolf Amman

United Water

COM Ed

FX McRory’s

Amerisource Bergen

Carlsbad, CA

BrainTree

Total

$ 2,500.00
$ 1,909.38

$ 3,208.33
$ 9,062.50
$ 27,960.72
$ 5,000.00
$ 3,600.00
$ 44,000.00
$ 5,459.00
$ 3,061.79
$ 7,198.00

45,960.75
6,340.50
6,727.40
3,100.00
4,229.14

R A

7,198.00
19,226.26
4,709.42

@ & P

$ 1,000,000.00
$ 19,327.06
$ 84,611.91
$ 1,650.00
$ 437.50
$ 6,000.00
$ 6,000.00
$ 6,000.00
$ 4,000.00
$ 300.00
$ 3,723.33
$ 13,742.46
$  300,000.00
$  125,000.00
$ 22,129.00

$ 1,982,552.31




Schedule 10.3
Existing Indebtedness

$320,000,000 Term Loan Note with Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC as Borrower (of which $37.5 million was provided by Henry Schein, Inc.) (“Butler Schein
Note”).

Butler Schein Note 280,331,750
Other! 3,501,780
$ 283,833,530

I Predominantly loans owed to minority shareholders in Henry Schein Israel.




Schedule 10.8
Existing Restrictive Agreements

e  $400,000,000 Credit Agreement among Henry Schein, Inc., the several Lenders party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and HSBC
Bank USA, N.A., The Bank of New York Mellon, and UniCredit Marlets and Investment Banking, acting through Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG, New
York Branch, as co-syndication agents dated September 5, 2008.

e  $320,000,000 Term Loan with Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC as Borrower (of which $37.5 million was provided by Henry Schein, Inc.).

e  $250,000,000 Private Shelf Facility among Henry Schein, Inc. and Prudential Investment Management, Inc. dated August 9, 2010




EXHIBIT A
[FORM OF NOTE]

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR PURSUANT TO AN APPLICABLE EXEMPTION
FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AND SUCH LAWS.

[NAME OF COMPANY]

% SENIOR NOTE, SERIES , DUE

No. «No» PPN: «No»

ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $«-----m-mmnm- »

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

INTEREST RATE: (Rate)%

INTEREST PAYMENT DATES: [March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1], of each year, commencing
FINAL MATURITY DATE:

PRINCIPAL PREPAYMENT DATES AND AMOUNTS: [Entire principal amount payable at final maturity]

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, HENRY SCHEIN, INC (herein called the “Company”), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Delaware, hereby promises to pay to <cPURCHASER», or registered assigns, the principal sum of « WRITTEN_AMOUNT» ($«----------- ») DOLLARS
on the Final Maturity Date specified above, with interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year-30-day month) (a) on the unpaid balance thereof at the Interest
Rate per annum specified above, payable on each Interest Payment Date specified above and on the Final Maturity Date specified above, commencing with the
Interest Payment Date next succeeding the date hereof, until the principal hereof shall have become due and payable, and (b) on any overdue payment (including any
overdue prepayment) of principal, any overdue payment of Make-Whole Amount and any overdue payment of interest, payable on each Interest Payment Date as
aforesaid (or, at the option of the registered holder hereof, on demand), at a rate per annum from time to time equal to the greater of (i) 1% over the Interest Rate
specified above or (ii) 1% over the rate of interest publicly announced by JPMorgan Chase Bank from time to time in New York City as its prime rate.




Payments of principal, Make-Whole Amount, if any, and interest are to be made at the main office of JPMorgan Chase Bank in New York City or at such
other place as the holder hereof shall designate to the Company in writing, in lawful money of the United States of America.

This Note is one of a series of Senior Notes (herein called the “Notes”) issued pursuant to a Master Note Facility, dated as of August 9, 2010 (as it may be
amended, modified or supplemented, the “Agreement”), among the Company, on the one hand, and New York Life Investment Management, LLC, the Purchasers
and each New York Life Affiliate which becomes party thereto, on the other hand, and is entitled to the benefits thereof.

This Note is a registered Note and, as provided in the Agreement, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer, duly endorsed, or accompanied by
a written instrument of transfer duly executed, by the registered holder hereof or such holder’s attorney duly authorized in writing, a new Note for the then
outstanding principal amount will be issued to, and registered in the name of, the transferee. Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer, the Company may
treat the person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment and for all other purposes, and the Company shall not
be affected by any notice to the contrary.

This Note is subject to optional prepayment on the terms specified in the Agreement.

[On ,2[__ ]and on each thereafter, to and including , the Company will prepay $[ ] in principal amount (or such
lesser principal amount as shall then be outstanding) of the Notes at par and without payment of Make Whole Amount or any premium.]

In case an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the principal of this Note may be declared or otherwise become due and payable in the manner
and with the effect provided in the Agreement.

Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings (if any) provided in the Agreement.

This Note is intended to be performed in the State of New York and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal law of such State.

Henry Schein, Inc.

By

[Title]

Exhbit A
Page 2




[FORM OF REQUEST FOR PURCHASE]

[NAME OF COMPANY]

EXHIBIT B

Reference is made to the Master Note Facility (the “Agreement”), dated as of August 9, 2010, among HENRY SCHEIN, INC. (the “Company”), on the one hand,
and New York Life Investment Management LLC (“New York Life”), the Purchasers and each New York Life Affiliate which becomes party thereto, on the other
hand. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings specified in the Agreement.

Pursuant to Section 2.4 of the Agreement, the Company hereby makes the following Request for Purchase:

1. Aggregate principal amount of
the Notes covered hereby

(the “Notes”) $?
2. Individual specifications of the Notes:
Principal
Final Prepayment Interest
Principal Maturity Dates and Payment
Amount Date3 Amounts* Period®

2 Minimum principal amount of $20,000,000.
3 Final maturity not to exceed [15] years.

4 Average life not to exceed [12] years.

5 Specify quarterly or semi-annually.




3. Use or uses of proceeds of the Notes:
4. Proposed day for the closing of the purchase and sale of the Notes:

5. [Schedules 5.11 and 5.14 to the Agreement are to be updated in connection with the issuance of the Notes are restated in full, in the form attached hereto
(the “Updated Schedules”), and marked to show changes from the existing corresponding Schedules to the Agreement.]

6. The Company certifies (a) that the representations and warranties contained in Section 5 of the Agreement, [after giving effect to the replacement of
Schedules 5.11 and 5.14 to the Agreement with the Updated Schedules], are true in all material respects (other than those representations and warranties that are
expressly qualified by a Material Adverse Effect, in which case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects) on and as of the date of
this Request for Purchase except to the extent of changes caused by the transactions contemplated in the Agreement and except as the schedules to the Agreement
have been modified by written supplements delivered by the Company to the Purchasers, and (b) that there exists on the date of this Request for Purchase no Default
or Event of Default and, after giving effect to the issuance of Notes on the proposed Closing Date, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be
continuing.

Dated:
Henry Schein, Inc.

By:
Name:
Title:

Exhbit B
Page 2




EXHIBIT A

[Attach any Schedules to be updated, blacklined to show changes]

Exhbit B
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EXHIBIT C

[FORM OF CONFIRMATION OF ACCEPTANCE]

HENRY SCHEIN, INC.

Reference is made to the Master Note Facility (the “Agreement”), dated as of August 9, 2010, among HENRY SCHEIN, INC. (the “Company”), on the one hand,
and New York Life Investment Management LLC (“New York Life”), the Purchasers and each New York Life Affiliate which becomes party thereto, on the other
hand. All terms used herein that are defined in the Agreement have the respective meanings specified in the Agreement.

The New York Life Affiliate which is named below as a Purchaser of Notes hereby makes the representations as to such Notes set forth in Section 6 of the
Agreement, and agrees to be bound by the Agreement.

Pursuant to Section 2.6 of the Agreement, an Acceptance with respect to the following Accepted Notes is hereby confirmed:

1. Accepted Notes: Aggregate principal
amount $

(A) (@) Name of Purchaser:
(b)  Principal amount:
(c)  Final maturity date:
(d)  Principal prepayment dates and amounts:
(f)  Interest rate:
(g) Interest payment period®:
(h)  Payment and notice instructions: As set forth on attached Purchaser Schedule

6 Specify quarterly or semi-annually.




B) (@) Name of Purchaser:
(b)  Principal amount:
(c)  Final maturity date:
(d)  Principal prepayment dates and amounts:

(f)  Interest rate:
(g) Interest payment period:
(h)  Payment and notice instructions: As set forth on attachedPurchaser Schedule

[(C), (D) Same information as above.]
2. Closing Date:
Dated:
HENRY SCHEIN, INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

By:
Name:
Title:

By:
Name:
Title:

[NEW YORK LIFE AFFILIATE]

By:

Name:

Title:
Exhibit C
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EXHIBIT D
[SUBJECT TO ONGOING REVIEW AND COMMENT BY THE PROSKAUER OPINION COMMITTEE]
Form or OpiNION OF SPECIAL COUNSEL TO THE COMPANY

The following opinions are to be provided by special counsel for the Company, subject to customary assumptions, definitions, limitations and qualifications
in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Purchasers. All capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in that
certain Master Note Facility (the “Agreement”), dated as of August 9, 2010, between Henry Schein, Inc. (the “Company”), on the one hand, and New York Life

Investment Management LLC (“New York Life”) and each New York Life Affiliate which becomes party thereto, on the other hand.

The Company (i) is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of Delaware and (ii) has all requisite corporate
power and authority to issue and sell the Notes, to execute and deliver the Agreement and the Notes and to perform the provisions thereof.

[Each Guarantor (i) is a [®]” duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation and (ii) has all
requisite [®]8 power and authority to execute and deliver its Guaranty Agreement and to perform the provisions thereof.]?

The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Company and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company,
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms.

The Notes issued on the Closing Date with respect to which the opinion is being delivered, have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
Company and constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms.

[Each Guaranty Agreement pursuant to which the Notes are guaranteed has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the applicable Guarantor and
constitutes a legal, valid and binding agreement of that Guarantor, enforceable against that Guarantor in accordance with its terms.]1°

7 Insert appropriate range of entities (e.g. corporation, limited liability company, etc.).
8 Insert appropriate range of entities (e.g. corporation, limited liability company, etc.).

9 Opinion regarding Guarantors will be limited to only those Guarantors at such Closing Date organized in Delaware or a jurisdiction in which Proskauer then
admitted to practice

10 If all purchasers of Notes from time to time under the Master Facility have previously received opinions as to Guaranty Agreements, this opinion not required
with respect to subsequent note issuances.




Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the Purchasers in Section 6 of the Purchase Agreement, no consent, approval, authorization
or order of, or filing, registration, qualification, license or permit of or with, any federal or New York court or governmental agency, body or authority or
administrative agency, or with any Delaware court or arbitrator or governmental or regulatory authority in each case pursuant to the DGCL, is required for (i) the
execution, delivery or performance by the Company of the Agreement or the Notes on the Closing Date or the issuance of the Notes on the Closing Date or (ii) the
execution, delivery or performance by any Guarantor of its Guaranty Agreement on the Closing Date, except (a) for those which failure to obtain could not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect or (b) such as have been or will be obtained and made on or prior to the
Closing Date.

The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Agreement and the Notes, the issuance of the Notes, and the execution, delivery and
performance by the Guarantors of their Guaranties will not (i) breach of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation or
imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance upon any property or assets of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary pursuant to, any indenture, mortgage, deed
of trust, loan agreement or other agreement or instrument listed on Annex B to such opinion (which shall include all Principal Debt Facilities), (ii) violate the
provisions of the Charter or By-laws of the Company or any Guarantor or (iii) violate the laws of the State of New York, the Delaware General Corporation Law or
any federal law, rule or regulation of the United States of America or any judgment, order or regulation of any court or arbitrator or governmental or regulatory
authority known to such counsel, applicable to the Company or any Guarantor.

No (i) registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, of the Notes or the Guarantees thereof or (ii) qualification of an indenture in respect of the
Notes under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, is required for the sale of the Notes to the Purchaser as contemplated by the Note Purchase Agreement,
assuming the accuracy of the Purchaser’s representations contained in Section 6 of the Purchase Agreement or the Company’s representations contained in Section
5.17 of the Purchase Agreement.

Neither the issuance and sale of the Notes and the Guaranties, on the Closing Date with respect to which the opinion is being delivered, nor the application
of the proceeds thereof by the Company in a manner consistent with the requirements of the Note Purchase Agreement will violate Regulations T, U or X of the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

Exhibit D
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The Company is not an “investment company” or, to the knowledge of such counsel, a Person “controlled” by an “investment company” within the
meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

Exhibit D
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Exhibit 4.2

Execution Version

Portions of this agreement have been omitted and separately filed with the SEC with a request for confidential treatment. The location of those omissions

have been noted by [**].

HENRY SCHEIN, INC.

$250,000,000

Private Shelf Facility

PRIVATE SHELF AGREEMENT

Dated August 9, 2010
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